
  

North Bristol NHS Trust 
Board Meeting 

Thursday 30 May 2013 
11.30am, Board Room, Trust Headquarters, Frenchay Hospital 

 
AGENDA FOR PUBLIC SESSION 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES:  
 
2. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
3. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM HEALTHWATCH REPRESENTATIVES 
 
4. MINUTES 
 
 Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on 25 April 2013   Enc 
 
5. ACTION LOG         Enc 
 
6. GOVERNANCE, QUALITY AND SAFETY 
 

6.1 Quality Report & Patient Story (verbal)    SJ/Enc 
6.2 Annual Governance Statement     M-NO/Enc 
6.3 Annual Accounts 2012/13      BB/Enc 
6.4 Infection Control Report      CB/Enc 
6.5 Monthly Summary of Serious Incidents/Serious Case Reviews SJ/Enc 
6.6 Friends and Family Test Report      SJ/Enc 
6.7 Corporate Governance Proposals                                            HH/Enc 
6.8 Audit Committee - Highlight Report from meeting 17 April  KG/Enc 
 

7. STRATEGY 
 

7.1 Capital Projects Highlight Reports      MC/Enc 
7.2  Vascular Review        HH/Enc 
7.3 Healthy Futures Programme      HH/Enc 
7.4 Foundation Trust/Acute Services Review Update   HH/Verbal 
7.5 Emerging Estates Strategy      MC/Pres’n 
 

8. SERVICE DELIVERY AND PERFORMANCE 
 
 8.1 Management Information Reports 
  8.1.1 Activity and Performance      SK/Enc 
  8.1.2 Budget and Contract Update     BB/Enc 
 8.1.3 Road to 2014 – Programme Management Office (PMO) 
  Report        M-NO/Enc 
  8.1.4 Single Operating Model      M-NO/Enc 
 
9. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 9.1 Chairman’s Report       PR/Verbal 
 9.2 Chief Executive’s Report      M-NO/Verbal 

 
10. INFORMATION 
 
 10.1 Use of Trust Seal       PC/Enc 



  

      
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
12. NEXT MEETING 
 
 Thursday 27th June 2013 
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North Bristol NHS Trust 
Minutes of the North Bristol NHS Trust meeting held on 25 April 2013 

 
Present:   Mr P Rilett (Chairman)  
 Mr B Boa   Mr S Karakusevic 
 Dr C Burton   Mr M Lawton  
 Mr M Coupe   Mr R Mould 
 Mr K Guy   Ms M-N Orzel 
 Mr H Hayer   Mr N Patel   
 Mr S Hughes   Prof A Waterman-Pearson 
 Mrs S Jones   Mr S Wood 
    
In Attendance: Mr T Bartlett  Mr N Stibbs 
 Mr P Cresswell  Mr I Triplow 
 Mr C Puckett 
 
Apologies: None 
 

  ACTION 
70/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
71/13 

BOOKS BY NBT AUTHORS 
 
The Chairman referred to a pamphlet tabled by Harry Hayer which 
illustrated a large number of publications written by North Bristol 
Trust staff and published in the last year or about to be published. 
Harry Hayer said that it showcased the significant expertise in the 
organisation for research and teaching. It was a bigger list than in 
2012. Some of the authors were clinical academics with links to the 
two Bristol universities, some would have used NBT staff in their 
research and most would have worked in their own time as well as 
NBTs. He would investigate how royalties were paid. 
 
QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HH 

   
 There were no questions from the public.  

 
 

72/13 QUESTIONS FROM HEALTHWATCH  
   
 There were no questions from Healthwatch representatives.   
   
73/13 MINUTES  
   
 The minutes of the meeting of 28 March 2013 were agreed as an 

accurate record, 
 

 
 
 

74/13 MATTERS ARISING/ACTION LOG  
  

i)     Closed Actions  
 
The Board reviewed the Action Log and agreed that Action 26 and 
Minutes 145/12 and 192/12 from 2012 and Actions 3, 6, 13, 16 and 
17, 20 and 24 from 2013 had been completed and would, 
therefore, be closed.  
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The following items were discussed in more detail: 
 

 (ii)    Review of Governance and Risk Management Committee 
(Minute 182/12 refers) 

 

   
 All corporate governance was being looked at and an update would 

be brought to the Board in May so this single issue was closed. 
 

   
 (iii)   Action 7 (Minute 10/13 refers)  
   
 Action had been taken and the issue was closed.  
   
 (iv)   Action 9 (Minute 12/13 refers)  
   
 All reporting issues were to be brought together in a seminar in 

May with mock-ups and the first report to the Board in June. 
 
(v)    Action 19 (Minute 30/13 refers)  
 
To be carried forward. 
 
(vi)   Action 27 (Minute 49/13(ii) refers) 
 
For May meeting. 
 
(vii)  Action 29 (Minute 51/13 refers) 
 
Metrics for quality issues in 2013/4 will be reviewed and Quality 
report will capture the previous year’s failures. 
 
(viii) Action 30 (Minute 54/13 refers) 
 
Harry Hayer reported that 15 renal staff had been interviewed for 
the national survey and nine had reported witnessing potential 
harmful errors. As a high performing directorate with good safety 
culture more frequent reporting of incidents would be expected but 
this was accompanied by a strong understanding of how to deal 
with these incidents to mitigate potential risk to patients. 
 
The IMT directorate had recently experienced the implementation 
of Cerner, the loss of director, a change in leadership, functional 
and structural changes and changes in job descriptions so their 
morale was low. Whilst this wasn’t a good place to be it does 
provide context and explanation for the poor scores in that 
directorate. Actions have already been taken, with more in 
progress, to address those issues. The Board considered, 
therefore, that both issues were closed and will continue to be 
monitored through directorate & workforce governance processes. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
PC 
 
 
 
PC 
 
 
 
SJ 
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(ix)  Action 31 (Minute 57/13 refers) 
 
Link has been sent to non-executives and issue, therefore, closed. 
 
(x)   Action 32 (Minute 65/13 refers) 
 
Non-executives to be informed of arranged visits 
 
(xi)  Minute 46/13) 
 
Marie-Noelle Orzel reported that the member of the public had 
received their response. 
 

75/13 PATIENT STORY 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sue Jones noted that although the hospitals were experiencing 
very high emergency pressures very many compliments had been 
received. One quotation from a patient in the emergency 
Department of a particular member of staff was “Her presence 
makes everyone smile” and from another patient “All I can say was 
that everything was as it should have been”. 
 
Sue Jones verbally provided a patient story about a poor 
experience. It concerned a lady in her eighties with complex needs 
including kidney problems. She was admitted with back pain after 
lying for some time alone after a fall at home. She was assessed 
as part of the new complex assessment liaison service by the 
geriatric lead and was considered cognitively good and in need of a 
keysafe and a lifeline personal alarm. It was felt that she would be 
discharged within seven days. Unfortunately she had to be 
transferred late at night to Severn Ward where she was a medical 
outlier and assessed again by a number of doctors. She was also 
seen by a physiotherapist to assess her ability to manage stairs. 
The medical notes from this period were not as full as they might 
have been but the nursing staff began searching for her allocated 
social department officer. After ten days she was seen by an 
Occupational Therapist who independently assessed her need only 
for a keysafe and alarm before discharge. She was then 
transferred to U Ward the following day where another doctor 
assessed her as medically fit for discharge. The social worker 
made contact with her and discussed sheltered housing which she 
turned down and she eventually left the hospital supported by a 
nephew after 24 days. 
 
The case showed how discharges could be delayed considerably 
by internal issues and the need to improve both them and the 
speed of delivery of equipment to enable patients to live at home. 
 
The Board resolved to note the report. 
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76/13 QUALITY REPORT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
77/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
78/13 

Sue Jones presented the Quality report and highlighted: 
 

 The belief that screening for nutrition was not always being 
recorded and that the Cerner ‘fix’ would mean it had to be 
completed on the system 

 The number of falls continued to reduce with targeted 
training and categorisation of falling stars helping the issue. 
The introduction of single rooms in the new hospital had 
prompted debate about the potential use of alarms and 
assisted technology and intentional rounding would also 
help mitigate the greater risk. She would provide some 
comparative figures from other hospitals in future 

 
Sue Jones commented on the report on the rate of caesarean 
sections (C-sections) which the board had requested. The rate had 
increased marginally in the last three years and was slightly above 
the national average. All such procedures were reviewed regularly 
by a multi professional intrapartum clinical team and both the 
reasons for them and their outcomes were audited. More detail 
would be given to the Governance and Risk Management 
Committee in June and Chris Burton noted that the outcomes of c-
sections were very good. 
 
The Board resolved to note the report. 
 
QUALITY ACCOUNT AND PRIORITIES 
 
Sue Jones reported that the draft Quality Account had been 
presented to the local authority overview and scrutiny committees 
but had been brought to the Board to confirm the priorities for 
2013/4 and seek approval to send to commissioners and 
Healthwatch for comments. The priority regarding improving patient 
interaction at the bedside referred to records so the wording would 
be changed. 
 
Chris Burton noted that a process was in place to ensure 
mislabelled samples were identified but needed more work.  
 
The Board approved the Quality Account for comments and noted 
that it would be presented in full at the next meeting. 
 
SERIOUS INCIDENTS 
 
Sue Jones presented a summary of the serious incidents reported 
in March. The one never event had subsequently been 
downgraded following discussions with commissioners and the root 
cause analysis would indicate any potential actions.  
 
Nick Patel noted one incident dating back to early 2009 and Chris 
Burton reported that obtaining an audit to confirm actions had been 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SJ 
 
 
 
 
 
SJ 
 
 
 
 
 
SJ 
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taken on the particular incident had proved difficult. Rob Mould 
noted also that one incident had not identified any cause and Sue 
Jones said that there was nothing clinical that staff could have 
done to avoid the death had been identified. 
 
The Board noted the report 
  

79/13 PATIENT EXPERIENCE DASHBOARD  
   
 Sue Jones presented the dashboard of feedback information from 

patients and families for Quarter Four. This would be presented to 
directorates via their patient experience lead with additional 
information from NQATs. The quality of the governance in this area 
in some directorates needed to be improved. 
 
In answer to Harry Hayer, Sue Jones said that the Friends and 
Family indicator would be available publically, be comparable with 
other Trusts and be reported in this quarterly report. 
 
The Board noted the report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SJ 
 
 
 

80/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
81/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HISTOPATHOLOGY ACTION PLAN PROGRESS 
 
Chris Burton presented a progress report on actions taken from the 
recommendations regarding histopathology in Bristol. These 
actions had also been presented to a meeting of the joint Bristol 
and South Gloucestershire overview and scrutiny committee which 
had urged openness about the issue and it had been published on 
the NBT public website. He wanted data also to be published 
openly and to put together the correct audits to provide this could 
take a year.  
 
Severn Pathology was still viewed as a priority and the best 
solution for histopathology but internal discussions had taken place 
about actions if it did not go ahead. The second priority was to 
continue to embed specialty reporting and recruit clinical staff to the 
maximum to maintain double reporting.  
 
The Board noted the report. 
 
BOARD RISK AND ASSURANCE REGISTER 
 
Marie-Noelle Orzel presented the third update of the Board Risk 
and Assurance Register. Revisions to the January position were 
shown in red and illustrated the dynamic nature of the risk profile 
and mitigating actions. Some of the business related risks had 
reduced reflecting PMO co-ordinated work but quality related risks 
had an increasingly high risk profile. No directorate ‘bottom up’ 
operational risks of 16+ had yet been added. The few risks scored 
at that level to date were being moderated by the Governance and 
Risk Management Committee in line with the recently revised Risk 
management Strategy. Many had not been robustly scored or been 
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82/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
83/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
84/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
85/13 

through proper directorate review. Many IM&T risks were recorded 
within the Move Project. 
 
The Board approved the Register. 
 
GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
ANNUAL REPORT 
 
Marie-Noelle Orzel presented the 2012/13 Annual Report from the 
G&RMC which outlined the wealth of work it had undertaken. For 
the first time it included the Regulatory Compliance Dashboard 
showing the Trust’s performance against compliance with all the 
standards of the major regulatory agencies. Chris Burton reflected 
that changing the reporting structure so that the Clinical Audit 
Committee together with the Clinical Effectiveness Committee 
reported to the Quality Committee brought information on clinical 
services to a forum where all clinical directors were directly 
appraised of issues. 
 
The Board approved the Annual Report and the revised terms of 
reference of the G&RMC. 
 
GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
 
The Board noted the highlight report from the G&RMC meeting of 
8th April and the difficulty in aligning all sub-committee meetings 
with its schedule. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 
 
Ken Guy presented the annual report of the Audit Committee and 
reported that at the last meeting it had received a report from the 
Clinical Audit Committee Chairman and had been very assured 
about the way that audit was improving quality within the Trust. 
Chris Burton commented that nationally the publication of data on 
the performance of individual clinicians was being pushed which 
would put pressure on Trusts to invest in audit time to ensure the 
data was accurate. 
 
The Board approved the Annual Report 
 
REDEVELOPMENT BOARD HIGHLIGHT REPORT 

 
 
 
PC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 Mike Coupe presented the highlight reports from the Southmead 

Hospital Redevelopment and Move projects and said that at the 
next meeting he would also bring a highlight report on the ‘Jigsaw’ 
capital schemes. He noted that a number of business cases were 
to be brought forward in the next few months and the challenge 
would be to balance these with the Board’s current work whilst 
maintaining adequate scrutiny of the cases. These included 
Pathology in June and CSSD, for which a preferred solution and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MC 
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timeline had been resolved but costs and a detailed delivery plan 
were still outstanding. 
 
On the new hospital itself, the Emergency Department corridor 
issue had been resolved and the final fire report was due by the 
end of April. On the Move project 500 staff had signed up to tour 
the mock-up rooms  
 
The Board noted the reports. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
86/13 

 
FOUNDATION TRUST/ACUTE SERVICES REVIEW 

 

   
 Harry Hayer reported that the Integrated Business (IBP) and Long 

Term Financial Plans had been submitted on time and the 
immediate informal feedback was positive but the documents will 
need some work on overall coherence. The next stage depended 
upon whether the Trust’s TDA rating for the first Quarter was 
green. If it was then detailed work would need to be done on the 
IBP. If it was not green then the timetable would slip. Monthly 
oversight meetings with the TDA had been arranged. 
 
The Acute Services Review was focussed on three areas and 
would report in June: 
 

 An analysis of eleven hospital specialty areas 

 Review of four whole system pathways 

 The financial challenges 
 
A letter was being sent to key external stakeholders from Marie-
Noelle Orzel and Robert Woolley outlining the review and the 
South Gloucestershire Overview Scrutiny Committee had invited 
the Trust to present the plans. 

 

   
87/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCE REPORT 
 
Bill Boa presented the Finance Report for the twelve months ended 
31st March 2013. He said that the draft accounts had been 
submitted to the Department of Health and all targets had been 
achieved. The recorded surplus was £7million but the underlying 
position was just over £3million because the Trust had had to use 
£4million of non-recurrent funding. This ‘gap’ would be carried 
forward to 2013/4 and increased the CRES target to £24million. 
The surplus included impairments, accounting for donated assets 
and the effect of accounting for PFI assets. 
 
He said that PCT income overall had been good but 
Neurosciences had been too ambitious in growth assumptions and 
the closure of the NICU had affected the Women’s and Children’s 
directorate. Key expenditure issues had been the non-achievement 
of £6million of CRES and specialling costs. 
 
The Board noted the report 
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88/13 
 

 
ACTIVITY AND PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
89/13 

Sasha Karakusevic presented the report on the Trust’s patient 
activity and advised that the four hour ED target remained 
challenging but the Trust was now able to accurately report its 
position on incomplete spells. The recovery plan had been 
supported by local partners and a more joined up approach had 
taken shape. Cancer targets were not fully validated but late 
referrals appeared to be jeopardising their achievement. Cancelled 
operations in March had been high and the Trust was trying to 
change its approach by giving greater notice to patients. 
 
It was resolved to note the Activity and Performance report. 
 
INFECTION CONTROL REPORT 
 
Chris Burton introduced this report and noted that C Diff was an 
area for concern 17 cases in March taking the year-end total to 84 
against the target of 61. This was likely to be associated with the 
organisational pressures but the action plan had been reviewed to 
bring it under control. Actions were: 
 

 Matrons walkrounds had been refocused, 

  the basics of infection control were being emphasised, 

 an RCA had found that isolation of potential C Diff patients 
was not as fast as it should be and a daily side room tracker 
was being developed 

 probiotics were being considered given in a more specific 
way than had been tried previously 

 a deep clean of wards was being planned to take place once 
operational pressures allowed 

 the clinical lead for infection control at the TDA had been 
invited to give advice and she ahd visited the previous day 
and would attend again 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
90/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Board noted the report.   
 
ROAD TO 2014 - PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT OFFICE 
REPORT 
 
Harry Hayer presented the report on the activities of the 
Programme Management Office which, in March, had focussed on 
bringing together the plans and timelines for the Operating plan, 
Move and supporting workforce and FT planning into a single 
critical path against which progress will be measured. A weekly 
scrutiny process will escalate any areas of concern. 
 
The Board noted the report. 
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91/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WORKFORCE AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
Harry Hayer presented the quarterly Workforce and Organisational 
Development report. Nick Patel noted that staff numbers had 
increased and Harry Hayer that this was partly due to the 
conversion of bank and temporary staff into permanent posts at a 
lower cost.  
 
Ken Guy said that it would be useful to have a phased plan of the 
workforce changes for Move for the year against which progress 
could be tracked. Harry Hayer agreed that this could be done now 
that a robust plan was in place. The last six months of the year 
would see a focus on consultation with staff for the major transition 
that would take place. 
 
Avril Waterman-Pearson questioned whether an indicator such as 
sickness absence would map across to other indicators such as 
poor financial achievement or complaints and Harry Hayer agreed 
that better integrated reporting was needed. 
 
The Board noted the report and agreed that progress against a 
workforce plan be tracked. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HH 

92/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
93/13 

RESEARCH STRATEGY 
 
Harry Hayer presented the quarterly report on progress against the 
Research Strategy. He noted, particularly, that the Trust was 
bidding for the NIHR Collaboration for Leadership in Applied Health 
Research and Care. This would be the operational arm of Bristol 
Health Partners, applying research into practice with up to £9million 
available over five years. 
 
He commented on the recent TedMed conference where clinicians 
from Bristol gave six minute presentations to a worldwide audience 
and showcased their work.  
 
In discussion regarding the Research Committee and relationship 
with Bristol Health Partners Harry Hayer agreed to ask the 
Research Director, David Wynick, to give a report at a Board 
development session. 
 
SINGLE OPERATING MODEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HH 

   
 Marie-Noelle Orzel reported that the Trust was now using the 

rolling figure for the Summary Hospital Mortality Indicator. The 
Open Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation had increased to 
ten in March but the Maternity red risks had reduced to one. The 
former reflected the increased volumes of patients. The question 
about detailed CIP schemes was now answered positively. The 
Financial risk rating, therefore, was now green but the governance 
risk rating remained red. Monthly oversight meetings were now 
being held with TDA staff and quarterly meetings with the TDA 
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Delivery and Development Director. 
 
The Board approved the report noting in particular the positive 
response to the Board Statement on the financial risk rating and 
the negative response concerning compliance with targets. 

   
94/13 
 
 
 
 
95/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
96/13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
97/13 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
Peter Rilett said that he had nothing of significance to report that 
month.  
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT 
 

Marie-Noelle reported: 

 the appointment of two elderly care consultants, a 
microbiologist and a paediatrician. 

 The calling of an internal critical incident the previous 
Monday because of the severe pressures experienced in 
the Emergency Department. Staff in many departments, 
however, had responded extremely well and maintained the 
quality of care 

 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Simon Wood reminded the Board of the Exceptional Health Care 
Awards ceremony to be held on 22nd May at St George’s Church, 
Brandon Hill. 
 
Harry Hayer reported that North Bristol had been selected by the 
specialist commissioners as the host for the Major Trauma, Burns 
(including South Wales and South Central England) and 
Neuromuscular operational delivery networks. UHB was the host 
for Adult and Childrens’ Critical Care. He also said that he would 
bring a progress report next month on vascular services with 
Southmead acting as the arterial centre for Bristol and Bath. 
 

NEXT MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HH 

   
 The next meeting will be held on Thursday 30 May 2013 in the 

Board Room, Trust Headquarters, Frenchay Hospital, commencing 
at 11.30am. 

 

   
   

 



North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Action Log 2013

Meeting 
Date

Minute 
Ref

Action 
No. 

Action Owner Review 
Date (s)

Status Info.

28/3/13 51/13 29 All performance/quality issues that failed to achieve target 
in 2012/3 to be summarised for next meeting

SJ/CB 25/4/13 & 
30/5/13

O Metrics for 2013/4 being reviewed and 
will be part of Quality Account in May. 
Business Plan performance in private 
session.

28/2/13 30/13 18 Execs to discuss Francis Enquiry recommendations 
following PM's response at the Partnership Forum with the 
unions and Board to discuss at a workshop session

HH/M-
NO

30/5/13 O

25/4/13 92/13 39 Board Development session to be used to discuss 
relationship of Research Committee and Bristol Health 
Partners & also the key short and medium term objectives 
for research strategy.

HH 30/5/13 O

31/1/13 12/13 9 Board to have written activity and performance reports that 
have trend information similar to Patient Experience 
Dashboard

SK 28/2/13, 
25/4/13 & 
27/6/13

O Whole report being reviewed for 2013/4 
meetings. Seminar in May with mock-
ups and first report in June

25/4/13 86/13 36 PwC Acute Services Review to report in June HH 27/6/13 O
25/4/13 91/13 38 Phased workforce plan for 2013/4 to be reported to Board 

in Workforce report and progress monitored monthly
HH 25/7/13 O

28/3/13 49/13 (ii) 27 Update on corporate governance issues to April Board M-NO 25/4/13 & 
30/5/13

A Public session agenda item 6.7

25/4/13 79/13 35 Friends and Family test results to Board to include 
benchmarking

SJ 30/5/13 A Public session agenda item 6.6

25/4/13 85/13 37 Review of process for capital scheme business cases to be 
reported to Board for approval in May, balancing the need 
for effective scrutiny with efficiency of board review.

MC 30/5/13 A Public session agenda item 7.1

25/4/13 96/13 40 Vascular service development progress report to be 
brought to Board in May

HH 30/5/13 A Public session agenda item 7.3

27/10/12 182/12 Review of Governance and Risk Management Committee M-NO 25/4/13 C Part of larger governance review (see 
minute 145/12 below)

28/2/13 27/13 
(iv)

15 Board to consider reasons for caesarean section increase 
through Quality Report

SJ 28/03/13 
& 27/6/13

C Discussed at April Board with details 
going to G&RMC in June

31/1/13 8/13 5 In future the BR&AR Tracker section should include some 
narrative against the red rated risks.

PC 25/4/13 C Discussed at April Board and ongoing

ACTION LOG
Status
A Agenda - this meeting
O Open
C Closed



North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Action Log 2013

Meeting 
Date

Minute 
Ref

Action 
No. 

Action Owner Review 
Date (s)

Status Info.
ACTION LOG

Status
A Agenda - this meeting
O Open
C Closed

31/1/13 10/13 7 Redevelopment Project to report to Board on key 
performance indicators and overview of 'Move' project in 
future

MC 28/2/13 & 
25/4/13

C Feb Board agreed to delay 
implementation and tie in with broader 
review of standard reports. New report 
stated April Board.

28/3/13 51/13 28 Draft Quality Account to next meeting SJ 25/4/13 C Approved for consultation
28/3/13 54/13 30 Report on Renal Directorate harmful errors and Information 

Management satisfaction with and quality of work results 
from Staff Attitude Survey to be made to next meeting

HH 25/4/13 C Report made

28/3/13 65/13 32 Non-executives to be invited to join executive walkrounds SJ 25/4/13 & 
30/5/13

C List of dates issued on 15/5/13

28/2/13 31/13 21 Safe Staffing reports in future to include benchmarking and 
triangulation with other data where possible.

SJ 30/5/13 C Govt response to Francis is requiring a 
6 monthly update on safe staffing & this 
will routinely be brought to 
November/May boards from now on. 
Added to forward agenda.

29/11/12 212/12 Amend Terms of Reference of Executive Team to include a 
responsibility for the formulation of strategy

PC 28/02/13 
& 27/6/13

C Closed for this action. Will be updated 
as part of overhaul of all ToR once 
revised governance structure approved - 
Public board item 6.7. 

25/4/13 77/13 33 Discharge management to be included as part of 
"Improving patient interaction at the bedside" improvement 
priority for 2013/14 Quality Account.

SJ 30/5/13 C Inlcude in work programme & audit will 
eb cuinettaken to validate position,

25/4/13 78/13 34 March Never Event to be categorised as a serious incident  SJ 30/5/13 C



North Bristol NHS Trust Trust Board (Public Session) 
Decision Log 2013

Meeting 
Date

Minute 
Ref

No. Decision

31/1/13 8/13 1 Format and content of reporting the Board Risk and Assurance Register approved.
31/1/13 9/13 2 Professional Standards Authority standards for Board members adopted
31/1/13 13/13 3 Postponement of start of pension auto-enrolment for up to three months approved 
31/1/13 13/13 4 Trust to contribute 1% of opted out employee's salary to AQPS from October 2012 to September 2017, 2% from October 

2017 to September 2018 and 3% from October 2018 onwards
31/1/13 19/13 5 Proposed responses to the 15 board statements within the SOM approved
28/2/13 32/13 6 Risk Management Strategy approved with one amendment
28/2/13 33/13 7 SFIs approved with one amendment

DECISION LOG



North Bristol NHS Trust - Quality Indicators

NOTE: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Charts were correct at time report was produced

 In hospital mortality - Rolling year cumulative relative risk = 87.4 as expected 
and below the national average. HSMR update unavailable until end of May 
due to problemms at Dr Fosters.

There were 17 confirmed calls in April.  The rolling mean is 0.99 compared to 
national average of 2.5. 

In April  215 out of 278 were correctly completed according to the oxygen 
prescribing policy. This is 77% being recorded correctly.

WHO Chart - From Frank

Relative risk for Rolling 12 mths to Sept 12 = 97.7  as expected. 3,000 cases are being audited per month. Compliance against Sign In, Time 
Out and Sign Out across 56 theatres is 89.4%

 NBT harm rate at 91.6%.   National rate = 92.3%.  All wards are  now 
participating
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 Preventing Deterioration Oxygen Correctly prescribed 
(source Clinical Audit) 
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Quality Indicators

NOTE: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Charts were correct at time report was produced

VTE chart

Rate per 10,000 bed days was 12.6 in April, with  39 patients with grade 2+ 
PU's.  There were 2 patients with 1 grade 3 PU each.  One patient with a grade 
4 PU.

The target has shifted from 90 to 95%. Current VTE performance at 94.3%. 
The DoH submission is 29th of the month and we anticipate 95% for April when 
all patient coding is completed

The rate per 1000 beddays is 4.9 for April with a rolling mean of 5.3. The rate 
per 1000 beddays in April 2012 was 6.00

Compliance with the catheter care bundle was at 68.3% in April with a sample 
size of 372 records

There was one fall resulting in serious injury during April
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Cquin - Tissue Viability - Patients with grade 2 +Ulcer 
/10,000 beddays 
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Falls - Rate per 1000 Bed days 
 Source - safeguard/AIMS 
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Severe Falls (Level 4 +) 
 Source - safeguard 

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Fe
b-

12

M
ar

-1
2

Ap
r-1

2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
n-

12

Ju
l-1

2

Au
g-

12

Se
p-

12

O
ct

-1
2

N
ov

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

Ja
n-

13

Fe
b-

13

M
ar

-1
3

Ap
r-1

3

 CAUTI - Ongoing care compliance 
(source - clinical Audit) 
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Quality Indicators

NOTE: Subsequent validation by clinical teams can alter scores retrospectively. Charts were correct at time report was produced

 In April 54% of patients recorded on Cerner as screened for malnutrition. 
There issues with Cerner data fields which are not capturing all completed 
screening. Paper forms are being withdrawn to ensure all data is reported on 
Cerner

Missing records Mis-labeled samples

This is a new Quality Account priority - Clinic delivery rate on Cerner shoiws a 
baseline figure of 57.2% as the starting baseline. Only reflects notes 
accurately "traced" to exact clinic location - true delivery rate will be higher

This is a new Quality Account priority - figure is the starting baseline. 46152 
samples requested in April, 727 labelling/sampling errors identified in April 
which is 1.6%
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Cquin  - Nutrition Screen for Malnutrition within 24 Hrs of 
Admission 

 (source Cerner risk assessment) 
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Report Title Quality Report to Board 

Status For Information Discussion Assurance  Approval 

   

Prepared by Lesley Le-Pine – Head of Clinical Governance 

Board Sponsor Sue Jones – Director of Nursing 

Appendices Appendix 1 - Quality dashboard   
 

 

For Information 

Executive Summary:  

RAG Rating:  

Workstream RAG  
Status* 

Workstream RAG  
Status* 

Mortality Green Falls Green 

Cardiac Arrests Green VTE Green 

WHO Checklist Amber Patient records Amber 

Safety Thermometer Green Mislabelled samples Amber 

CAUTI Amber Nutrition Amber 

Pressure Ulcers Amber Improving documentation at the Bedside Green 

 

NBT mortality rate is lower 
than the national average 

 

HSMR – rate remains below the national expected mortality rate of 100 
the rolling mean is 87.4 using the Dr Fosters age adjusted casemix.  
SHMI – Quarter 2 to Sept 2012 rolling mean is 97.7 which is stable and 
as expected 

The rolling mean rate of 
cardiac arrest calls is now 
0.99 per 1000 discharges.  

Preventing Deterioration – Cardiac arrest rates remain well below the 
national average of 2.5 per 1000 discharges.  There were 17 confirmed 
arrest calls in April compared to 18 calls in March. 

WHO checklist compliance 
has improved this month 

WHO – Surgical Safety Checklist – compliance reported across 56 
theatres is at 89.4% 

The National Quality 
dashboard shows that NBT 
is performing as expected in 
all areas apart from ED 

National Quality dashboard shows NBT is performing as expected in all 
areas apart from ED performance.  This is shown to be improving from 
April to May but remains an area requiring improvement. Bed occupancy 
in the organisation is also shown to have risen above the long term level 
in NBT during 2012. The value reached 97% occupancy in October 2012 
which is the last available data point.  

Safety Thermometer measures 

The CQUIN for the Safety 
Thermometer for ‘harm free’ 
care has been achieved. 

Safety Thermometer - Compliance with CQUIN target of 100% 
completion by Quarter 4 has been achieved. ‘Harm rate’ in April was at 
91.6% compared to the national rate of 92.3%.  

Catheter ongoing care 
compliance is at 68.4% 

CAUTI – Compliance with ongoing care achieved 68.4% in April 
compared to 70% in March from a sample of 372 records. CAUTI is a key 
focus of the infection prevention control programme 2013/14. Safety 
thermometer date being used to identify and target areas for 
improvement in future this will be reported within the Control of Infection 
report.  



 
 

Falls continue to reduce 
compared to the same 
period last year. 

Falls – There was one serious fall in April. The falls rate per 1000 bed 
days is 4.9 - compared to April 2012 the falls rate was 6.00. 

Pressure ulcer incidence is 
12.6 patients per 10,000 bed 
days. 

Pressure Ulcers: 39 patients were reported with grade 2 pressure ulcers 
in March compared to 41 in March.  There were 2 patients with 1 grade 3 
ulcer each, with 1 patient with grade 4 pressure ulcer in April. A review of 
all RCAs from Q3/Q4 2012/13 has been undertaken to establish areas for 
improvement. Key actions relate to reassessment of patients on change 
of clinical condition and improvement in communication on transfer. 

On target to achieve new 
risk assessment rate of 95% 

VTE- Requirement for VTE risk assessment raised to 95% from1st April. 
Current mid month performance is at 94.3%. Data submission is 29th of 
the month - 95% anticipated when all patient coding is completed. 

Quality Account priorities 

Delivery of patient records is 
well below target of 95% 
delivered 2 days prior to 
patient appointment 

Patient records – This is a new quality priority. Baseline data shows 
delivery at 57.2%. However complexities of Cerner build introduced large 
number of clinics creating problems for accurate tracing. Work underway 
to reconfigure clinic lists & improve accuracy of tracing. 

Sampling errors rate at 
baseline is 1.6% 

Mislabelled samples - This is a new quality priority. In April 727 
labelling/sampling errors were identified.  Campaign to raise awareness 
and promote labelling at the bedside at ‘point of draw’ is underway 

Rate of screening within 
24hrs of admission has 
remained similar to last 
month. 

Nutrition - In April 54% of patients were recorded as screened for 
malnutrition compared to 49% in March. Work is in progress to correct 
Cerner data fields to ensure all completed screening is captured. Paper 
forms are being withdrawn to ensure all reporting is via Cerner. 

Bed side documentation has 
improved since the CQC 
inspection at Southmead 

Improve record keeping at the bedside – Matrons have completed 
random audits to check quality of bedside documentation and ensure 
individualised patient care is documented.  Rolling audits introduced and 
standardised documentation agreed to maintain required standards. 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report 

 Key Risks: Quality Strategy objectives may not be achieved this will impact on CQUINs agreed with 
commissioners. 

Impact on Patients: All measures relate to the delivery of patient care, achievement of gateways/CQUIN targets 
helps to build confidence in Trust service provision and assure the public/other key 
stakeholders that the organisation is meeting quality and safety standards 

Trust Objectives Services exemplary of quality & 
safety, No waits no delays 

CQC Outcomes O16 – assessing & 
monitoring quality of services 

NHS Constitution Considered as applicable Equality Issues: Considered throughout 

Financial Issues: As indicated in regard to incentive 
payments/ penalties. 

Other Legal/ 
regulatory Issues 

Considered throughout. 

 

 

*RAG Definitions 

Rating Definition 

Red The Trust is at significant risk of, or is actually breaching its objectives in this area 

Amber Some objectives are being achieved, but risks exist that may breach others 

Green Positive assurance exists that the Trust is primarily meeting its objectives in this area 
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Name of organisation:  North Bristol NHS Trust 
 
Organisation Code: RVJ 

Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 
 
1. Scope of Responsibility 
 
As Chief Executive and Accountable Officer of the Trust my responsibilities are set out in the 
Accountable Officers’ Memorandum issued by the Department of Health. These include 
ensuring that; 
 

 There are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and 
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance. 

 Value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust. 

 The expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes intended 
by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 Effective and sound financial management systems are in place. 

 Annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of 
State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, 
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. 

 
In addition I have responsibility for; 
 

 Maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the 
Trust’s policies, aims and objectives. 

 Ensuring the services provided by the Trust are of exemplary quality and safety, 
giving patients the best possible experience. 

 
 
2. Governance Framework of the Organisation  
 
Corporate Governance 

The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. As a large and complex organisation a supporting infrastructure is required 
to fulfil these responsibilities effectively.  Authority is delegated by the Board to various board 
committees, as outlined within the Trust’s Standing Orders. The Committee structure of the 
Trust is shown below: 
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The key committees in terms of supporting the system of internal control are; 
 

Committee Functions 

Trust Board 
 

The Trust Board maintains overall accountability for the effectiveness of internal control. 
It primarily discharges this responsibility through the receipt and review of; 

 Governance and Risk Management Committee reports on the Assurance 
Framework to ensure key risks are identified and controls or assurance gaps are 
being addressed. 

 Regular reports providing internal assurances, at monthly, quarterly and six monthly 
intervals including finance, activity, workforce measures, commissioning and clinical 
governance. 

 External assurance sources, including the Audit Letter and end of year accounts, 
and reports from the Care Quality Commission, NHSLA etc. 

 

Audit  
Committee  
 

 The Audit Committee provides independent and objective scrutiny of Trust activities 
through its membership, which consists of three Non-Executive directors. Executive 
Directors, senior managers, Internal and External auditors attend and provide input. 

 It is responsible for ensuring there are arrangements for the establishment and 
maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, risk management and 
internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s activities (both clinical and 
non-clinical). 

 This supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives and ensures 
compliance with regulatory, legal and code of conduct requirements.  

 In carrying out this work the Committee primarily utilises the work of Internal Audit, 
External Audit and other assurance functions, as well as seeking reports and 
assurances from directors and managers as appropriate. 

 

Governance 
and Risk 
Management 
Committee 
(G&RMC) and 
supporting 
committees 
 

 The Governance and Risk Management Committee (G&RMC) is the Executive 
Committee responsible for the management of Risk, Governance and Assurance for 
the Trust, including overseeing development of the Trust’s Risk and Assurance 
Register prior to Board approval.  

 It comprises the executives and two non-executives and is responsible for ensuring 
that effective governance, risk management and regulatory compliance systems are 
in place and that effective actions are taken to identify and address deficiencies 
should they arise.  

 This also includes overseeing directorates’ clinical and non-clinical risk registers 
including escalation to the Trust risk register as informed early in the year, by the 
Non Clinical and Clinical Risk Committees and, later, by the Risk and Compliance 
Committee and reviewing progress against NHSLA risk management standards.  

 Furthermore, it is responsible for identifying all the cross cutting themes arising from 
various committees such as the Patient Experience Group and commissioning 
improvement activity from the Quality Committee. 

 

Building our 
Future 
Programme 
Board 
 

 The Programme Board has been meeting during the year to provide leadership and 
effective delivery of the Trust’s change agenda as well as leadership to all project 
boards.   

 In addition the group provides assurance to the Trust Board.   

 The Board is chaired by a non-executive Director and consists of all the Executive 
Directors and supported by the Head of Marketing and Director of Programmes..  
 

Redevelopment 
Programme 
Board 
 

 The Programme Board responsible for overall governance, management and 
direction of all major redevelopment projects including Southmead, Pathology 
Phase 2 and the redevelopment of Frenchay and Cossham 

 It comprises members of the Trust’s Executive team, a Non-Executive Director, 
representatives from the Strategic Health Authority and local Clinical 
Commissioning Group and is supported by the Deputy Project Director.   

 Its role is to specify and oversee the project management arrangements for the 
project including risk management and control and project planning, provide overall 
guidance to the project and take decisions on key issues without delay and within 
delegated tolerances.   

 It is responsible for ensuring key milestones are met and for directing action 
necessary to meet project objectives.  
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Committee Member Attendance Records 

Member Trust Board Audit Committee Governance & 
Risk Mgmt. 

Charitable Funds Redev. 
Board 

BoF TMT Execs 

  2011/2 2012/3 2011/2 2012/3 2011/2 2012/3 2011/2 2012/3 2012/3 2012/3 2012/3 2012/3 

M Bell 8/11 3/5 1  5/6 1/2     2/4   2/4 2/4 

B Boa  4/4   1/1   1/1     3/3 1/1 3/3 3/3 

R Brunt 9/11 3/4     4/6 1/1     1/3 3/3 3/3 3/3 

C Burton 9/11 13/13     4/6 5/5     7/11 6/9 11/12 9/12 

M Coupe   3/4      1/1     2/2 1/1 3/3 1/2 

K Guy 10/11 11/13 4/4 4/4                 

H Hayer 9/11 12/13     5/6 4/5     5/11 6/9 10/12 11/12 

S Hughes 5/11 9/13     1/6 1/5             

S Jones   8/9       3/3     5/7   4/7 7/8 

S 
Karakusevic   8/8       1/1     5/5 2/2 4/5 5/6 

M Lawton   10/12   3/3                 

R Mould 8/11 12/13     5/6 5/5             

A Nield 8/11 1/1 2/4 1/1                 

M-N Orzel 11/11 13/13 2   6/6 3/5     5/11 7/9 9/12 9/12 

N Patel 9/11 11/13 3/4 3/4     4/4 3/3 7/11 7/9     

D Powell 8/11 3/8     0/6 0/4     4/8 5/8 3/8 4/9 

P Rilett 10/11 12/13                     

A 
Waterman-
Pearson 8/11 12/13               9/9     

S 
Watkinson 9/11 3/4   1 6/6 0/1     2/3 2/2 3/3 3/3 

S Webster 10/11 9/9 4/4 2/3 3/6 3/4 4/4 3/3 8/9 6/9 9/10 8/10 

S Wood 8/11 9/13     2/6 5/5 2   8/11 5/9 10/12 10/12 

 

Principal Board Committee Reports 

The Audit Committee and Governance and Risk Management Committee are the key 

independent and executive risk management and assurance committees underpinning the Trust 

Board’s overall responsibility for internal control. In 2012/13.These committees have received 

reports on: 

Committee Reporting Area 

Audit Committee (Independent 
assurance) 
 

 the overarching Trust governance and assurance framework  

 the standing financial instructions 

 the counter fraud work plan 

 the strategic and operational internal audit plans 

 the 2011/12 Financial Accounts 

 the Trust’s Annual Report 

 Emergency Department improvements 

 Safeguarding Adults 

 Decontamination of Medical Equipment 

 a summary of clinical audit activity 

 new hospital programme governance 

 benefits realisation from the e-Rostering project 

 post PAS implementation recovery plans 

 Internal audit and counter fraud annual reports 

 Clinical coding and other PbR data accuracy 

 Quality Account 
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Committee Reporting Area 
Governance and Risk 
Management Committee 
(G&RMC) and supporting 
committees 
(Executive assurance) 
 

 Progress on achieving NHSLA  & CNST Maternity risk management 
standards 

 CQC and CQC/Ofsted visiting reports 

 Board Risk and Assurance Register implementation 

 Risk Registers 

 Quality assessment for a number of clinical service areas 

 CRB checks 

 Medicines governance assurance 

 Histopathology and Cellular Pathology quality assurance 

 New risk management systems implementation 

 Information governance 

 Emergency planning compliance 

 Inpatient survey results and actions 

 Research and Innovation good practice compliance 

 Endoscopy accreditation 

 Review of sub-committee structure 

 Care of vulnerable adults 

 Child serious case reviews 

 Overall regulatory compliance 
 

 

Board Development & Progress towards Foundation Trust status 

The Trust is applying for Foundation Trust status. Part of this process involves an on-going 
programme of board development, including a formal self-assessment of its effectiveness. 

The Board Development Programme was initiated in 2011 and areas of development are 
being progressed and monitored internally via the FT Project Board and is validated 
externally as part of the FT application assessment, by the Trust Development Authority 
(TDA) and then Monitor.  

In the meantime, various reviews have occurred to validate the progress made, such as; 

 PWC assessment against Monitor’s quality governance framework 

 EY formal Board observation  

 Independent consultancy observation of Management and Executive Team meetings 

The independent consultancy has reported back with recommendations for developments to 
improve the effectiveness of the Board to be made over the first half of 2013/4. 

During 2012 the Trust successfully progressed to the Department of Health review stage, at 
which point a decision was made to pause the process whilst broader work was undertaken 
to investigate potential integration with University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust. 
Through discussions with the TDA, it was agreed in November 2012 to recommence a 
standalone FT application alongside the integration programme. In early March 2013 it was 
decided that pursuing a standalone FT application was necessary and will continue. Potential 
integration remains a longer term option. 

To date, all FT milestones have been achieved. The Trust’s operational performance and 
also the need to concentrate on the move to the new hospital at Southmead, which 
commences on 1st April 2014, does mean there are significant risks to achievement of 
Foundation Trust status during the 2013/14 financial year. This is subject to ongoing dialogue 
with the TDA. 

 

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code 

Within the context of being part of the National Health Service the Board complies with the 
Corporate Governance Code with the exception of the following: 

 The Appointments Commission until the middle of the year and, subsequently, the 
Trust Development Authority, appoints the non-executives negating the need for a 
formal nomination committee. If authorised as a Foundation Trust this will change in 
future years. 
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Statutory Functions 

The Governance and Risk Management Committee oversees all statutory compliance 
functions. This will now be facilitated through its new Risk and Compliance sub-committee, 
which held its inaugural meeting in March 2013.  
 

3. Risk and Control Framework 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to:  

 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims 
and objectives   

 Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

 
Risk management is embedded throughout the Trust through a risk management framework 
that is made up of committee structures, risk staff leads familiar with patient safety and risk 
management and risk management tools e.g. the risk register Risk Web system, rolled out to 
most of the organisation during the year. The risk management strategy was extensively 
reviewed in year and seeks to promote a culture where all staff assume responsibility for risk 
management. Its objective is to ensure a pro-active approach to risk management by 
engaging staff at all levels, in efforts to resolve risk locally wherever possible or escalate to a 
more senior level of management if necessary. It has introduced formal escalation and 
moderation systems, the latter being undertaken by the Clinical Risk, Health and Safety and 
Risk and Compliance Committees.  
 
Leadership given to the risk management process  
 
The overall responsibility for managing risk rests with the Chief Executive and I chair the 
Governance and Risk Management Committee (GRMC). Reports from this Committee, which 
includes all Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Directors of the Trust, are made to 
the Board in public session. Risk management receives significant attention at Board level 
and this is being cascaded throughout the organisation. The Board is formally appraised of 
all risks scored above 16 on a quarterly basis through the GRMC and its various sub-
committees properly constituted within the Trust. 
 
Committees supporting the GRMC are: Quality, Safeguarding, Clinical Risk, Health and 
Safety, Infection Control, Patient Experience, Patient Records, Drugs and Therapeutics, Risk 
and Compliance and Contingency Planning Steering Group. 

 

4. Risk Assessment 
 

The Board Risk and Assurance Register defines and assesses the principle strategic and 
operational risks to the Trust’s objectives and sets out the controls and assurances in place 
to mitigate these. The Register has been developed over the year from the former board 
assurance framework and operational and project risks are fed into a software system by a 
network of risk leads in each directorate.  
 
Strategic Risks 
  
Although the BR&AR will provide the mechanism for identifying potential risks against the 
Trust’s strategic priorities they have currently been set against the ‘Big 5’ Trust objectives, as 
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approved by the Board and identified within the Integrated Business Plan for FT status. The 
Register considers the stated aims and objectives of the Trust together with the related 
controls and assurances in place and their adequacy. Furthermore it identifies any gaps in 
those controls and assurances and where an action plan is in progress, to address these 
gaps. The BR&AR was developed from the former Board Assurance Framework and was 
first approved by the board in September 2012 and subsequently at the January 2013 
meeting.  This will continue as an ongoing quarterly review cycle. 

As required by the Foundation Trust application process the Trust is about to submit an 
Integrated Business Plan to the Strategic Health Authority/Trust Development Authority. This 
includes a risk assessment of the Trust and these risks have been cross-referenced to the 
BR&AR to demonstrate the relationship to the Trust’s ongoing assessment of its risk profile. 

Project and Directorate Risks 
 
Programmes and projects are expected to manage risks within the context of their objectives 
and deliverables. Overall risks to the organisation arising from key programmes and projects 
are considered for inclusion within the Trusts Corporate Risk register. 

All clinical directorates have a risk lead responsible for ensuring risks are recorded onto a 
Risk Web system and a forum where risk is discussed. This is either a specific risk group or 
it is part of another group as a standing agenda item e.g. Clinical Governance or Health and 
Safety Group. At these groups the directorate identifies risks and reviews incidents, taking 
action to minimise risk and learn lessons from incidents. Risk assessments are used at all 
levels of the Trust, from service planning to assessing day-to-day risks. The Risk 
Management Strategy/Policy gives guidance on scoring risks. 

Risk assessments can be clinical and non-clinical. Risks that cannot be controlled 
adequately at local level are escalated to directorate level and used to populate their 
directorate risk register. Directorate risk registers are reviewed at Directorate governance 
meetings are also used to inform/prioritise the budget setting process.  
 
With the implementation of a new Risk Management Strategy and Policy during the latter 
part of 2013 risk register entries are now collected, reviewed and updated electronically. This 
facilitates risk moderation and escalation more efficiently and is driving greater transparency 
and appreciation of risks at all levels of the organisation. This will continue to develop during 
2013/14. 
 
Incident reporting   
 
The Trust has a comprehensive single incident reporting system, which is well established in 
the organisation. Reports from incidents are provided to the directorates and specific Trust 
committees as an aid to planning future improvements and thus preventing similar incidents 
from re-occurring. Incidents are reviewed and investigated accordingly and for those that are 
graded serious, a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) is undertaken.  
 
Reports of these RCA’s and action plans are considered at the Clinical Risk and Trust 
Health and Safety Committees.  The GRMC receives an incident report and dashboard at 
every meeting. The Trust Board receives a monthly report of new serious incidents and 
progress of actions of previous serious incidents. All patient safety incidents are reported 
electronically to the NHS Commissioning Board via the National Learning Reporting Scheme 
(NLRS). Serious incidents are also reported to the Strategic Health Authority and Primary 
Care Trusts. Incidents meeting the criteria of the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and 
Dangerous Occurrence Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR) are reported to the Incident Contact 
Centre.  
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Organisational Risk Profile 
During the 2012/13 financial year the following high risks have been identified for GRMC or 
Board review, either through the former BAF or Corporate Risk Register or the Board Risk 
and Assurance Register and managed as outlined below; 
 

High Risks (pre-mitigation 
actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year 
End? 

Failure to sustain Emergency 
Department 4 hour waiting 
targets and poor patient 
experience as a 
consequence 

 A recovery plan is in place.  The NBT plan sits 
alongside plans of other providers in the BNSSG 
system and there is an increasingly joined up 
approach to delivery.  The plan brings forward the 
implementation of several processes that will only 
be fully operational in the new hospital.  These 
include: 

o Extended 7 day working 
o Adoption of the CARE programme 
o Integration of the surgical and medical assessment 

units to produce a combined unit 
o Improved internal controls 
o Strengthened partnership working 

 Risk mitigation plans 
ongoing in conjunction 
with local health service 
partners.  

 Current performance 
remains unacceptable. 

No delivery of trajectory for 
C-Difficile infection rates 

 The Infection Prevention and Control Team analyse 
each case to determine appropriate actions with 
continued focus on review of antibiotics and PPI 
prescribing.  

 Collaborative work being undertaken with 
commissioning colleagues across the BNSSG heath 
community. 

 Risk mitigation plans 
ongoing. Annual 
trajectory was exceeded. 

Competition  may reduce 
Trust’s income projections 
for its IBP 

 Plans for service changes with local organisations 
continue 

 Worst scenario included in IBP 
 

 Risk mitigated to an 
acceptable level. 

Risk of efficiency savings 
not being delivered over next 
three years 

 EY commissioned to facilitate identification of further 
savings 

 Monthly directorate Executive Review Meetings, 
facilitated by PMO review. 

 ‘Road to 2014’ programme management approach 
to savings particularly for schemes that cut across a 
number of different directorates. 

 Quality Impact assessment ensures that service 
changes are clinically safe. 

 Risk remains at same 
level 
 
 

Scale and pace of workforce 
change causes uncertainty 
and/or excessive work 
pressure with consequent 
impact on staff morale, 
stress levels and 
performance 

 Consultation and communication with staff and staff 
side. 

 Workforce and OD strategy and work programme in 
place, overseen by Workforce and OD Strategy and 
Governance Committee. 

 Hotspots within staff survey result tackled by 
directorate, area or issue driven through Staff 
Engagement Group chaired by CEO with NED 
representation. 

 Risk mitigation plans 
ongoing. Staff Survey 
2012 recently received 
and provides ongoing 
concern in this area.  

Failure to deliver necessary 
service changes to operate 
effectively in new hospital 

 Operating Plan delivery has been aligned within 
Move project board with specific responsibility for 
delivery allocated to COO. Programme 
Management resource measurement has been 
identified. 

 Risk mitigated 

Potential delay or failure to 
realise Frenchay land sale 
receipts 

 Engagement with stakeholders to identify 
commissioning intentions and LA planning views. 

 Frenchay project board and associated governance 
mechanisms. 

 Financial mitigation strategies for cash flow impact 
of any delayed sale and/or change in sale value 

 Engagement with local and national planning 
authorities to anticipate and respond to queries or 
concerns raised during the application process. 

 Mitigation actions not due 
to take effect until end 
April 2013  

Uncertainties around 
commissioning requirements 
for rehab bed provision 
could mean services are not 
optimised for patients or the 
Trust  

 Interim solution for rehab beds under discussion 

 External support engaged to review service 
requirements and forward plans with key 
stakeholders 

 FT project board and acute services review have 
oversight of changes in IBP assumptions that the 
changing service model requires 

 Risks mitigated 

Inability to ensure 
sustainability of SG 
Community health services 

 Re-procurement process currently in progress 

 Stakeholder engagement to optimise financial and 
clinical service options 
 

 Risks mitigated 
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High Risks (pre-mitigation 
actions) 

Key Actions to Reduce Risk Risk Mitigated at Year 
End? 

Risk that volume of changes 
and interim appointments in 
executive team weakens 
leadership and adversely 
impacts organisational 
performance. 

 Interim appointments made to CEO, Director of 
Nursing and Director of Finance to sustain capacity 
through to permanent appointments in light of 
merger discussions. 

 Permanent appointments made to Chief Operating 
Officer, Director of Strategy & Planning and Director 
of Finance (joins NBT June 2013). 

 Interim support commissioned for performance 
management of change & executive review of 
directorates and cross-cutting improvement themes. 

 Full mitigation to be 
achieved once permanent 
CEO appointment is 
made. Process 
commenced April 2013. 

Trust fails to deliver its 
Operating Plan due to poor 
co-ordination and alignment 
of the major transformational 
agenda it is pursuing.  

 Programme Management Office established to co-
ordinate and map interdependencies across major 
change programme. 

 Critical path mapped to articulate in simple form to 
internal and external stakeholders and against 
which progress will be managed. 

 Active engagement of trust frontline staff (e.g. the 
Move programme leads) seeking to involve them at 
an appropriate stage of each key project. 

 Risks mitigated insofar as 
the critical path and PMO 
infrastructure 
requirements are now in 
place. They have yet to 
fully bed. 

 
Information Governance 
 

 As Accountable Officer I receive comprehensive and reliable assurance from a range 
of sources including managers, internal audit and periodic external audits that 
information governance risks are being managed effectively.  

 There have been no reported lapses of data security in 2012/13. 

 I can also confirm that the Trust is compliant with the NHS Information Governance 
Toolkit self-assessment requirements in achieving a satisfactory grade with Level 2 
achieved against all 45 requirements at 31st March 2013. 
 
 

5. Review of Effectiveness of risk management and internal control 
 
As Accountable Officer, I have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
Firstly, I can confirm that the system of internal control has been in place in North Bristol 
NHS Trust for the full year ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the 
Annual Report and Accounts.  
 
The detail of my review is informed in a number of ways, as follows; 

 Executive directors and managers within the organisation who have responsibility for 
the development and maintenance of the system of internal control provide me with 
assurance. 

 The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall arrangements 
for gaining assurance through the Board Assurance Framework and on the controls 
reviewed as part of the internal audit plan. The draft HIAO has not yet been provided 
but based upon informal discussion we anticipate that this will provide an opinion 
stating that “Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound 
system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are generally being applied consistently. However, some weakness in the 
design and in some cases inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of 
particular objectives at risk.” This is a sound assurance opinion, at the same level 
achieved for the past 6 years.  

 The BR&AR itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 
manage the risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives have been 
reviewed. 

 The Trust’s Quality Account is subject to review by Internal Audit and also to a 
formal External Auditor’s opinion; the outcomes of these are both reported to the 
Audit Committee. The external audit is also reported to the Quality Committee. 
Ongoing assurance on performance and data quality against the Trust’s Priority 
Aims for Quality Improvement is obtained through their inclusion in the monthly 
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Board Quality report and the prior scrutiny this receives. This information is also 
reviewed at the Trust’s Quality Committee with Clinical Directors and forms part of 
bi-monthly directorate performance reviews with the executive team. 

 
A range of internal and external assurances are considered, key examples being;  

 
Type Assurance Source 

 
External Assurances 
 

 

 NHS Litigation Authority assessments. In November 2011, the Trust was successful 
in obtaining level 2 compliance against the acute general standards. 

 The Trust was successful in being assessed at Level 3 in June 2012 for its Maternity 
services.  

 External Audit reports on the Trusts annual financial accounts, which were 
unqualified for 2011/12. 

 External Audit report on the Trusts Quality Account, which was unqualified for 
2011/12. 

 SAS 70 report on the operations run by Shared Business Services Ltd  

 SAS 70 report on the Electronic Staff Records system (ESR)  

 Annual patients’ survey and delivery of action plan 

 Annual staff survey and delivery of action plan 

 Care Quality Commission – planned and unannounced review programme and 
continuance of registration without conditions or enforcement actions  

 External review of the Monitor Quality Governance Framework by PwC 

 External review of the Board Governance Assurance Framework by Cap Gemini 

 Due Diligence reviews for Foundation Trust status (stages 1 & 2) by Deloitte 

 Quality and Governance reviews by Strategic Health Authority for Foundation Trust 
status 

 LINks – enter and view visit reports  

 Postgraduate Medical Education Training Board visits  

 HSE inspection visits  

 Strategic Health Authority (peer review visits)  

 Local Authorities – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees  

 National Clinical Audit reports  

 HMCIP visits 

 Medicines and Healthcare Products Agency 

 OFSTED inspections 

 Management Systems Organisations accreditation reviews, such as the British 
Standards Institute 

 

Internal Assurances 
 

 Reports received from internal audit  

 Clinical audit reports  

 Achievement of financial targets for 2012/13  

 Performance Management reports to the Trust Board 

 Quality reports to the Trust Board 

 Workforce & Organisational Development reports to the Trust Board 

 Programme & Project Management reports to the Trust board (e.g. Redevelopment 
programme, Building our Future) 

 Annual Quality Account 

 Governance & Risk Management Committee Assurance reports to Board  

 Audit Committee reports to Board 

 
 
 

6. Significant Issues 
 

Taking the guidance provided on the disclosure of ‘significant issues’ within the ‘Annual 
Governance Statements – Guidance’ letter issued by Janet Perry NHS Chief Financial 
Controller, on 31st January 2013, the Trust has outlined below information where this 
applies. 
 

Implementation of New Patient Record 

 

The Trust implemented a new electronic patient record system in December 2011. Most 
areas of the Trust went live without major difficulties but there were unexpected problems 
within outpatient appointments and Theatres. Systems were established to ensure that 
patient safety was not compromised and by the beginning of the year all outpatient activity 
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was being processed through the system. Work continued to further ‘bed the system in,’ with 
IT teams dealing with issues relating to specific clinics and staff getting used to the new 
system and new ways of working. 
 
An independent review was commissioned to assess the issues experienced and to ensure 
lessons were learned for the future and it reported to the Board in May 2012 with lessons 
learned for all projects. In addition, Internal Audit reviewed the governance that allowed a 
significant overspend against planned budget that was incurred during the post ‘go live’ 
period (December 11 to March 12), Its report was reviewed by the Trust’s Audit Committee 
in June 2012 and recommendations for controls on projects implemented. 
 

In light of the external and internal audits, the Trust Board introduced a revised Programme 
Management Office (PMO) function to provide independent scrutiny of significant in-house 
programmes, such as Cerner. In addition a new Clinical IT Systems Board was established 
under clinical leadership, supported by a new role of Chief Clinical Information Officer. This 
will ensure that future IT projects are directly clinically led and governed. 

There have been continued problems with the validity of data that the Cerner system reports, 
particularly regarding incomplete pathways. The SHA requested that this information not be 
reported in monthly returns because its lack of accuracy could affect regional and national 
figures without justification. Validation, however, has continued and from April 2013 the data 
will be reported nationally.  

 

Emergency Department Performance 

The target of patients waiting no more four hours in the ED prior to either admission or 
discharge has been achieved in only two months of the year. Performance has been subject 
to a formal letter from the PCT and the Department has been visited by staff from the 
Department of Health, the SHA and the PCTs.  

The latest recovery plan was put into place from 1st February and is supported in principle by 
commissioners but not fully agreed contractually. Comparison with local providers shows 
that there is pressure on the local system and poor levels of performance in relation to the 
national standard. ED attendances have increased since early February possibly influenced 
by the introduction of the NHS 111 service and the transfer of the provider of GP out of 
hours service.  

February’s performance was an improvement on the previous two months but March has 
seen a deterioration. The full effect of the initial actions within the Trust’s recovery plan are 
not expected to take place until April. 

Clostridium difficile – Performance against Trajectory 

 

C.Difficile continues to be an area of significant concern with the Trust’s end of year target 

breached in January and total for the financial year of 84 against a target of 61. 

There is continued focus on the basics of infection control, cleaning, antibiotic prescribing 
and PPI prescribing. Cross infection in the Trust remains rare.  In addition an epidemiology 
study is being undertaken in partnership with the Health Protection Agency. 
 

The 2013/14 target will be a further reduction to a maximum of 42 cases and the Infection 
Prevention and Control team are considering what additional actions can be taken to reduce 
C.Diff prevalence further, with particular emphasis of collaborative work being undertaken 
with commissioning colleagues across the BNSSG heath community. 
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Serious Incidents – ‘Never Events’ 

The Department of Health lists very serious, preventable patient safety incidents that ideally 
should not occur if the relevant preventative measures have been put in place. These are 
called ‘never events’. Two ‘never events’ occurred in the Trust during 2012/13: 

 
1. Wrong Site Surgery  

A surgical intervention was performed on the wrong section of bowel in a patient who was 
admitted as an emergency.  The patient had a terminal condition and had been operated on 
in another hospital. The operation was laparoscopic so it was not apparent where the colon 
was obstructed. The patient was fully informed of the incident and accepted a formal 
apology. A full investigation was carried out. 

Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident  

 Relevant notes were not available at the emergency - All cases of inflammatory 
disease to have histopathology/radiology reviewed prior to surgery with results 
available to surgeon 

 The surgeon was frequently interrupted during the procedure. No  phones or bleeps 
now allowed in the theatre during surgery 

 
2. Wrong Site Surgery  

A minor surgical biopsy was performed on the wrong facial lesion in a patient who had a 
number of lesions on the face which were close together. From outpatient referral to the 
point of surgery the lesions had changed in shape & size & the surgeon took the clinical 
decision to biopsy the more serious of the presenting lesions, rather than the one identified 
in outpatients. The patient was fully informed of the incident. A full investigation was carried 
out. 

Lessons learnt and changes made as a result of this incident  

 The outpatient process used line drawings which were difficult to interpret. The 
process has been changed to use photographs instead. 

 Recognition that lesions can change shape and size between appointments, so 
important to communicate with patients on any changes that have altered from initial 
treatment plans discussed with patient. 

 

Signed …………………………………….. 
 
Marie-Noelle Orzel, Chief Executive 
 
North Bristol NHS Trust 

Date:   ..…………………………………. 
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Appendices (list if applicable):  Appendix A – Annual Governance Statement  

Executive Summary:  

The Trust’s Annual Governance Statement for 2012/13 is attached for approval, following 
which it will be submitted with the annual accounts and subsequently incorporated within 
the Trust’s Annual report.  
 
Review Process 
 
The first draft was reviewed at GRMC on 8th April at which a number of updates were 
requested.  
 

The Audit Committee, which is the responsible Board committee for reviewing the AGS, 
approved the updated version for submission to the Strategic Health Authority (local 
management team) on 16th April 2013.  This was issued on 19th April 2013, ahead of the 
deadline.  

The AGS included the Head of Internal Audit opinion which stated that; 
 

“Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system of internal 
control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally 
being applied consistently. However, some weakness in the design and in some cases 
inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk.”  
This is a sound assurance opinion, at the same level achieved for the past 5 years.  
 
The Trust’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, were provided with a copy of the draft 
statement on 16th April 2013 and confirmed that their review would consider this as part of 
the overall audit process, with formal feedback only given by exception. No comments 
have been received.  
 
Organisational Risk profile (within section 4)  
 
Risks have been identified from the Board Risk & Assurance Register, identifying those 
that have featured as high risks during the year. The table also provides a high level 
‘position statement’ on whether these have been reduced at the year-end. As required, a 
specific section on Information Governance has been included and confirmed with the 
Trust’s Information Governance lead.  
 
Significant issues’ (section 6) 
 
Six disclosures have been made, applying the criteria set out in the overall AGS guidance. 
The Audit Committee & Governance & Risk Management Committee have both been 
provided with that guidance and have agreed the inclusion and wording of each one. 

To ensure consistency the wording used for the 3 ‘Never Events’ is identical to that used 
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within the Trust’s Quality Account. 

 

Action Required:  

The Trust Board is requested to review and approve the Annual Governance Statement 
for 2012/13. 

 

Key Risks: Inaccurate or unsubstantiated statements in the AGS 
would damage the Trust’s reputation if publically 
identified and challenged. 

Impact on Patients: None 

Impact on Staff: None 

Link to Trust Objectives:  Covers all Trust objectives. 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

All regulatory requirements are generally relevant. 

NHS Constitution: All regulatory requirements are generally relevant. 

Financial Issues: Reflected within relevant risks. 

Legal/regulatory Issues: Managed within overall systems of internal control 

Equality Issues considered: Not relevant for this Statement 
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North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended
31 March 2013

2012-13 2011-12
NOTE £000 £000

Gross employee benefits 9.1 (340,799) (332,030)
Other costs 7 (200,848) (251,819)
Revenue from patient care activities 4 454,937 442,828
Other Operating revenue 5 74,959 76,602
Operating Deficit (11,751) (64,419)

Investment revenue 11 88 48
Other gains 12 26 99
Finance costs 13 (1,731) (1,872)
Deficit for the financial year (13,368) (66,144)
Public dividend capital dividends payable (4,483) (6,427)
Retained deficit for the year (17,851) (72,571)

Other Comprehensive Income 2012-13 2011-12
£000 £000

Impairments and reversals 0 (5)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 2,410 1,058
Total comprehensive income for the year (15,441) (71,518)

Financial performance for the year
Retained deficit for the year (17,851) (72,571)
IFRIC 12 adjustment 538 717
Impairments 22,864 79,362
Adjustment in respect of donated asset reserve elimination 1,451 1,494
Adjusted retained surplus 7,002 9,002

PDC dividend: balance receivable 290 200

The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this account.

A trust's adjusted retained surplus or deficit is derived from its retained surplus or deficit, but adjusted for the
following:

a) Impairments to fixed assets are not considered part of the organisations operational performance

b) The incremental revenue expenditure results from the application of IFRS to PFI. The revenue cost of
bringing PFI assets onto the balance sheet (due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10) needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury
measuring departmental expenditure. Therefore, the cost, which has no cash impact and is not chargeable
for overall budgeting purposes, should be reported as technical. The additional cost is not considered part of
the organisation's overall performance. This refers to the IFRIC 12 adjustment above.

c) When donated assets are received, income will be recognised equivalent to their value. The value of the
asset will then be depreciated over its useful life by means of a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (SoCI). Over the life of the asset the charge to the SoCI will be NIL, but in any particular year there
may be an imbalance. This imbalance is not considered part of the organisation's operational performance.



2

North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2013

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
NOTE £000s £000s

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 14.1 186,664 216,191
Intangible assets 14.5 1,000 1,463
Total non-current assets 187,664 217,654
Current assets:
Inventories 17 8,148 7,512
Trade and other receivables 18.1 21,979 21,965
Other financial assets 0 0
Other current assets 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 19 39,201 28,300
Total current assets 69,328 57,777
Non-current assets held for sale 0 0
Total current assets 69,328 57,777
Total assets 256,992 275,431

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (54,773) (55,906)
Other liabilities 0 0
Provisions 24 (3,530) (4,033)
Borrowings 21 0 0
Other financial liabilities 0 0
Working capital loan from Department 21 (900) (900)
Capital loan from Department 21 (520) (520)
Total current liabilities (59,723) (61,359)
Non-current assets less net current assets/liabilities 197,269 214,072

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (1,970) (2,106)
Other Liabilities 0 0
Provisions 24 (1,516) (1,831)
Borrowings 21 (9,456) (8,947)
Other financial liabilities 0 0
Working capital loan from Department 21 (11,690) (12,590)
Capital loan from Department 21 (10,660) (11,180)
Total non-current liabilities (35,292) (36,654)
Total Assets Employed: 161,977 177,418

FINANCED BY:
TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
Public Dividend Capital 211,744 211,744
Retained earnings (133,742) (117,507)
Revaluation reserve 83,975 83,181
Total Taxpayers' Equity: 161,977 177,418

      
The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this account.

The financial statements on pages 1 to 37 were approved by the Board on  [date] and signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive: Date:
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Public 
Dividend 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Total 
reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2012 211,744 (117,507) 83,181 177,418
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2012-13
Retained deficit for the year 0 (17,851) 0 (17,851)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 0 0 2,410 2,410
Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0
Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0
Transfers between reserves 0 1,616 (1,616) 0
Net recognised expense for the year 0 (16,235) 794 (15,441)
Balance at 31 March 2013 211,744 (133,742) 83,975 161,977

Balance at 1 April 2011 209,644 (47,107) 84,299 246,836
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 March 2012
Retained deficit for the year 0 (72,571) 0 (72,571)
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant, equipment 0 0 1,058 1,058
Impairments and reversals 0 0 (5) (5)
Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0
Transfers between reserves 0 2,171 (2,171) 0
New PDC Received 2,100 0 0 2,100
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 2,100 (70,400) (1,118) (69,418)
Balance at 31 March 2012 211,744 (117,507) 83,181 177,418
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013

2012-13 2011-12
NOTE £000s £000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating Deficit (11,751) (64,419)
Depreciation and Amortisation 22,107 22,434
Impairments and Reversals 22,864 79,545
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash (344) (325)
Interest Paid (1,135) (1,305)
Dividend Paid (4,573) (6,517)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (636) 143
Increase in Trade and Other Receivables (14) (2,582)
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade and Other Payables (442) 7,139
Provisions Utilised (1,628) (675)
Increase in Provisions 770 3,538
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 25,218 36,976

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 131 48
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment (13,273) (10,598)
Payments for Intangible Assets (100) (97)
Proceeds of disposal of assets 345 524
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (12,897) (10,123)

NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING 12,321 26,853

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Public Dividend Capital Received 0 2,100
Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal (520) (520)
Loans repaid to DH -Revenue Support Loans (900) (4,940)
Capital grants and other capital receipts 0 325
Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities (1,420) (3,035)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,901 23,818

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Period 28,300 4,482
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in the Balance of Cash Held in Foreign 
Currencies 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents at year end 39,201 28,300
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet
the accounting requirements of the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM
Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
2012-13 NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies
contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the NHS Trusts Manual for Accounts permits a choice of
accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular
circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The
particular policies adopted by the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in
dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.  

1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets
and financial liabilities.

1.2 Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector.
Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be
‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.3 Transforming Community Services (TCS) transactions
The trust has not been involved in any transfers of services under Transforming Community Services
(TCS) in the current financial year.

1.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
Where key judgements and estimates have been made, this is noted in the appropriate note to the
accounts in which the value associated with the judgement or estimate is shown.

In the application of the Trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

1.4.1 Critical judgements in applying the accounting policies
During the financial year, the trust made a critical judgement regarding the expected life of one of the
trust's largest single buildings, the Avon Orthopaedic Centre (AOC). This building is expected to be
vacated in 2014 when the services it provides are transferred to the new, PFI funded hospital at
Southmead. In light of the revised expected life for the building, its value has been reduced to reflect
this. The effect of the reduction, and the new value are detailed in note 14 on non-current assets.

1.4.2 Key Sources of estimation uncertainty
The key estimates made by the trust in preparing these accounts relate to three main areas: the accrual 
of the cost of annual leave earned but not taken, the valuation of partially completed spells and the
valuation of property assets during the year. Provisions by their nature have an element of uncertainty,
and these are detailed in note 24.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

The accrual for annual leave has been based on a sample of leave carried from one financial year into
another by a selection of staff including most staff groups and departments and is discusse din note
1.6. Estimates of partially completed spells are discussed in note 1.5 and valuation changes are
discussed in note 14.

1.5 Revenue  
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance
occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of revenue
for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services. Revenue relating to patient care spells that
are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis of length of
stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay. The debtor recognised
for the partially completed spells is £3,690K (2011-12 £3,642K).

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income
is deferred.

The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost
of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g.
by an insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of
Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation claim.
The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a
provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

1.6 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is
received from employees. The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period
is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry forward
leave into the following period The cost of this leave is £4,128K (2011-12 £4,106K).

Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and
other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme
is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying
scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by
the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

1.7 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have
been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.
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1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the
trust;
● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or
● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more
than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase
dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit,
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly
different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own
useful economic lives.

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are measured
subsequently at fair value.

Land and buildings used for the trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that
would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined as follows:

● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use
● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

Until 31 March 2009, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has been estimated for
an exact replacement of the asset in its present location. HM Treasury has adopted a standard
approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it
would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.  

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less
any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as
expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and
depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and Fittings are carried at current cost, as estimated by the use of an indexation factor. This 
factor has been derived from the government's regularly published GDP deflator figures. This 
information can be expected to be available for the forseeable future and so the trust will continue with 
the current basis of valuation.
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An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an
impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does
not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to
the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter,
to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be
taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other
comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly
attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original
specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is
written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.9 Intangible assets

Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale
separately from the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.
They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the
cost is at least £5,000.  

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to
the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item
of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for
example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not
capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-
generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it
● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential
● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset 
and sell or use it
● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 
development

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market,
or, where no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis),
indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value. Internally-developed software is held at
historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological
advances.  
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1.10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property,
plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated
useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the
assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the Trust expects to obtain
economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the Trust and may be shorter
than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each
year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives 

At each reporting period end, the trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or
intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment
loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and,
if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is
recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on
the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear
consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the
recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been no
initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of
the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME) from 2011-12. This is necessary to comply with Treasury's budgeting guidance.
DEL limits are set in the Spending Review and Departments may not exceed the limits that they have
been set. AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to
the Budget. Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform Treasury if they expect AME
spending to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME inherent volatility
may mean departments do not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial
year, any expected increases in AME require Treasury approval.

1.11 Donated assets
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a donated asset
reserve is no longer maintained. Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on
receipt, with a matching credit to Income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described
above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are as
described above for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached
to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the brought forward
balances have been restated.
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1.12 Government grants 
Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a government grant
reserve is no longer maintained. The value of assets received by means of a government grant are
credited directly to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant
preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the brought forward
balances have been restated.

1.13 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met when
the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and
management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is open market value
including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the
balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. 

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as
held for sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. The asset
is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.14 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the
lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching
liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus or deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and
individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases. 
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The trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
trust’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.15 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes
where the government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service concession arrangements, following the
principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of
property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the
contract are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate
estimation techniques where necessary:
a)      Payment for the fair value of services received;
b)      Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and
c)      Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle
replacement’.

Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings
within ‘operating expenses’.

PFI Asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets
are measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets
are measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the Trust’s approach for each
relevant class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at
the same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease
liability in accordance with IAS 17. 

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening
lease liability for the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet
the annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the
finance lease. In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments,
but is instead treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a
finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are
capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time
they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for
each year of the contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the
lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or
prepayment is recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the
difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater
than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred
income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the
shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

The trust has two PFI schemes which are not recorded on the Statement of Financial Position as they
do not meet the criteria for disclosure. In these instances costs are recognised as they are incurred,
and these costs are charged in full to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

1.16 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost
formula. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of
stocks.  

1.17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management.

1.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM
Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms (2.35% for post employment provisions).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it.
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A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

1.19 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an
annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution
is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases the legal liability remains with the trust. The total value of clinical negligence
provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the trust is disclosed at note 24. 

1.20 Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.
Both are risk pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation
Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership
contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating
expenses as and when they become due.

1.21 EU Emissions Trading Scheme
EU Emission Trading Scheme allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible
assets if they are not expected to be realised within twelve months, and otherwise as other current
assets. They are valued at open market value. As the NHS body makes emissions, a provision is
recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of
the allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end
of the reporting period.

1.22 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is
remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.23 Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in 
the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.  
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Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss; held to maturity investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

1.24 Financial liabilities  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the trust becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the
goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has
been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities
are initially recognised at fair value.

1.25 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply
and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is
charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.26 Foreign currencies
The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a
foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are
recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.27 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the
accounts since the trust has no beneficial interest in them. Details of third party assets are given in
Note 34 to the accounts.

1.28 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust. At any time the Secretary of State
can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the value
received. As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity
financial instrument.

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of
Health as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury
(currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities, except for donated assets
and cash balances with the Office of the Paymaster General.  The average carrying amount of assets is 
calculated as a simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.

1.29 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed
funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not
arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of
payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.
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Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an
accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had NHS
trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal
revenue expenditure).

1.30 Subsidiaries
From 2010-11 in accordance with the directed accounting policy from the Secretary of State, the trust
does not consolidate the NHS charitable funds for which it is the corporate trustee.

1.31 Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred,
except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can
reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits
expected and is amortised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis
over the period expected to benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost.
The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

1.32 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations , or updates thereof,
to be applied in 2012-13. The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact
on the accounts for 2012-13, were they applied in that year:

IAS 19 (revised 2011) Employee Benefits
IAS 27 Seperate Financial Statements - subject to consultation 
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Subject to consultation
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation  - subject to consultation
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements  - subject to consultation
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements  - subject to consultation
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  - subject to consultation
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation
IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement - subject to consultation

2. Operating segments
The trust has a number of directorates, all of which operate in the healthcare segment. These
directorates are used for internal management purposes and divide the healthcare and other services
of the trust into various medical and surgical specialties. While these are reported on internally for
financial and activity purposes, they have been consolidated into trust wide figures for these accounts.
The trust receives income from a number of healthcare commissioners, which are under the common
control of the Department of Health. The bodies involved and the respective income levels are
disclosed in note 31 to these accounts on transactions with related parties.
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3.    Income generation activities
The trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in 
patient care.  The following provides details of income generation activities whose full cost exceeded 
£1m.

Summary Table - aggregate of all schemes Restated
2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Income 4,641 5,021
Full cost 3,913 4,118
Surplus/(deficit) 728 903

Catering sales to the public from restaurants on Southmead and Frenchay sites.
Restated

2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Income 1,503 1,444
Full cost 1,816 1,647
Deficit (313) (203)

The financial objective of the restaurant is to cover the costs of the activity.

2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Income 3,138 3,577
Full cost 2,097 2,471
Surplus 1,041 1,106

The financial objective of the fertility unit is to create surpluses to support NHS activity.

4.   Revenue from patient care activities 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Primary Care Trusts - tariff 232,136 214,882 
Primary Care Trusts - non-tariff 193,520 200,751 
Primary Care Trusts - market forces factor 18,377 17,029 
Non-NHS: 
      Private patients 4,718 5,214 
      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 347 161 
      Injury costs recovery 2,767 2,181 
      Other 3,072 2,610 
Total Revenue from patient care activities 454,937 442,828 

Provision of fertility services under the trading name 'Bristol Centre for Reproductive Medicine'
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5.  Other operating revenue 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Education, training and research 30,651 29,588
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure - NHS 120 120
Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions - NHS Charity 344 325
Non-patient care services to other bodies 8,027 7,751
Income generation 4,503 4,230
Other revenue 31,314 34,588
Total Other Operating Revenue 74,959 76,602

Total operating revenue 529,896 519,430

6.  Revenue
Revenue is almost totally from the supply of services.  Revenue from the sale of goods is immaterial.

7.  Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Services from other NHS trusts 869 1,390
Services from PCTs 3,622 5,517
Services from foundation trusts 3,353 4,065
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies 5,721 1,911
Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors 63 62
Supplies and services - clinical 88,391 83,691
Supplies and services - general 6,679 5,074
Consultancy services 2,911 1,736
Establishment 5,311 5,447
Transport 1,076 662
Premises 20,266 23,311
Impairments and Reversals of Receivables 590 305
Inventories write down 0 221
Depreciation 21,544 21,873
Amortisation 563 561
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 22,864 79,545
Audit fees 136 191
Clinical negligence scheme contribution 8,605 8,561
Research and development (excluding staff costs) 1,377 1,012
Education and Training 1,595 1,338
Other 5,312 5,346
Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 200,848 251,819

Employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding Board members 339,516 330,656
Board members 1,283 1,374
Total employee benefits 340,799 332,030

Total operating expenses 541,647 583,849

Other revenue includes income of £8,600K (2011-12 £14,857K) received to offset the costs of the new hospital
development including additional depreciation charges incurred. It also includes income from Avon & Wiltshire
Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust of £2,015K (2011-12 £2,489K) relating to the use of facilities on the North
Bristol NHS Trust sites.
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8 Operating Leases
The trust leases various equipment throughout the year to support the provision of healthcare

2012-13
8.1 Trust as lessee Total 2011-12

£000s £000s
Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 1,014 1,891
Contingent rents 0 0
Sub-lease payments 0 0
Total 1,014 1,891
Payable:
No later than one year 160 165
Between one and five years 2,377 2,259
After five years 0 1,246
Total 2,537 3,670

8.2 Trust as lessor

9 Employee benefits and staff numbers

9.1 Employee benefits

Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure £000s £000s £000s
Salaries and wages 289,141 259,196 29,945 
Social security costs 20,168 20,168 0 
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 31,316 31,316 0 
Other pension costs 0 0 0 
Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 
Other employment benefits 0 0 0 
Termination benefits 1,292 1,292 0 
Total employee benefits 341,917 311,972 29,945 

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 
Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 341,917 311,972 29,945 

Employee costs capitalised 1,118 686 432 
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 340,799 311,286 29,513 

2012-13

The trust has an arrangement in which it acts as lessor to the University of Bristol, which occupies
accomodation within the trust's Learning and Research Building. The University made a financial contribution
to the development of the building in the financial year 2009-10. This is recorded as deferred income and is
being released to income over the life of the lease agreement which is 41 years beginning in the final quarter
of 2009-10. The income recognised in 2012-13 is £107,000 (2011-12 £110,000).
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Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Gross Employee Benefits & Net expenditure 2011-12 £000s £000s £000s
Salaries and wages 283,446 258,248 25,198 
Social security costs 19,672 19,672 0 
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 30,598 30,598 0 
Other pension costs 0 0 0 
Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 
Other employment benefits 0 0 0 
Termination benefits 988 988 0 
TOTAL - including capitalised costs 334,704 309,506 25,198 
Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 
Total - Net Employee Benefits including capitalised costs 334,704 309,506 25,198 
Recognised as
Employee costs capitalised 2,612 
Net Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 332,092 

9.2 Staff Numbers 2011-12

Total
Permanently 

employed Other Total
Number Number Number Number

Average Staff Numbers
Medical and dental 832 819 13 817 
Ambulance staff 0 0 0 0 
Administration and estates 1,675 1,547 128 1,686 
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 1,594 1,178 416 1,498 
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 2,507 2,342 165 2,431 
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0 0 0 0 
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 1,508 1,498 10 1,529 
Social Care Staff 0 0 0 0 
Other 0 0 0 0 
TOTAL 8,117 7,384 733 7,961 

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 42 23 19 58 

9.3  Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
2012-13 2011-12
Number Number

Total Days Lost 71,102 68,402
Total Staff Years 7,398 7,330
Average working Days Lost 9.6 9.3

2012-13 2011-12
Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 12 11 

£000s £000s
Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 400 510 

2012-13

The sickness figures given above are provided on a calender year basis rather than financial year, this is in line
with DH guidance to ensure consistency across the NHS.
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9.4 Exit Packages agreed in 2012-13

2012-13 2011-12

Exit package cost band (including any special 
payment element)

*Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

*Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number 
of exit 

packages by 
cost band

*Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

*Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages by 

cost band

Number Number Number Number Number Number
Less than £10,000 0 3 3 13 3 16
£10,001-£25,000 1 8 9 8 1 9
£25,001-£50,000 1 13 14 7 4 11
£50,001-£100,000 1 4 5 1 5 6
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 - £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total number of exit packages by type (total cost 3 28 31 29 13 42

Total resource cost (£000s) 115 879 994 508 480 988

Compulsory redundancy costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS scheme. Other departures are paid under the Terms of the
SHA wide Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) as managed by the trust. This note provides an analysis of exit packages agreed in the year.
Where the trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the NHS pensions scheme. Ill health retirement costs
are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages taken by staff leaving in the year. Note: The expense associated with these departures may
have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
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9.5 Pension costs [to update - details from NHS BSA]
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits
payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies,
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run
in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from
those that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the
period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An

   
a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting
period. Actuarial assessments are undertaken in intervening years between formal valuations using updated
membership data and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The
valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2013, is based on the valuation data as 31 March 2012, updated to
31 March 2013 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the
methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury 

   
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts
can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website.  Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme
(taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending
31 March 2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial valuation would have been due for the year ending 31 March
2008. However, formal actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended by HM Treasury
on value for money grounds while consideration is given to recent changes to public service pensions, and while
future scheme terms are developed as part of the reforms to public service pension provision due in 2015.

The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health,
with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate
employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate. 

The next formal valuation to be used for funding purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 and will be used
to inform the contribution rates to be used from 1 April 2015

c) Scheme provisions 
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide
only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be
met before these benefits can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of
the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of
reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations
have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
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10 Better Payment Practice Code

10.1 Measure of compliance 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12 2011-12
Number £000s Number £000s

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 89,213 145,304 85,730 129,346
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 80,916 127,458 80,307 120,457

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 90.70% 87.72% 93.67% 93.13%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 3,015 40,091 2,874 36,216
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 1,995 31,841 2,177 31,340

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 66.17% 79.42% 75.75% 86.54%

10.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

0 0
0 0

Total 0 0

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax
free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension
commutation”.

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 
days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by
the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC)
providers.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently
incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s
pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are
based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From
2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).
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11 Investment Income 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Interest Income
Bank interest 88 48
Subtotal 88 48

Total investment income 88 48

12  Other Gains and Losses 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Gain on disposal of assets 26 99

Total 26 99

13  Finance Costs 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Interest
   Interest on loans and overdrafts 1,132 1,293

Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:
    - main finance cost 559 527

Total interest expense 1,691 1,820
Provisions - unwinding of discount 40 52
Total  1,731 1,872
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14.1 Property, plant and equipment

2012-13

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2012 68,098 191,967 3,761 5,074 82,608 2,553 40,581 6,286 400,928
Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 5,695 0 0 0 0 5,695
Additions Purchased 120 1,538 150 0 2,299 0 2,547 97 6,751
Additions Donated 0 0 0 0 344 0 0 0 344
Reclassifications 0 2,136 0 (2,259) 387 (7) (250) (7) 0
Disposals 0 0 0 (319) 0 0 0 0 (319)
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 1,733 66 0 2,112 66 0 162 4,139
At 31 March 2013 68,218 197,374 3,977 8,191 87,750 2,612 42,878 6,538 417,538

Depreciation
At 1 April 2012 13,040 75,580 1,744 2,418 56,840 2,163 27,901 5,051 184,737
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 1,535 58 0 136 1,729
Impairments 0 19,564 0 0 432 0 2,868 0 22,864
Charged During the Year 0 12,942 153 4,538 91 3,543 277 21,544
At 31 March 2013 13,040 108,086 1,897 2,418 63,345 2,312 34,312 5,464 230,874
Net Book Value at 31 March 2013 55,178 89,288 2,080 5,773 24,405 300 8,566 1,074 186,664

Purchased 55,178 85,983 2,054 5,773 20,635 300 8,549 1,074 179,546
Donated 0 3,305 26 0 3,770 0 17 0 7,118
Total at 31 March 2013 55,178 89,288 2,080 5,773 24,405 300 8,566 1,074 186,664

Asset financing:
Owned 55,178 82,894 2,080 5,773 24,405 300 8,566 1,074 180,270
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 6,394 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,394
Total at 31 March 2013 55,178 89,288 2,080 5,773 24,405 300 8,566 1,074 186,664

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Land Buildings Dwellings Assets under 

construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1 April 2012 37,886 43,077 1,223 0 995 0 0 0 83,181
Movements (specify) 0 716 134 0 (56) 0 0 0 794
At 31 March 2013 37,886 43,793 1,357 0 939 0 0 0 83,975

Additions to Assets Under Construction in 2012-13 £000's
Buildings excl Dwellings 3,724
Plant & Machinery 1,971
Balance as at YTD 5,695
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14.2 Property, plant and equipment prior-year

2011-12

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2011 68,103 186,901 3,761 3,262 78,060 2,361 36,072 6,109 384,629
Additions - purchased 0 3,995 0 2,672 1,959 124 4,509 0 13,259
Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 325 0 0 0 325
Reclassifications 0 860 0 (860) 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation & indexation gains 0 211 0 0 2,264 68 0 177 2,720
Impairments (5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5)
At 31 March 2012 68,098 191,967 3,761 5,074 82,608 2,553 40,581 6,286 400,928

Depreciation
At 1 April 2011 0 0 0 0 50,485 2,037 24,517 4,623 81,662
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 1,464 59 0 134 1,657
Impairments 13,040 63,980 1,580 2,418 411 0 0 0 81,429
Reversal of Impairments 0 (1,884) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,884)
Charged During the Year 0 13,484 164 0 4,480 67 3,384 294 21,873
At 31 March 2012 13,040 75,580 1,744 2,418 56,840 2,163 27,901 5,051 184,737
Net book value at 31 March 2012 55,058 116,387 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 216,191

Purchased 55,058 111,994 1,990 2,656 21,539 390 12,655 1,235 207,517
Donated 0 4,393 27 0 4,229 0 25 0 8,674
Total at 31 March 2012 55,058 116,387 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 216,191

Asset financing:
Owned 55,058 109,942 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 209,746
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 6,445 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,445
Total at 31 March 2012 55,058 116,387 2,017 2,656 25,768 390 12,680 1,235 216,191
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14.3 (cont). Property, plant and equipment

Economic Lives of Non-Current Assets Min Life Max Life
Years Years

Buildings exc Dwellings 1 83
Dwellings 1 25
Plant and Machinery 5 15
Transport Equipment 7 7
Information Technology 5 10
Furniture and Fittings 7 10

14.4  Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2012-13 2012-13 2011-12
Total Total
£000s £000s

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 79,545
Other 22,846 0
Total charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income 22,846 79,545

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 5
Total charged to Revalauation reserve 0 5

Total Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve 0 5
Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL 0 79,545
Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME 22,846 0
Overall Total Impairments 22,846 79,550

As recorded in note 8.2 the trust acts as lessor in an arrangement for the University of Bristol to occupy
space within the trust's Learning and Research Building. Owing to the nature of the building and the space
occupied by the trust and university, it is difficult to split the values between trust and university elements.

Of the assets included in the Trust Statement of Financial position, £850,000 (2010-11 £730,000) are
valued at Open Market Value.

All donated asset expenditure during the year has come from the trust's charitable funds.

The district valuer, a member of FRICS, undertook a full valuation of the trust's land and buildings as at 1st
April 2009. He has subsequently undertaken an assessment of the movement in values at each year end
including one as at 31st March 2013. These have been used to ensure that the values included in the
statement of financial position of the trust at those points are appropriate. The valuation in 2012-13 led to
an impairment charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income of £2.5m. 

During 2012-13 the trust has undertaken an impairment review of both the Southmead and Frenchay
hospital sites. This was triggered by the work that has been completed to determine which buildings will be
required following the completion of the new PFI funded hospital at Southmead when it opens in 2014.
Given the reduced operational life of these assets, this review has led to a reduction in the value of the
Avon Orthopaedic Centre on the Southmead site by £14.8m and the Frenchay site by £1.3m in the current
year.

The trust entered into a PFI concession arrangement in February 2010 with Carillion to provide a
substantial redevelopment of the Southmead site. This will provide a new hospital and associated buildings
with an estimated construction cost of £430m. When the new hospital comes into use in 2014, the trust will
record the hospital as a non-current asset and also record a liability equivalent to the construction cost.

In addition to the above two elements, there were a number of further impairments relating to assets
coming into use totaling £4.3m, creating a total impairment charge of £22,864K shown in the SoCI.
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14.5 Intangible non-current assets
Software 

purchased
Total Software 

purchased
Total 

£000's £000's £000s £000s
At 1st April 4,082 4,082 3,985 3,985
Additions - purchased 100 100 97 97
At 31 March 4,182 4,182 4,082 4,082

Amortisation
At 1st April 2,619 2,619 2,058 2,058
Charged during the year 563 563 561 561
At 31st March 3,182 3,182 2,619 2,619

Net Book Value at 31st March 1,000 1,000 1,463 1,463

Net Book Value at 31st March
Purchased 1,000 1,000 1,463 1,463
Total at 31st March 1,000 1,000 1,463 1,463

15  Commitments

15.1 Capital commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000s £000s

Property, plant and equipment 6,510 887
Intangible assets 0 0
Total 6,510 887

15.2 Other financial commitments 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000s £000s

Not later than one year 2,194 2,317
Later than one year and not later than five year 7,906 10,667
Later than five years 0 0
Total 10,100 12,984

All of the trust's intangible assets are purchased software and are amortised over a period of between 5 and 10
years depending on the advised software life. With all assets having a finite life, revaluations do not take place
unless there is a major change deemed in the remaining useful life. Any such changes would be effected
through the accounts, though there have not been any in the current year.

As the intangible assets are IT related, they are not subject to indexation, and therefore there is no associated
revaluation reserve for them

2012-13 2011-12

The trust has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other service
concession arrangements), for a managed pathology equipment service. The payments to which the trust is
committed are as follows
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16 Intra-Government and other balances Current 
receivables

Non-
current 

Current 
payables

Non-
current 

Balances with: £000s £000s £000s £000s
other Central Government Bodies 5,813 0 1,255 0
Local Authorities 0 0 0 0
NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 10 0 23 0
NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 3,674 0 1,622 0
Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0
bodies external to government 12,482 0 51,873 1,970
At 31 March 2013 21,979 0 54,773 1,970
prior period:
Balances with: (Restated) (Restated)
other Central Government Bodies 7,019 0 12,488 0
Local Authorities 0 0 0 0
NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 3,840 0 1,439 0
Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0
bodies external to government 11,106 0 41,979 2,106
At 31 March 2012 21,965 0 55,906 2,106

17 Inventories Drugs Consumables Energy Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2012 2,152 4,986 374 7,512
Additions 33,960 25,588 85 59,633
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (33,958) (24,900) (139) (58,997)
Balance at 31 March 2013 2,154 5,674 320 8,148

18.1  Trade and other receivables
31 March 

2013
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2013
31 March 

2012
£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS receivables - revenue 9,207 10,224 0 0
NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - revenue 4,929 5,486 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 4,015 2,941 0 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (3,062) (3,116) 0 0
VAT 601 635 0 0
Other receivables 6,289 5,795 0 0
Total 21,979 21,965 0 0

Total current and non current 21,979 21,965 0

Current

The great majority of trade is with Primary Care Trusts, as commissioners for NHS patient care services. As
Primary Care Trusts are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is
considered necessary.

Non-current
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18.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31 March 2013 31-Mar-12
£000s £000s

By up to three months 1,625 2,999
By three to six months 520 557
By more than six months 293 0
Total 2,438 3,556

18.3  Provision for impairment of receivables 2012-13 2012-13
£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2012 (3,116) (1,843)
Amount written off during the year 644 (968)
Amount recovered during the year 0 0
(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired (590) (305)
Balance at 31 March 2013 (3,062) (3,116)

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000s £000s

Opening balance 28,300 4,482
Net change in year 10,901 23,818
Closing balance 39,201 28,300

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service 39,170 28,267
Commercial banks 0 0
Cash in hand 31 33
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 39,201 28,300
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 39,201 28,300

Patients' money held by the Trust, not included above 15 14

The receivables impaired are due from companies, insurance groups and individuals. The contacts that the
trust debt collection team have had with debtors or their representatives has resulted in impairment of the
debtors where it is felt that the full amount will not be received. Debt collection continues in all cases.
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31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Interest payable 44 47 0 0
NHS payables - revenue 2,859 3,321 0 0
NHS payables - capital 41 7 0 0
NHS accruals and deferred income 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS payables - revenue 14,124 10,988 0 0
Non-NHS payables - capital 4,238 5,073 65 91
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 26,513 29,056 1,905 2,015
Social security costs 3,166 3,119 0 0
VAT 0 0 0 0
Tax 3,492 3,626 0 0
Payments received on account 0 0 0 0
Other 296 669 0 0
Total 54,773 55,906 1,970 2,106

Total payables (current and non-current) 56,743 58,012

21 Borrowings
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Loans from Department of Health 1,420 1,420 22,350 23,770
Main PFI Liability 0 0 9,456 8,947
Total 1,420 1,420 31,806 32,717

Total other liabilities (current and non-
current) 33,226 34,137

Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:
31 March 2013

DH Other Total
£000s £000s £000s

0-1 years 1,420 0 1,420
1 - 2 Years 1,420 13 1,433
2 - 5 Years 4,260 547 4,807
Over 5 Years 16,670 8,896 25,566
TOTAL 23,770 9,456 33,226

22  Other financial liabilities
The trust has no financial liabilities which require disclosure under this heading.

Current Non-current

20 Trade and other payables Current Non-current
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23  Deferred income

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance at 1 April 2012 6,065 7,045 2,015 2,200
Net transfer of deferred income (1,054) (980) (110) (185)
Current deferred Income at 31 March 2013 5,011 6,065 1,905 2,015

Total deferred income (current and non-current) 6,916 8,080

24   Provisions Comprising:

Total
Pensions 

Relating to 
Other Staff

Legal Claims Agenda for 
Change Other

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2012 5,864 1,694 137 537 3,496
Arising During the Year 2,828 162 185 0 2,481
Utilised During the Year (1,628) (190) 0 0 (1,438)
Reversed Unused (2,058) 0 (21) (537) (1,500)
Unwinding of Discount 40 40 0 0 0
Change in Discount Rate 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2013 5,046 1,706 301 0 3,039

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
No Later than One Year 3,530 190 301 0 3,039
Later than One Year and not later 
than Five Years 760 760 0 0 0
Later than Five Years 756 756 0 0 0

25 Contingencies 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£000s £000s

Contingent liabilities
Potential cost of litigation (102) (49)
Net Value of Contingent Liabilities (102) (49)

Other provisions relate to Mutally Agreed Resignation Schemes, potential redundancy costs as a result of a
departmental restructuring, and costs related to acquisition and disposal of assets in year.

Non-currentCurrent

Included within Non-NHS accruals and deferred income shown in note 20 is a total of £6,916,000 (2011-12
£8,080,000) in respect of accruals for deferred income, representing cash received in the current or previous years
which relate to a liability in a future period.

£58.467m is included in the accounts of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31st March 2013 in respect of clinical
negligence liabilities of the trust (31st march 2012 £55.429m) The accounts of the NHS LA also include £5.362m in
respect of employer liability scheme payments (31st March 2012 £5.424m).

The legal claims provision relates to insurance excess on public liability claims against the trust. The provision is based
on standard excess costs per claim, unless the NHS Litigation Authority has advised the trust that the excess will be
lower.

The pension provision arose as a result of a change in accounting treatment for early retirements in 2002-03. The
provision is for the remaining estimated enhanced pension costs due in relation to staff taking early retirements before
6th March 1995. Calculation of future pension costs have been made using actuarial calculations provided by the NHS
Pensions agency. Since 1995 all such costs are charged in full, in year, to operating expenses.
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26.1  PFI - additional information

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI
2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Total charge to operating expenses in year - OFF SOFP PFI 538 1,793
Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 0 0
Total 538 1,793

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI
No Later than One Year 0 0
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 631 0
Later than Five Years 137 746
Total 768 746

Estimated capital value of Project - off SoFP PFI 4,500 4,500

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 0 0
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 560 0
Later than Five Years 8,896 8,947
Subtotal 9,456 8,947
Less: Interest Element 0 0
Total 9,456 8,947

PFI Schemes deemed to be off Statement of Financial Position
During the financial year the trust had two PFI schemes not recorded on the Statement of Financial Position.

a) Burden Institute (Burden) / Brain Injury Rehabilitation Unit (BIRU)

b) Leonard Cheshire Foundation (Cossham Gardens)

The Burden operating agreement is with Crestacare Properties Ltd and is a 22 year contract ending in July 2022.
The BIRU agreement is principally with Crestacare (GB) Ltd (which is a subsidiary of Crestacare plc) and this
agreement is to end in June 2024. In the case of Burden the head lease is for a period of 90 years, BIRU is for 99
years. The trust's annual commitment to BIRU is currently £137,546.

The estimated capital value of the scheme is £1,700,000. The service commenced in May 2000 and is contracted
to end on 30 April 2014. There is an option to extend the contract after year 14 for a further five years, twice.

The scheme provides a purpose built unit providing long term accomodation for younger disabled people at
Cossham Hospital. The Leonard Cheshire Foundation built the facility, which has a total of 16 beds. The trust is
committed to 10 of these beds, currently at a cost of £631K per annum, but allowing for an RPI increase each
year.

The estimated annual payments in future years are not expected to be materially different from those which the
trust is committed to make during the next year

The estimated capital value of the scheme is £2,000,000 and a further £800,000 was incurred for enabling works
to BIRU.

Crestacare constructed a 25 bed brain injury rehabilitation unit and a separate private nursing home (collectively
known as BIRU), as well as constructing accomodation for neuro psychiatry services and the Burden
Neurological Institute (collectively known as Burden).
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PFI Schemes deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position

27  Impact of IFRS treatment - current year Total
£000s

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for budget reconciliation purposes

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 
(e.g PFI / LIFT)
Depreciation charges 78
Interest Expense 559
Impact on PDC dividend payable (99)
Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 538
Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net 
of any sublease income) 0
Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) 538

28 Other financial Commitments
2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Payments due no later than 1 year 2,194 2,317
Payments due later than 1 year, no later than 5 years 7,906 10,667
Payments due later than 5 years 0 0
Total 10,100 12,984

29 Financial Instruments

29.1 Financial risk management

Although, as with the other trust PFI schemes noted above, the scheme is off balance sheet, the accounting for
the land is not the same as for BIRU and Burden. The trust has an option to purchase the unit for its depreciated
replacement cost at the end of either years 14,19 or 24 (which excludes the value of the land). The trust is not
deemed to have disposed of the land, therefore there is no deferred asset created as in the case of the BIRU and
Burden Scheme.

Although the financing arrangements of BIRU and Burden remain off-SoFP, Burden is treated as a non-current
asset in the statement of financial position as the trust is expected to purchase the building at the end of the
operating contract (currently July 2022). The trust does not currently make any payment for the building as the
charges are paid by commissioners within the NHS, and the building was constructed at the expense of
Crestacare. For this reason there are no expenditure fgures included within the Statement of Comprehensice
Income and the Non-Current asset is treated as a donated asset.

In addition the trust accounts for the multi-storey car park on the Southmead site which has been provided as part 
of the PFI contract. In accordance with IFRIC 12 the trust has capitalised the car park as a non-current asset,
with an equivalent liability to pay for it. Under the PFI concession arrangement no payments are due until the
main hospital opens in March 2014, so the only charge in the current year is the accrual of interest on the liability,
and the depreciation of the asset.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the
period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing
service provider relationship that the NHS trust has with primary care trusts and the way those primary care trusts
are financed, the NHS trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also
financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The NHS trust has limited powers to borrow
or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather
than being held to change the risks facing the NHS trust in undertaking its activities.



34

North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Loans and 
receivables

Total

£000s £000s
29.2 Financial Assets
Receivables - NHS 9,207 9,207
Receivables - non-NHS 10,411 10,411
Cash at bank and in hand 39,201 39,201
Total at 31 March 2013 58,819 58,819

Receivables - NHS 10,224 10,224
Receivables - non-NHS 9,463 9,463
Cash at bank and in hand 28,300 28,300
Total at 31 March 2012 47,987 47,987

Other Total 
£000s £000s

29.3  Financial Liabilities
NHS payables 2,900 2,900
Non-NHS payables 37,083 37,083
Other borrowings 23,770 23,770
PFI & finance lease obligations 9,456 9,456
Total at 31 March 2013 73,209 73,209

NHS payables 3,328 3,328
Non-NHS payables 34,636 34,636
Other borrowings 25,190 25,190
PFI & finance lease obligations 8,947 8,947
Other financial liabilities 0 0
Total at 31 March 2012 72,101 72,101

The trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined
formally within the trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors. Trust
treasury activity is subject to review by the trust’s internal auditors.

The trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in
the UK and sterling based. The trust has no overseas operations. The trust therefore has low exposure to
currency rate fluctuations.

The trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by the strategic
health authority. The borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is
charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The trust therefore has low exposure to
interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the trust has low
exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2013 are in receivables from customers, as
disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

The trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care trusts, which are financed from
resources voted annually by Parliament . The trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its
prudential borrowing limit.  The trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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31  Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts from 
Related Party

Amounts owed 
to Related Party

Amounts due 
from Related 

Party
£ £ £ £

Bevan Brittan 90,282 0 417 0

University of Bristol 2,826,485 1,124,855 351,625 151,617

Net Income/
(expenditure)

Amounts owed
to related Party

Amounts due
from related
Party

£000 £000 £000
NHS Bristol 254,582 275 309
NHS South Gloucestershire 129,010 469 1,878
NHS North Somerset 31,043 0 388
NHS Gloucestershire 11,439 11 220
NHS Bath and North East Somerset 6,173 35 0
NHS Somerset 7,435 157 624
NHS Wiltshire 5,071 7 0
Other PCTs 11,855 244 1,250
English NHS Trusts 10,313 1,622 3,674
NHS Litigation Authority (8,914) 0 0

32 Losses and special payments
There were 304 cases of losses and special payments (2011-12 326 cases) totalling £441,987 (2011-12
£304,287) incurred during 2012/13. The vast majority of these cases relate to the write off of debts which have
previously been provided for in the accounts of the trust

30  Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no events after the reporting period which would affect the figures reported in these accounts.

North Bristol NHS Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year North Bristol NHS Trust has had a
significant number of material transactions with the other entities for which the Department is regarded as the
parent Department.  These entities are:

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other
central and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with H M Revenue and Customs,
and the NHS Pensions Agency

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, certain of the
trustees for which are also members of the Trust board.

During the year Stephen Hughes (a Non-Executive Director) was a partner with Bevan Brittan.

Andrew Nield (a Non-Executive Director until 30th April 2012) was Director of Finance for the University of 
Bristol.
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33.   Financial performance targets
The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Turnover 370,223 381,729 420,918 439,624 473,815 492,883 519,430 529,896
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,480 85 4,008 3,036 (31,879) 1,393 (72,571) (17,851)

Adjustments for Impairments 6,182 38,056 6,525 79,545 22,864
Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated/government grants assets 1,494 1,451
Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - Adjustment for Dual Accounting under IFRIC12* 0 (30) 534 538
Other agreed adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Break-even in-year position 1,480 85 4,008 9,218 6,177 7,888 9,002 7,002
Break-even cumulative position (44,884) (44,799) (40,791) (31,573) (25,396) (17,508) (8,506) (1,504)

*

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13
% % % % % % % %

Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover 0.40 0.02 0.95 2.10 1.30 1.60 1.73 1.32
Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover -12.12 -11.74 -9.69 -7.18 -5.36 -3.55 -1.64 -0.28

North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

33.1  Breakeven performance

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, NHS Trust’s financial performance measurement needs to be
aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure. Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the
application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is
excluded when measuring Breakeven performance. Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the
donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.

The Treasury, the National Audit Office (NAO) and the Audit Commission have agreed that the breakeven duty will be assumed to have been met if the breakeven
cumulative net deficit is less than or equal to 0.5% of the turnover of the reporting year. On this basis the trust has met its breakeven duty as in 2012/13 as agreed with
the SHA.

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):
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33.2  Capital cost absorption rate

33.3  External financing
The trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s £000s

External financing limit (8,333) (16,951)
Cash flow financing (12,321) (26,853)
Finance leases taken out in the year 0 0
Other capital receipts 0 (325)
External financing requirement (12,321) (27,178)
Undershoot 3,988 10,227

33.4  Capital resource limit
The trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

2012-13 2011-12
£000s £000s

Gross capital expenditure 12,890 13,681
Less: book value of assets disposed of (319) (425)
Less: capital grants 0 0
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets (344) (325)
Charge against the capital resource limit 12,227 12,931
Capital resource limit 16,600 14,927
Underspend against the capital resource limit 4,373 1,996

The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average
relevant net assets and therefore the actual capital cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.

North Bristol NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2012-13

34  Third party assets
The Trust held £14,827 cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2013 (£13,776 at 31 March 2012) which
relate to monies held by the NHS Trust on behalf of patients or other parties. This has been excluded
from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.
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Executive Summary:  

 

 The draft accounts were submitted on time showing the Trust had achieved 
all its financial targets for the year. The attached paper summarises the 
significant issues in the accounts. 

 Grant Thornton, the Trust’s external Auditors has almost finished its audit 
work with no significant issues raised to date. 

 The Audit Committee will meet on the 4th June to review the accounts and if 
appropriate, recommend their approval to the Board. 

 There will be a special meeting of the Board on the 4th June to action the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee.     

 The Accounts must be submitted to the Department of Health on the 10th 
June.  

 

 

Action Required:  

 
The Trust Board is asked to note the report.  

 

Key Risks: The audit is not yet complete 

Impact on Patients: None 

Trust Objectives:   

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

None 

NHS Constitution:  

Financial Issues: Yes 

Equality Issues: No 

Other Legal/regulatory 
Issues: 

Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST 

FINANCE AND INFORMATION DIRECTORATE 
 

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2012/13 
 

REPORT TO THE TRUST BOARD 
 

30TH MAY 2013 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
In accordance with the timetable prescribed by the Department of Health (DH), the 
Trust submitted its draft unaudited accounts to the DH, Strategic Health Authority 
(SHA) and external auditors on Monday 22nd April 2013 and is required to submit 
final audited accounts by Monday 10th June 2013. 
 
The paper that was presented at the April Trust Board regarding targets is 
unchanged: 
 

Description 
 

Target Achieved Notes 

Break even £7m Surplus 
(excluding 

adjustments) 

£7m surplus Achieved 

Capital cost 
absorption rate 

3.5% 3.5% Achieved 

External financing 
limit 

(£8.3m) (£12.3m) Achieved – underspend 
is permitted 

Capital Resource 
Limit 

£16.6m £12.2m Achieved – underspend 
is permitted 

 
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) shows a retained deficit of £17.9m 
However, this is adjusted for a number of factors which include impairments of 
£22.9m, the costs of accounting for PFI under IFRIC 12 of £0.5m and adjustments in 
respect of the donated asset reserve elimination of £1.5m. These are accounting 
changes which the DH does not regard as being part of the operating position of the 
trust and so the adjusted surplus for the year which does count towards the trust’s 
breakeven duty is £7.m. This is shown in note 33.1 to the accounts. 
 
The £22.9m impairment charge arises in the year as a result of the following: 
 

 The district valuer undertook an assessment of the value of the trust’s land 
and buildings as at 31st March 2013. The valuation led to an impairment 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income of £2.5m 

 

 During 2012-13 the trust has undertaken an impairment review of the both the 
Southmead and Frenchay hospital sites. This is an ongoing review related to 
the new PFI funded hospital at Southmead which will be used to provide all 
services previously provided from Frenchay when it opens in 2014. This 
review has led to a reduction in the value of the Avon Orthopaedic Centre on 
the Southmead site by £14.8m and the Frenchay site by £1.3m in the current 
year. 



 

 In addition to the above two elements, there were a number of further 
impairments totaling £4.3m. 

 
The IFRIC 12 adjustment refers to the costs of recognising the Multi-Storey car park 
on the balance sheet. IFRIC 12 is the short name of International Financial Reporting 
Interpretation Committee Interpretation 12 which provides guidance on accounting for 
‘service concession arrangements’ and is the accounting standard which the 
Treasury has interpreted as bringing these assets and liabilities onto the balance 
sheet. This has led to additional charges being recognised in the SOCI. The 
Department of Health has decided that these additional costs should be disregarded 
when assessing the trust’s performance against the breakeven target. 
 
The trust has repaid the remaining capital investment and working capital loans at a 
rate of £1.4m per year. The remaining balance on these loans now stands at £23.8m. 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ISSUES REQUIRING DISCUSSION WITH EXTERNAL AUDIT 

DURING 2012-13 
 
There are a number of high value and complex issues that have arisen throughout 
the year which have been discussed with the auditors to ensure appropriate 
treatment in the financial statements. These include: 
 

 The valuation and expected life of assets on the Frenchay and Southmead 
sites where these are impacted by the PFI development and the impairment 
that has been identified in the year as a result.   

 The treatment of transitional income received from the SHA during the year, 

 The difference in audit approach that we could expect to see following the 
replacement of the Audit Commission by Grant Thornton.  
 

3. KEY ISSUES IN THE ACCOUNTS 
 
3.1 Adjustments from the draft accounts. 
 
At the time of writing there are no adjustments which have any impact on the 
reported performance of the trust.  
 
3.2 SOCI  
 

 Better payment practice code 
 
Performance overall was 91% of bills paid within 30 days. This is a small 
deterioration from the 93% achieved in 2011/12 and came about as a result of the 
change to the new version of the finance ledger system which created additional 
payment delays around the end of November and into December. We are continuing 
to work towards achieving the 95% target. 
 

 Other Operating Income 
 
There has been a fall in other revenue reported in note 5 to the accounts. The 
amount received in 2012/13 is £74.9m compared to £76.6m, a fall of £1.6m. This is 
primarily due to the receipt of transitional funding. It is expected to rise again in the 
next couple of years, as the main element of cost is incurred in moving into the new 
building. 
 



 Operating Expenses 
 
Depreciation continues to include accelerated depreciation of buildings at Southmead 
which are expected to be demolished when the new hospital is occupied.  
 
Pay expenditure increased by 2.6% compared with the prior year due to net 
inflationary pressures, combined with overall higher staffing levels. 
 
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies rose significantly.       
 
Clinical supplies expenditure has increased, though this is largely offset by a 
reduction in purchases made from NHS bodies, including Primary Care Trusts which 
are no longer acting as providers. 
 
During 2011/12 PCTs were obliged to transfer the provision of services to new 
bodies which in many cases are outside the NHS. This has meant that the cost of 
services provided by PCTs has fallen and been offset by the rise in Supplies and 
services – clinical. 
 
Transportation costs increased largely due to greater volumes of Pathology related 
tests requiring the logistics services of an external contractor.   
 
Premises expenditure is lower as a result of the prior year including higher costs 
relating to implementation of Cerner which have not been repeated in 2012/13. It is a 
DH requirement that IT costs are shown as part of the premises costs in the 
accounts. 
 
3.3 Statement of Financial Position 
 

 Receivables 
 
Overall, receivables are at a very similar level to the previous year but there have 
been changes within the overall position: 
             £m 

Decrease in NHS receivables -1.0 

Decrease in Non NHS receivables -0.5 

Increase in other receivables 0.5 

Increase in Prepayments and other receivables 1.1 

Total movement 0.0 

 
The reduction in both NHS and non-NHS receivables is a reflection of increased 
credit control activity by the trust and the efforts made to reduce the amount owed, 
particularly by NHS bodies affected by the reorganisation taking place as at the 1st 
April 2013.  
 
The £1.1m increase in prepayments and other receivables is caused by amounts to 
be invoiced to Welsh health bodies which had not been invoiced by year end. This 
offsets the increase in non-NHS receivables above. Raising these invoices was 
considered less of a priority than raising invoices to PCTs before their winding-up. 
 
The Compensation Recovery Unit (CRU) administer claims by the NHS as a whole 
where individual insurance claims are being made for personal injury which involves 
hospital treatment either as a result of a road traffic or other incident. The CRU 
informs the trust of monies owed and is responsible for collecting this money and 
passing it on to the trust. As most claims involve litigation they can take several years 



before the monies are collected and the balance owed to the trust by the CRU has 
been steadily rising for several years. This rise is responsible for the rise in other 
receivables. 
 

 Cash 
 
The trust has continued to increase its cash position to provide liquidity during the 
period of transition to the new PFI hospital as this is expected to involve a significant 
net outflow of cash. The cash balance now stands at £39.2m.  
 

 Payables and Provisions 
 
The overall balance has reduced by £1.9m, the main movements within this overall 
position are as follows: 

            £m 
Decrease in NHS payables -0.5 

Increase in Non-NHS Payables 0.2 

Net movement in other payables  0.4 

Decrease in capital payables -0.8 

Decrease in provisions -0.8 

  

Total Movement -1.9 

 
The increase in non-NHS payables relates to major suppliers outside the NHS 
agreement of balances process which includes NHS supply chain, which had 
delayed sending invoices until just before the year end. These have been paid early 
in the new financial year. 
 
The scale of capital payables is closely related to the scale of the capital scheme in 
the year. The 2012-13 capital scheme was smaller than both the 2011-12 scheme 
and the planned scheme for 2013-14 and so the capital payables figure represents a 
temporary low. 
 
The reduction in provisions primarily comes from the release of a provision previously 
carried for historic pay arrears.  
 
3.4 Other Issues 
 

 Break even note & historical deficits 
 
Note 33.1 to the accounts discloses the Trust’s performance against its break even 
target and the cumulative deficit for breakeven purposes. Although there remains a 
small cumulative deficit for these purposes of £1.504m, this is less than the threshold 
of 0.5% of turnover set by the Treasury, National Audit Office and the Audit 
Commission. Therefore, the trust has met its breakeven duty in line with the plan 
agreed with the SHA. 
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MSSA Cases: Trust Attributable 

Trust Attributable MSSA NBT Locally Agreed Target

* validated from Jan 2011 

Apr 2011 to Apr 2013 
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ECOLI Cases: Trust Attributable 

Trust Attributable E.Coli NBT Locally Agreed Target

* validated from Jun 2011 

Apr 2011 to Apr 2013 
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MRSA Pre-Elective Screening for BNSSG patients 

Elective IP/DC Target
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Agenda Item 6.4 

Report to Trust Board – May 2013 
 

Title:   Monthly Infection Control Report  

Purpose of paper:  To update Trust Board on Infection Control performance 

To Note 

Executive Summary:  
  Q2 Q3 Q4 April May Jun 

MRSA month           

 YTD         

MSSA month           

 YTD        

E-coli month       R  R 

 YTD     R  R 

C.diff month         R 

 YTD        

 
  Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Hand Hygiene month                

MRSA screening 
(elective) month               

 
  

MRSA screening 
(emergency) month           

 
   

Mandatory 
training  month           

 
  

 
 
 
MRSA         

 No cases of MRSA bacteraemia attributable to the Trust in April 2013. 

 Contractually there is zero tolerance to MRSA bacteraemia in 2013/14 - 
(Monitor de minimis 6 cases per year) 
 

MSSA  

 There were 2 MSSA bacteraemia in April 2013, both attributable to NBT. 

 A trust target of 21 cases has been agreed for 2013/14. 
 
Clostridium difficile   

 5 cases attributable to the Trust in April 2013 (Q1 target is 12 cases or fewer) 

 The Trust is working with the infection control lead for the Trust Development 
Authority to provide assurance that all possible measures to reduce CDiff 
infections are being taken. An action plan is in place and being monitored by 
the Control of Infection Committee. 

 Cross infection in the Trust remains rare. 



 

This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under 

a 'closed section' of any meeting. 
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 Continued focus on basics of infection control procedures needed 

 Antibiotic prescribing benchmarks well but remains a focus to improve further 

 Implementation of probiotics for patients on antibiotics planned for May 2013 

 Further education of ward staff on appropriate sampling of symptomatic 
patients with consideration of decision support through order communications 
system. 

 Education of staff to ensure early discussion with infection control team when 
patients have diarrhoea, especially if there is difficulty in immediate isolation. 

 Deep clean programme planned and under way and increased emphasis on 
cleanliness on matrons ward rounds 

 Further community wide discussion about proton pump inhibitor prescribing 

 An epidemiology study is being undertaken in partnership with the Health 
Protection Agency. 
  

E-Coli 

 There were 16 cases of E-coli bacteraemia during April 2013 of which 5 were 
attributable to the Trust. 

 Rates of E-coli infection have been stable over the past 2 years and a trust 
target of 75 cases has been agreed for 2013/14. 

 
Norovirus 

 In April there were no wards with restricted access due to confirmed 
Norovirus. 
 

Mandatory Training  

 Infection Control mandatory training compliance is 86%   
  

Hand Hygiene 

 Trust wide compliance was 95% (target 95%)  
 

Action Required: Directorate Management Teams are asked to support their 
infection control leads in taking actions required to minimise hospital acquired 
infection.  

 
Key Risks: 

 Non achievement of DH 2013/14 C.diff trajectory of 42  

 Non achievement of DH 2013/14 MRSA bacteraemia trajectory of 0 

 Non achievement of MRSA emergency screening target which is set at 90%    

 Infection control mandatory training compliance 
 
Impact on Patients: Patients deserve the highest level of professional standards. 

 
CQC Outcome:    Outcome 8 (regulation 12)  
Responsible Committee:    Control of Infection Committee 
 
Presented by: Chris Burton Medical Director /DIPC 
Prepared by:   Helen Richardson Assistant Director of Nursing                                                  



 
 

 

Report to Trust Board – 30 May 2013 Agenda Item 6.5  

Report Title Summary of Serious Incidents (SIs) reported in April 2013 

Status For Information Discussion Assurance  Approval 

   

Prepared by Olga Van Rijswijck – Clinical Risk Manager  
Lesley Le-Pine – Head of Clinical Governance 

Board Sponsor Sue Jones – Director of Nursing 
 

 

For Information 

Executive Summary:   

10 new Serious Incidents 
reported. 

10 Serious incidents = 1x never event, 1x fall, 1x medication error, 1x 
Screening issue, 1x Maternal death, 1x 12 hour trolley breach, 2 x 
Black escalations, 1x Surgical error & 1 x loss of confidential property.  

1 Never Events  1 x never event MSK: Wrong size implant 

0 incidents breached the 2 
day reporting deadline  

All incidents in April reported to commissioners within 48hrs of Clinical 
Risk notification.  

0 incident breached 45/60 
completion deadline  

0 incident breached a sign off date within April 2013  

0 Safeguarding Incident No safeguarding incidents reported as SI during April  

0 Whistleblowing Incidents No whistleblowing incidents reported as SI during April  

Specific themes identified  
this month  

3 x incidents indicative of increased operational pressures. 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report. 

 

Key Risks: Reporting incidents and completion of root cause analysis (RCA) investigations for serious 
incident within timescales is set in the contract with Commissioners and can result in 
financial penalties for the Trust if timescales are breached. 

Impact on Patients: Actions implemented following RCA investigations and sharing of lessons learned should 
reduce occurrence of similar incidents, thus improving patient safety, patient confidence 
and helping to maintain the positive reputation of the Trust.   

Trust Objectives Services exemplary of quality & 
safety, No waits no delays 

CQC Outcomes O21: Incidents 

NHS Constitution Considered as applicable Equality Issues: Considered throughout 

Financial Issues: As indicated in regard to incentive 
payments/ penalties. 

Other Legal/ 
regulatory Issues 

Considered throughout. 

 



 
 
 
SERIOUS INCIDENT TRACKING   
 
 

Open - not subject to PCT timescales 

STEIS No  Incident 
Date 

2 day 
deadline  

Directorate Description 45/60 day RCA 
deadline met 

Additional info  

2012/8707 04/04/12 YES Medicine Adult Safeguarding N/A Not subject to usual timescales.  Both relate to same incident - as 
two patients involved 

2012/8710 04/04/12 YES Medicine Adult Safeguarding N/A 

2011/16609 31/08/11 YES WCH Safeguarding/ Child protection N/A Not subject to usual timescales 

2012/6191 08/03/12 YES Confidential Staff exclusion  N/A Submitted for closure 13/05/13 – pending 

2013/7609 19/11/12 YES Confidential Staff exclusion N/A 72 hour report submitted 

Open  - BREACHES 

STEIS No  Incident 
Date 

2 day 
deadline  

Directorate Description 45/60 day RCA 
deadline met 

Additional info  

2013/2164 21/01/13 YES Medicine Deteriorating patient  22/03/2013 Recalled to April CRC Not submitted > May CRC > Amendments 

RCA - Closures April 2013  

STEIS No  Incident 
Date 

2 day 
deadline  

Directorate Description 45/60 day RCA 
deadline met 

Additional info  

2013/3525 30/01/13 YES Medicine Patient fall  09/04/2013 CLOSED 

2013/3613 23/01/13 YES Neuro Patient fall 09/04/2013 CLOSED 

2013/7633 12/03/13 YES Medicine Patient fall  13/05/2013 Submitted for closure - pending 

2013/9082 25/03/13 YES Operations 12 hour trolley breach 31/05/2013 CLOSED 

Open Serious Incidents  - CURRENT WITHIN TIMESCALE 

STEIS No  Incident 
Date 

2 day 
deadline  

Directorate Description 45/60 day RCA 
deadline met 

Additional info  

2013/6246 27/02/13 YES CCS Unauthorised x-ray. Breach of policy. 03/05/2013 Submitted for closure - pending 

2013/6248 27/02/13 YES Multiple Delay in ICU bed.  29/05/2013 June CRC 

2013/6967 05/10/12 YES WCH Retained foreign object  03/06/2013 May CRC 
Never Event: Downgraded by Commissioners to SI 

2013/7780 02/02/13 YES WCH Medication error: Ruptured Uterus 17/05/2013 May CRC 

2013/7790 10/01/13 YES WCH Missed diagnosis: Ectopic Pregnancy 17/05/2013 May CRC 

2013/8870 28/02/13 YES WCH Unexpected admission NICU 30/05/2013 May CRC 

2013/9103 25/03/13 YES   Core Clinical Breach of policy: CSSD contaminated sets 03/06/2013 May CRC 

2013/9124 23/01/09 YES Medicine Delay in follow up/ treatment. 03/06/2013 May CRC 



NEW -  Serious Incidents reported April 2013 

STEIS No  Incident 
Date 

2 day 
deadline  

Directorate Description 45/60 day RCA 
deadline met 

Additional info  

2013/9402 02/04/13 Yes Medicine Patient fall # hip 05/06/2013 
13/06/2013 

Clinical Risk informed 28/03/13 reported 02/04/13 (BH)  

2013/10388 09/04/13 YES WCH Medication Error 12/06/2013 Clinical Risk informed & reported 09/04/13 

2013/11008 06/04/13 YES WCH Screening issues 18/06/2013 Clinical Risk informed 12/04/13 reported 15/04/13  

2013/11402 14/04/13 YES Operations 12 hour trolley breach 20/06/2013 Clinical Risk informed & reported 17/04/13 

2013/11440 15/04/13 YES Operations Black escalation 20/06/2013 Clinical Risk informed & reported 17/04/13 

2013/11451 08/04/13 YES Operations Black Escalation 20/06/2013 Clinical Risk informed & reported 17/04/13 

2013/11877 20/04/13 YES WCH/Medicine Maternal Death 25/06/2013 22/04/13 Clinical Risk informed and reported 
Stop the clock agreed 14/05/2013 as notes with Coroner 

2013/12275 31/07/12 YES MSK Wrong size Implant – Never event 19/07/2013 Clinical Risk informed & reported  24/04/13 
29/04/13 72 hour report due & submitted 

2013/12291 11/04/13 YES Medicine/Surgery Surgical error – chest drain guide-wire 27/06/2013 Clinical Risk informed & reported 24/04/13 

2013/12861 22/04/13 YES CCS Loss of Confidential property ( Lost bloods/courier service)  Clinical Risk informed & reported 30/04/13 
03/05/13 72 hour report due – submitted 02/05/13 

 
 
 
ROOT CAUSES AND LESSONS LEARNT FROM INCIDENTS CLOSED IN NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2012 
 
 

Incident ref Directorate Root Causes Actions taken / Learning Implemented 

2013/3525 Medicine Unpredictable and un-witnessed fall however risk assessment not 
reviewed on transfer to ward and/or when condition changed. 

1. Radiology to discuss its escalation process and provide feedback 
2. Enhanced training regarding the post fall timeframe for x-ray and review and need to escalate 

2013/3613 Neuro  None identified relating to patient fall. Positive learning from the actions and documentation undertaken by nursing staff and medical staff 

2013/7633 Medicine Witnessed fall which was unavoidable  

2013/9082 Operations Poor decision making, communication and lack of escalation resulted 
in patient breaching 12 hour trolley wait even though a bed had been 
identified.  

Importance of early escalation has been reiterated as well as importance of follow through in person on 
behalf of operations team. Action cards and escalation awareness training for key groups of staff is planned 
for April. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Serious Incidents Dashboard – April 2013 

  

Serious Incidents Rate per 1000 Bed Days Apr 2012 - Apr 2013
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The number of SI’s reported in April has shown an increase in numbers, however, this is within normal 
variation. The median has been consistent over the past year.   

Bars show actual count of SIs, but take no account of activity level, 
hence medicine appears high. Green diamond shows SI rate per 1000 
bed days. CCS appears as an outlier, due to low number of bed days 

 

*Types of SI reported Apr 2012 to Apr 2013

 N = 87

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Patient Fall
Breach Of Policy

Delayed Treatment
Deteriorating Patient
Adult Safeguarding

Medication Error
Infection Control

Medication
Patient Suicide

Wrong Site Surgery
Diagnostic Error
Documentation

Fall > Death
Maternal Death

Maternity
Maternity - Delay In Delivery

Maternity- Cord Prolapse
Retained Foreign Object

Retained Foreign Object Post-Op
Staff Exclusion

Staff Incident
Suspension Of Maternity

Unexpected Admission To Nicu
Unexpected Death

Wrong Implant

 

Number of Serious Incidents Closed and Open Breaching 

deadlines

Apr 2012 - Apr 2013
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Despite being the most commonly reported type of SI, patient fall SIs are showing a reduction 
in overall numbers. *Please note this excludes Pressure Ulcer and Infection Control data; 

In April 4 Serious Incidents were closed and 0 remained open breaching deadline. 
The number of incidents breaching closure deadline has fallen. 

 

 

a low number of bed days  in 
CCS, therefore rate is high. 

 



 
 

 
 

Report to Trust Board  – 30th May 2013 Agenda Item 6.6   

Report Title Friends and Family Test  Report  

Status For Information Discussion Assurance  Approval 

   

Prepared by Juliet Winter – Patient and Community Engagement Manager 

Board Sponsor Sue Jones – Director of Nursing 

Appendices Friends and Family Test Score for April 2013 
 

 

For Information and Assurance 

 

Executive Summary:  

Background 

 

 
The Friends & Family Test is a Department of Health (DH) initiative which 
began nationwide in April. The test asks whether our patients would 
recommend our hospitals to their friends and family. The monthly target 
is for 15 per cent of our inpatients (over 16 years) and patients 
discharged through the Emergency Department (ED) to complete a 
comment card at point of discharge or within 48 hours. 
 

Test Question  

The test asks the following standardised question: “How likely are you to 
recommend our ward/A&E department to friends and family if they 
needed similar care or treatment?” The range of responses includes: 

1. Extremely likely 2. Likely 3. Neither likely 
nor unlikely 

4. Unlikely  

5.  Extremely unlikely 6. Don’t 
know 

  

The comment card also has space for patients to tell us more about the 
category they ticked. 

 

Score 
 
The Friends and Family Test score for April for North Bristol NHS 
Trust was 64. This is based on 11% responses”. 
 
The presentation of the Trust’s score is prescribed by DH guidance and is 
a ‘net promoter score’ the calculation of which is explained in the 
appendix. 
 

Next Steps and Future 
Reporting 

The appendix sets out the actions to improve or maintain the response 
target and how reporting will be undertaken in the future. 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report 

 

 Key Risks: Non-compliance will  impact on the reputation of the Trust and its ability to meet the 
Friends & Family Test CQUIN 



 
 

Impact on Patients: The Friends & Family Test is a key measure of how our patients or their carers and family 
experience our services 

Trust Objectives Services exemplary of quality & 
safety, No waits no delays 

CQC Outcomes O1:Respect & Involvement, 
O4: Care & Welfare, O16; 
Quality of Services O17: 
Complaints 

NHS Constitution Considered as applicable Equality Issues: Considered throughout 

Financial Issues: As indicated in regard to incentive 
payments/ penalties. 

Other Legal/ 
regulatory Issues 

Considered throughout. 

 



 
 

Appendix 
 
 
 

Friends and Family Test Score April 2013 
 
 
 

Within the overall score of 64 the breakdown for wards and the emergency department is: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Explanation of score 
 

The scoring methodology is based on a ‘Net Promoter Score’ calculation. The scores are 
calculated as follows:  

  
 
    Minus 

 
 
 
 

No suitable specialty category was identified for Burden in April’s responses. For May it will be 
recorded under Neurology. Burden score to be reported locally. 

  

Next Steps 
 

Action planning to improve ED score and ensure wards continue to meet the 15% target 
 

 Additional training has been provided to ED staff to raise awareness of the initiative. 
 Volunteers are being recruited to assist ED with collecting completed comments cards.   

Volunteers are also being recruited and trained to assist wards where patients may need support 
to complete comments cards. 

 Positive patient feedback was included in the Friday Five staff communication to boost ED staff 
morale. 

 Regular contact to be maintained with wards/ED to motivate and support staff. Also regular 
monitoring of response rates is being undertaken to target under-performing areas. 

 Sharing of good practice and improvement action planning to be developed. 
 

Future reporting of Friends & Family Test 
 

 From July the DH will be publishing the results from all acute Trusts which will provide  
comparable data for the Trust Board. Trusts who initially piloted this initiative, however, have 
published their results since they began. March results from 46 trusts show an average net 
promoter score of 70, with individual trusts ranging from 38 to 88. Since results were reported from 
May 2012, results have generally improved. Inpatient response rates range from 10% - 18% 

Proportion of respondents who 
would be extremely likely to 
recommend (response category: 
“extremely likely”) 
 

Proportion of respondents who would 
not recommend (response categories: 
“neither likely nor unlikely”, “unlikely” & 

“extremely unlikely”). 
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Inpatients* 449 139 23 6 3 12 3339 501 632 131 65.98 18.93%

ED 142 51 7 9 0 0 4419 663 209 -454 60.29 4.73%

Total 591 190 30 15 3 12 7758 1164 841 -323 64.57 10.84%

*This is the submitted position not including burden



 
 

Link to results site: http://www.strategicprojectseoe.co.uk/index.php?id_sec=224 
 

 Reporting at ward level is under development with IM&T and is to be available from early June. 
 Highlights to be included on the ward Quality Synopsis. 

 Theming of comments to be developed with Patient Perspective. 
 Patient Experience Group (PEG) to receive directorate/trust wide level reports. Governance and 

Risk Management Committee to receive update as part of PEG highlight report. 
 Plans in place for postal surveys using Picker questions to compliment the net promoter score and 

free format comments.  
 
 

 
  

http://www.strategicprojectseoe.co.uk/index.php?id_sec=224


Harry Hayer – Corporate Governance Structure - 23 May 2013 

 
Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  6.7 

Date of Meeting: May 2013 
 

Report Title: Proposed NBT Corporate Governance Arrangements 

Status: For 

information 

discussion assurance approval 

 x  x 

Prepared by: Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 

Board Sponsor: Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 

Appendices: Proposed Changes to Corporate Governance Arrangements at NBT 

Executive Summary:  
 
A review of the Building our Future and Redevelopment Boards led to a wider examination 
of the effectiveness of NBT’s arrangements for corporate governance. 
 
This paper proposes a new structure for corporate governance, providing streamlined and 
strengthened arrangements based on a number of guiding principles. 
 
These proposals have been approved by the NBT Executive, endorsed by the Building our 
Future Programme Board and noted by the Trust Management Team. 
 
Once approved by the Trust Board, further work will be undertaken by the respective 
Executive Leads to establish the detail behind the committees and associated sub-
structures 

Action Required:  

 
Trust Board is requested to APPROVE the proposed new arrangements for 
corporate governance at NBT 
 

Key Risks: Poor governance will result in poor risk identification and 
management and poor assurance 
 

Impact on Patients: Strong and effective corporate governance arrangements 
will improve patient experience, quality, safety and 
clinical outcomes 
 

Impact on Staff Strong and effective corporate governance arrangements 
will improve patient experience, quality, safety and 
clinical outcomes 

Link to Trust Objectives:  All 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

All 

NHS Constitution: Direct link to fulfilling the requirements of the NHS 
Constitution 

Financial Issues: A large component of corporate governance 
arrangement will oversee financial management at NBT 

Legal/regulatory Issues: More effective corporate governance arrangements will 
provide a more effective response to the legal and 
regulatory framework 

Equality Issues considered To be considered by each component of the new 
corporate governance arrangements. 
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Proposed Corporate Governance Arrangements @ NBT 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 A review of the Building our Future and Redevelopment Boards led to a wider 
 examination of the effectiveness of NBT’s arrangements for corporate 
 governance. 
 
1.2 This paper proposes a new structure for corporate governance, providing 
 streamlined and strengthened arrangements based on a number of guiding 
 principles. 
 
1.3 These proposals have been approved by the NBT Executive, endorsed by the 
 Building our Future Programme Board and noted by the Trust Management 
 Team. 
 
1.4 Once approved by the Trust Board, terms of reference for all Board and 
 Executive Committees will be reviewed and amended by the respective 
 Executive leads for approval by the relevant Committees and the Trust Board 
 (where appropriate). Further work will also be undertaken by the respective 
 Executive Leads to establish fit-for-purpose sub-structures and committee 
 meeting timings aligned to the principles set out in s.2 below.  
 

2. KEY PRINCIPLES 
 
2.1 A set of guiding principles were established against which new arrangements 
 for corporate governance could be aligned. There are :- 
 

 Structural coherence 

 Alignment with Trust priorities 

 Minimise duplication 

 Efficient Floor-to-Board reporting 

 Deliver the Big 5 objectives 

 Time-efficient for senior staff 

 More robust planning 

 Clearer lines of accountability 

 Trust Board to have clear scheme of delegation + KPIs for each sub-
committee 

 Identified executive leads for each committee 

 
 

3. PROPOSED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
3.1 The proposed corporate governance arrangements are set out below :- 
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Proposed Corporate Governance Structure 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Statutory Committee     Board Committee         Executive Committee 
  (chaired by Chair/NED)                   (chaired by NED)      (chaired by Chief Executive)

 

TRUST BOARD 

Audit Committee Appointments and 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Charitable Funds 

Committee 

Development 

Committee 

Quality & Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Finance & 

Performance 

Committee 

 
FT Project Board  

 

Sub-structure 

 

 

Sub-structure 

  

 

Sub-structure 

 

   

 

Trust Management 

Team 

 

Executive Team 



Harry Hayer – Corporate Governance Structure - 23 May 2013 

4. STATUTORY COMMITTEES 
 
4.1 Trust Board 
 

 Execution of statutory duties 

 Issues escalated by sub-committees for discussion/decision 

 Urgent/Important Issues 

 Chief Executive Report 

 Chairman’s Report 
 
 Frequency : Monthly 
 Chair : Trust Chairman 
 Lead Executive : Chief Executive 
 Membership : as current 

 
4.2 Audit Committee, Appointments & Remuneration Committee, Charitable 
 Funds Committee 
 
 As current 
 
 

5. BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
5.1 Development Committee (organisation development / strategy) 
 

 Replaces BoF Board and Redevelopment Board 

 Road to 2014 (progress against critical path, organisation development, new 
hospital programme oversight, workforce oversight) 

 Strategy and Business Development (IBP, sub-strategies, 3-year business 
plans) 

 System Management (acute services review, healthy futures, NBT/UHB 
partnership programme board, service transfers, competition issues) 

 Research / Innovation (Bristol Health Partners, AHSN, HITs, CLAHRC) 

 Stakeholder engagement/management 

 Sub-strategies (e.g. IM&T, Capital, Estates, Clinical) 
 
 Frequency : Monthly 
 Chair : NED 
 Lead Executives : Director of Organisation, People & Performance  / Director of Strategy & 
 Planning  
 Members : tbc 

 
 
5.2 Finance & Performance Committee (finance / performance) 
 

 Replaces Finance Committee 

 Expands remit to include performance 

 Ownership of integrated performance report 

 Investment and business case appraisal and approval (revenue and capital) 

 Ownership of LTFM 

 Sets annual budgets 

 Oversight of cost improvement programmes 
 
 Frequency : Monthly 
 Chair : NED 
 Lead Executives : Director of Finance & Commercial Development / Chief Operating Officer 
 Members : tbc 
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5.3 Quality & Risk Management Committee (quality / risk management) 
 

 Replaces Governance & Risk Management Committee to give greater 
emphasis to quality management 

 Sub-structure already established (i.e. quality committee, clinical 
effectiveness, clinical risk, safeguarding, infection control, patient records, 
clinical audit, cancer services, patient experience, health and safety, 
contingency planning, CQINS) 

 
 Frequency : Bi-monthly 
 Chair : NED 
 Lead Executives : Medical Director, Nurse Director 
 Membership : tbc 

 
 
 

6. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES 
 
 
6.1 Trust Management Team 
 

 Clinical and executive leadership and ownership of annual operational plan 

 Clinical/operational oversight of new hospital programme 

 Control : NBT Integrated Performance Report 

 Discussion/action planning where gaps/concerns/remedial action required 

 Strategic briefings (NBT/system) 

 
 Frequency : Monthly 
 Chair & Lead Executive : Chief Executive 
 Membership : Clinical Directors, Executive Directors 
 
 

6.2 Executive Team 
 

 Discharging executive responsibilities on behalf of Trust Board 

 Executive management review process (w/PMO) 

 
 Frequency : Monthly 
 Chair & Lead Executive : Chief Executive 
 Membership : Executive Directors 
 
 

6.3 FT Project Board 
 

 Management of FT programme 

 Time-limited 
 
 Frequency : Monthly 
 Chair  : Chief Executive 
 Lead Executive : Director of Strategy & Planning 
 Membership : as current 
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  6.8 

Date of Meeting: 30th May 2013 

 

Report Title: Audit Committee 

Status: For information discussion assurance approval 

x  x  

Prepared by: Nick Stibbs 

Board Sponsor: Ken Guy 

Appendices:  

 

Executive Summary:  

 
The Audit Committee met on 17th April and the key issues discussed are set out below: 

 
1. Annual Report and Terms of Reference 

The Board received and approved the 2012/13 Annual Report and the revised 
Terms of Reference of the Committee at the last Board meeting. 
 

2. External Audit 
The Committee noted that interim fieldwork by the auditors on the accounts had 
suggested differences in opinion on the treatment of deferred income and bad 
debts but neither was of a material nature. The Director of Finance agreed to report 
back to the Committee on a number of general key emerging issues highlighted by 
the Auditors. 
 

3. External Audit Plan 
The Committee noted the Audit Plan for the accounts which would focus on areas 
at risk of material misstatements. 
 

4. External Audit Fee 
The Audit fee for 2013/14 of £119,815 was approved. 
 

5. Redevelopment Project 
The Committee noted the results of a review of the readiness of the Move Project 
plans by independent assessors giving assurance to the Trust that they were on 
track. The Programme Management Office was also to scrutinise the plans and an 
Office of Government Commerce Level 4 review would later look at some of the 
operational measures. 
 

6. Annual Governance Statement 
The draft Annual Governance Statement was approved for submission to the Trust 
Development Authority and the definitive statement is set out as a separate Board 
agenda item. 
 

7. Clinical Audit 
The new Chairman of the Clinical Audit Committee attended to discuss the 
assurance it gave to the Trust on the processes in place to constantly review and 
improve clinical quality. A regular schedule of issues from clinical audit was agreed 
for the Committee’s work plan. 
 

8. Information Governance Assurance 
The Committee noted the reporting structure for data quality assurance. 
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9. Reference Costs 
The Committee noted and approved the planned processes for producing 
reference costs which was to become part of its annual work plan. 
 

10. Local Counter Fraud Work Plan 
The Committee approved the work plan for counter fraud in 2013/14 which 
included an increase of 29 days compared to the plan for 2012/13 but was ten days 
less than actually worked. The extra days in 2012/13 were largely due to a greater 
number of reactive investigative days. 
 

11. Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 
With two changes, the proposed strategic and operational plans for Internal Audit 
work were approved. The Director of Finance also agreed to investigate ways of 
funding an additional audit of the PFI contract. 
 

 

Action Required:  

Trust Board is requested to:  

 Note the contents of this report 

 

Key Risks: Without a system to monitor governance processes the 
Board would lack assurance that the organisation was a 
going concern and achieving its targets 

Impact on Patients: All systems monitored by the Audit Committee relate 
directly and indirectly to the delivery of patient care 
outcomes and good experience 

Impact on Staff All systems monitored by the Audit Committee relate to 
the provision of care by staff 

Link to Trust Objectives:  Services of exemplary quality and safety 
Strong, financially healthy organisation 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

Outcomes 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 16 and 21 

NHS Constitution: Quality of care and environment 

Financial Issues: As indicated in the report 

Legal/regulatory Issues: Considered throughout 

Equality Issues considered Considered throughout 
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  7.1 

Date of Meeting: 30 May 2013 

 

Report Title: Southmead Hospital Redevelopment Programme 
(SHRP) and Move Highlight Reports 

Status: Information Discussion Assurance Approval 

  X  

Prepared by: Header sheet: Tricia Down, Deputy Director of Projects  
Highlight reports: Martin Warren, Project Manager/Sue 
Evans Head of Commissioning Support 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Mike Coupe, Director of Strategy and Planning 

Appendices (list if applicable): 1. SHRP Highlight Report  
2. Move Highlight Report  
3. Jigsaw Highlight Report 
4. Decision making timetable  

 

Executive Summary:  

 For several years, the Trust Board has received a monthly copy of the Southmead Hospital 
Redevelopment Programme Board (SHRP) highlight report. The Move highlight report has 
been added to the regular reporting to the Board following a presentation launch in March 
2013. 

 

 The Capital Projects Team would now like to add a further regular highlight report to the 
Trust Board agenda which focuses on the 20 capital schemes to be completed to enable the 
clearance of phase 2 of the PFI development, to support clearance of the Frenchay site and 
deliver parking solutions.   

 

 The 20 capital projects are detailed in the ‘decision making timetable’ appendix which 
defines the agreed dates for submission of business cases and their recipients. Schemes 
which include a yellow FBC box are those which are expected to require Trust Board 
approval as they cost £500,000 or more (depending on final costs). 

 

 Of the 20 schemes, 14 are expected to require Trust Board approval. 
 

 It is proposed that the Finance Committee scrutinises all full business cases that require 
Trust Board approval and recommends a course of action to the Trust Board based on that 
detailed scrutiny. Timescales are very tight and the various project teams leading on the 
schemes will need to ensure deadlines are met and reports issued as agreed to relevant 
meetings. In one or two cases, retrospective approval from the Trust Board may be 
requested on the basis that the Finance Committee has fully scrutinised the cases. 

 

 

Action Required:  

Trust Board is requested to:  

 Note the progress and the issues identified in the Southmead Hospital Redevelopment 
Board and Move highlight reports 

 Receive the ‘Jigsaw’ highlight report on a regular basis and note the issues identified. 

 Endorse the proposed use of the Finance Committee to scrutinise relevant full business 
cases and recommend a course of action of the Trust Board.  

 

Key Risks: See highlight reports. 

Impact on Patients: Improved quality of environment. 

Impact on Staff:  Positive impact through delivering care within high quality 
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environment. Challenges of new ways of working and becoming 
familiar with new surroundings. 

Trust Objectives:  Meets the following objectives: 

 Services will be leading edge and provided in high quality 
environments 

 To be a strong financially healthy organisation 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

Outcome 10, Safety and suitability of premises applies 

NHS Constitution: Principle 7 is particularly relevant to this proposal: 

 The NHS is accountable to the public, communities and 
patients that it serves 

Patient and public: Quality of care and environment 
Staff: Have a good working environment; Have healthy and safe 
working conditions 

Financial Issues: Covered within Strategic Objective no. 5 - Strong, financially 
healthy organisation and related risks. 

Equality issues: Addressed through overall design of new hospital. 

Legal/regulatory Issues: Schemes will need to comply as required. 

 



This document could be made public under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Any person identifiable, corporate sensitive information will be exempt and must be discussed under a 'closed 

section' of any meeting. 

1 

 

 

 

 
 

Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  7.2 

Date of Meeting: 30 May 

 

Report Title: Bath/Bristol Vascular Project  – Highlight Report 
Status: For information discussion assurance approval 

x  x  

Prepared by: Harry Hayer, Simon Sethi, Karen Maxfield 

Board Sponsor: Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 

Appendices:  Highlight Report 
 

 

Executive Summary:  

Background 

In March 2012, Vascular Surgery became a specialty in its own right in recognition 

of the specialist nature of the services provided. At the same time, the Vascular 

Society of Great Britain and Ireland document ‘Provision of Vascular Services 

2012’ set out two models for service provision. These models were for either a 

centralised service or a vascular network. In both of these models arterial surgery 

takes place on a single site with 24/7 vascular surgery and interventional radiology 

availability.  POVS 2012 reviews of the evidence have shown that vascular centres 

with higher volumes have lower mortality rates.  

Historically, the UK compares poorly against Western Europe for mortality following 

elective abdominal aortic aneurysm surgery with a rate of 7.9% in the UK vs one of 

3.5% in Europe (Vascunet 2008). In addition, there is a large and growing evidence 

base that outcomes are significantly better in centres with a higher caseload than 

those performing a lower number of procedures. For example: 

 HES data for elective aneurysm repair in the UK shows that the mortality 

rate in the units with the lowest caseload was 8.5% as compared to 5.9% 

reported by units with a higher caseload (Holt, Poloniecki et al. 2007) 

 Endovascular mortality in the lowest volume providers is 6.88% versus 

2.88% in high volume providers (Holt, Poloniecki et al. 2007) 

 The absolute mortality differences between hospitals in the lowest and 

highest volume quintiles reach 24% (Holt, Karthikesalingam et al).  

Given the increasing evidence linking volume with reduced mortality, the Vascular 

Society of Great Britain and Ireland drafted a set of standards expected of aortic 

intervention centres – ‘Framework for improving the results of elective AAA repair 

2011’.  

These standards have since been adopted through a formal commissioning 

process by NHS England and South of England Specialist Commissioning for 

implementation in 13/14 with the repercussion that those sites not meeting the 

prescribed standards are unlikely to continue to be commissioned to deliver this 

activity. Some of the key recommendations are that: 

 A network-wide service model and multi-disciplinary teams are established 

 “All arterial surgery will be provided at a vascular centre”  
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 The centre and network cover a minimum population of 800,000 

 There is a network wide bypass protocol for vascular emergencies 

 That the arterial centre has a 24/7 vascular surgery rota  

 That the arterial centre with 24/7 interventional radiology rota  

 There is access to a hybrid theatre for endovascular aortic procedures 

Whilst the expectation is that core standards will be met by April 2013 following a 

presentation to Specialist Commissioners on 18 December 2012 there was 

recognition that the full specification will not be met until May 2014 given the 

substantial service changes required.  

Specialist commissioners have suggested that after the consultation on the 

specification, some standards may be deemed ‘developmental’ and therefore not 

be subject to the May 2014 deadline. Clarification is being sought as to this change 

to enable clarity for the project.  

It should be noted that similar reviews have taken place across England, notably 

the London cardio-vascular review, and in many areas services have already been 

re-configured. 

BNSSG & Bath 

The Vascular Review Project aims to deliver a vascular service for the current 

catchment populations of WAHT, NBT, UHBristol and the RUH that meets the 

standards specified by NHS England by May 2014. It will do this by engaging with 

clinical teams, commissioners, stakeholder organisations and patient 

representatives to ensure, ultimately, local residents receive the best outcomes 

possible for vascular surgery. 

It is recognised that at the time of drafting the NHS England standards are open to 

consultation and so may change. This project will deliver the finalised standards as 

defined by NHS England after consultation. It is envisaged that this vascular 

network would also bid to provide complex endovascular aortic intervention, 

including thoracic aortic aneurysms and Type B dissection, for the South West, 

however, this is outside the scope of this project. 

Project Objectives 

The Vascular Review project will have numerous detailed objectives to meet the 

NHS England Service Specification. However, these objectives can be grouped 

into six major work streams as follows: 

1. To implement the revised Bristol and Bath Vascular Emergency Rota in 

February 2013 (completed) 

2. To assess the impact of change on services and the populations served, 

mitigate risks as appropriate and engage effectively with patients, local 

representatives and stakeholder organisations, to make the case for change 

and ensure the service models meet patients’ best interests. 

3. To agree and implement a high level vision and detailed care pathways for 

those patients currently managed by vascular surgeons at NBT, UHBristol 

(including the BHI), WAHT and RUH by May 2014 with different pathway 

options considered. This includes all open and endovascular arterial 

procedures and major lower limb amputation with a recognition that 

amputation may be deferred. 
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4. To assess the suitability of Southmead as the site of the new Arterial Centre 

including its capacity and facilities  

5. To draft a detailed business plan summarising the operational and financial 

implications of the revised service and have this signed off by RUH, NBT 

and UHBristol. If there are major financial implications on them, WAHT and 

relevant commissioners also to sign off. 

6. To plan for and execute the move of services where required according to 

the revised care pathways by May 2014. 

 
 

 

Action Required:  

 
Trust Board is requested to NOTE progress on the Bath / Bristol Vascular Review 
Project 
 

 

Key Risks: As set out in the Project Initiation Document 
 

Impact on Patients: See Executive summary 
 

Impact on Staff The changes will result in the transfer of some staff to 
NBT 

Link to Trust Objectives:  All 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

To be determined 

NHS Constitution: All 

Financial Issues: As set out in the Project Initiation Document 

Legal/regulatory Issues: N/A 

Equality Issues considered The creation of an arterial centre in Southmead may 
present access issues for the population in outlying areas 

 
 
 
 

 



Progress Report   
Vascular Centralisation 
Date:   21st May 2013 
SRO:  Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People and Performance, North Bristol NHS Trust & Chair of Bath/Bristol Vascular Review Board     

In Development: 
 

Status:  
Green 

Summary of Progress 
A national review of vascular services is underway, driven by NHS 
England (specialist commissioners). The key recommendations of 
this review are :- 
• A network-wide service model and MDT are established 
• All arterial surgery will be provided at a vascular centre 
• The centre and network cover a minimum population of 

800,000 
• There is a network wide bypass protocol for vascular 

emergencies 
• That the arterial centre has a 24/7 vascular surgery rota  
• That the arterial centre with 24/7 interventional radiology rota  
• There is access to a hybrid theatre for endovascular aortic 

procedures 
 
A full Project Initiation Document is available to Board 

members from Harry Hayer. 
 
Recent Achievements 
• Pathway mapping day including clinicians from all Trusts, 

commissioners, patients and the public has been agreed and 
set up for 11th June 2013. It will be led by commissioners to 
ensure a transparent process.  

• Business Case for Hybrid Operating Theatre provision at 
Southmead is being developed. 

• Teleconference with Specialist Commissioners took place to 
try to gain clarification about their expectations. Confirmed that 
the final national specification is due at the end of May and that 
they would be in a position to give clear guidance and mandate 
to continue at that point. 

• High level assessment of Southmead new hospital capacity 
demonstrates sufficient capacity for a 32-bedded dedicated 
vascular ward and space for additional 12 vascular surgery 
theatre lists.  

Risks Mitigation 

High Risk 
Failure to agree financial basis of new 

care pathways 
 
Not ensuring robust and independent 

process to confirm Southmead as 
most appropriate site 

 
Medium Risk: 
Failure to engage and gain support of 

patients and local government 
 
Inadequate project resources to deliver 

project within timescales 
 
Low Risk: 
Not delivering expected quality benefits 
 

20% of project time devoted to 
understanding financial implications of 
decisions to inform negotiations 
 
Independent chair sought for Vascular 
Review Board. Specialist Commissioning 
– likely to be an independent public 
health consultant to lead process of 
assurance around Southmead as arterial 
centre. 
 
PPI strategy drafted and led by 
commissioning lead to ensure focussed 
effort in communicating reason for 
change. 
 
Business case drafted proposing 
increased investment. 
Separate work streams on governance in 
pathway sub-project. Clear and regular 
monitoring KPIs to be integrated into 
Network governance. 

Next Steps 
- Gain clarification of expectations and a revised specification from NHS England;  
- Run pathway mapping day as planned on 11th June 2013;  
- Development of the case for the hybrid operating theatre and submit to the appropriate group. 
 
End State:  
The creation of an Arterial Centre at Southmead Hospital and a Vascular Network across 
Bristol, Weston and Bath that meets the NHS England specification for vascular surgery 
to improve patient outcomes. 
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BETTER HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SERVICES, BETTER COMMUNITIES – OUR PLEDGE
 
Beveridge believed that the government should provide its 
citizens with social security ‘from the cradle to the grave’. We still 
believe this, and we believe that we can continue to improve the 
NHS through the greatest challenge since it was founded.   
 
We have set out a plan to have a health and social care system 
which is: 

• Affordable 
• Prevents illness 
• Maintains independence  
• Streamlines how this all happens for people, so that it 

is easier to get well and stay well.  
 

What are our ambitious plans for the people, adults and 
children, who live in Bristol, North Somerset and South 
Gloucestershire?   

This is what we are pledging to do for the health of our 
population, over 900,000 people.  

We intend that everyone will: 
1. Have the best start in life,  enjoy a better quality of life and 

live longer 
2. Feel as independent as possible and able to manage their 

health, regardless of their age 
3. Receive safe health and social care services 
4. Know their way around the services they need, because 

the map is simple 
5. Have a better chance of good health and a longer life, that 

is far less dependent on where people live, their age, 
gender, ethnicity or their income 

6. Have as short a wait as possible for a health or social 
care service 

7. Be happy with the services they receive.  

 
 
How will we do this? 

 Over the next three years we will: 
o Know who might be at risk, identify who is at risk; help 

them stay well 
o Plan for the future: understand the profile of demand and 

disease and implement a strategy for the configuration and 
delivery of services that will best meet those needs. 

o Operate 7 days a week:   We will work to appropriately 
expand or reconfigure provision of care across the days of 
the week in accordance with patterns of demand. 

o Diagnose earlier and support self care/self led care 
o Simplify our system: ensure that health and social care 

professionals, people using our services, carers and 
members of the public are able to make the right choice 
because it is the easiest choice.    

o Minimise time in bedded settings: we want to keep 
people healthy and independent which means working 
together to make sure that the bed they are in is the most 
appropriate place for them.  This includes developing 
effective transfers of care between providers to ensure the 
data and information follows the person’s journey.  

o Using and implementing the best research and 
development, with early adoption of innovation 

o Work together across all of the parts of the health and 
social care system - public, charitable and independent.  

o Show leadership through our contribution to civil and 
economic development
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What about individuals? 

This means that when people:  

 

Are well  We will offer them the knowledge and tools to maintain and if possible improve their health and 
wellbeing.   

Need care urgently or in 
an emergency: 

  

 We will do everything we can to provide what they need in or near to their own home, and to 
minimise the amount of time they have to spend anywhere other than this.   

 There will not be any fundamental difference on any given day of the week - we will not be 
treating people differently because it is a Saturday or Sunday.  

 People will know where to go, and they will get excellent treatment, or assessment to direct them 
to the best place   

Need to stay in a hospital  

 

  Everything works together to get them back home as soon as they are fit enough, and provides 
appropriate support if they need it. 

  People who need rehabilitation, enablement and reablement services will usually have these 
close to or at home. 

Have long term conditions 
or a sudden illness 

 They will be assessed and diagnosed by a relevant specialist quickly, so they can get the health 
or social care service they need and start managing their condition as soon as possible. 

Are at higher risk of illness 
or need help to prevent 
things getting worse  

  We will offer services to help them stay healthy for longer. For example, we will develop care 
plans with them so that they understand how to maintain their quality of life, and what to do if 
their symptoms worsen 

Are close to dying  

 

  We will work openly and honestly with people, carers and families to plan for the end of life. 
More people will be able to die with dignity and support at home, if that is their wish. 
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  7.3 

Date of Meeting: 30 May 

 

Report Title: Healthy Futures Programme - Pledge 
Status: For information discussion assurance approval 

 x  x 

Prepared by: Healthy Futures Programme 

Board Sponsor: Harry Hayer, Director of Organisation, People & Performance 

Appendices: Healthy Futures Programme - Pledge 
 

 

Executive Summary:  

 
The attached ‘pledge’ sets out a framework within which the Healthy Futures Programme 
will operate. All Healthy Futures Programme partners are being asked to endorse the 
pledge. 

 

 

Action Required:  

 
Trust Board is requested to ENDORSE the Healthy Futures Programme Pledge 
 

 

Key Risks: Poor system working will lead to sub-optimal patient care 
 

Impact on Patients: The pledge will have a direct impact on the quality and 
experience of patient care 
 

Impact on Staff Better system working will improve staff experience 

Link to Trust Objectives:  All 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

All 

NHS Constitution: All 

Financial Issues: The health system will achieve better efficiency through 
closer partnership working 

Legal/regulatory Issues: N/A 

Equality Issues considered N/A 
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Trend Directorate 

Breakdown 

(period shown 

below)

A
c
c
e

s
s

Cancelled 

Ops

% Same Day Cancelled Ops Non-Clinical Reasons 0.8 % 1.4 %

Big5 Sub Domain Short Description Target Performance 

YTD

Performance 

in Period

North Bristol NHS Trust Atlas
FAIL INFO.PASS

Directorate Trend View Board KPI Analysis



Kpi Ref

136 -3.1 % -3.4 % -0.9 % 0.1 % 2.9 % -5.8 % 0.4 %

137 -1.0 % 2.3 % -4.7 % 3.7 % 0.9 % -1.2 % 0.3 %

138 9.8 % 1.0 % -1.6 % 9.9 % 1.4 % 2.0 % 2.0 %

139 40.3 % 53.2 % 6.5 % 50.9 % 13.2 % 18.4 % 29.6 %

147 52.3 % 83.9 % 66.1 % 74.6 % 67.3 % 90.0 % 65.0 %

148 1.71 % 2.11 % -3.19 % 6.89 % 4.41 % -0.24 % 5.08 %

130

131

132

133

134

135

140 450.0 % -45.6 % -28.0 % -6.8 % -3.4 %

141 14.5 % -5.5 % -1.8 % 3.2 % 5.9 %

142 692.1 % 5.3 % 15.6 % -4.1 % -7.6 %

143 -10.0 % 5.5 % 53.2 % -0.4 % 5.9 %

144 5.0 % -8.7 % 3.7 % -3.0 % 8.1 %

145 -20.6 % -11.8 %

146 52.6 % 18.4 % 0.0 %% Variance Rehab Beddays 0.0 % 23.4 % 0.9 % Mar-13 YTD -12.1 % 25.5 %

23.7 %

% Variance Critical Care Beddays 0.0 % -4.0 % -13.1 % Mar-13 YTD 19.1 %

-0.2 % -15.7 %

% Variance Follow-up Outpatients 0.0 % 1.3 % 0.2 % Mar-13 YTD -0.4 %

% Variance New Outpatients 0.0 % 0.5 % -2.9 % Mar-13 YTD

% Variance Non-Elective 0.0 % -1.0 % -1.8 % Mar-13 YTD 2.5 % -4.3 %

-23.0 %

% Variance Daycase 0.0 % -1.3 % 3.3 % Mar-13 YTD -17.2 % -16.7 %

Perf. vs SLA

% Variance Elective Inpatients 0.0 % -13.5 % -5.2 % Mar-13 YTD -14.4 %

% Planned EBITDA Acheived 0.00 % 95.51 % Mar-13 YTD

Liquidity (Days) 0 30 Mar-13 YTD

% Return on Capital 0.00 % 2.69 % Mar-13 YTD

% EBITDA 0.00 % 6.21 % Mar-13 YTD

% YTD Normalised Surplus 0.00 % 0.17 % Mar-13 YTD

12.17 % 5.22 % -2.88 %

Financial 

Risk

% YTD I&E Surplus 0.00 % 0.95 % Mar-13 YTD

% Current Month Normalised Variance 0.00 % 1.20 % Mar-13 

-0.1 %

3 Year risk adjusted savings as % of target 100.0 % 74.7 % Mar-13 84.1 % 66.4 % 76.0 %

10.1 % -3.1 %

% YTD Efficiency Savings Variance 0.0 % 24.1 % Mar-13 YTD 60.0 % 37.9 %

2.9 % 5.6 % -2.9 %

% Non Pay Variance 0.0 % 3.0 % Mar-13 YTD 0.3 %

% Pay Variance 0.0 % 0.7 % Mar-13 YTD

Mar-13 YTD 6.3 % -0.3 % -0.9 %

Trend Directorate 

Breakdown 

(period shown 

below)

F
in

a
n

c
e

Financial 

Performance 

 Against Plan

% Income Variance 0.0 % -0.7 %

Big5 Sub Domain Short Description Target Performance 

YTD

Performance 

in Period

North Bristol NHS Trust Atlas
FAIL INFO.PASS

Directorate Trend View Board KPI Analysis



Kpi Ref

125 0 1 0 1 0 0

095 0 0 0 0 0

100 0 0 0 2 0

127

149

151

128 5 23 19 7 2

126 0 2 0 0 0

150 2 6 1 2

129 59.4 % 75.0 % 88.9 % 77.0 % 95.7 %68.2 %

Theatre 

Documentati

on

% WHO Safety Checklist Theatre Docs. Completed 81.1 % 81.1 % Apr-13 90.4 %

0

Serious 

Incidents
Number Serious Incidents eAIMS 21 21 Apr-13 YTD 2

4

Pressure 

Ulcers
Number of Grade 3 or 4 Pressure Ulcers 3 3 Apr-13 YTD 1

Patient 

Experience
Number of Complaints 70 70 Apr-13 10

Never Events Number of Never Events rolling 12 months 0 2 Apr-13 

Mortality SHMI Rolling 12 Month 97.7 Sep-12 

1 2

Mortality

Mortality HSMR Rolling 12 Month 87.4 Jan-13 

Apr-13 YTD 0 0

C-Difficile Infections 4 5 5 Apr-13 YTD

HCAI

MRSA Bacteraemia post 48 hrs 0 0 0

4 Apr-13 1 1

Trend Directorate 

Breakdown 

(period shown 

below)

Q
u

a
lity

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty

Falls Number of Severe Falls 4

Big5 Sub Domain Short Description Target Performance 

YTD

Performance 

in Period

North Bristol NHS Trust Atlas
FAIL INFO.PASS

Directorate Trend View Board KPI Analysis



Kpi Ref

191 0.1 % 0.1 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.1 % 0.3 % 0.6 %

192 5.0 % 5.0 % 0.0 % 1.1 % 3.5 % 0.0 %

045 0.7 % 5.6 % 0.1 % 3.5 % 0.8 % 9.9 % 8.8 %

193 4.4 % 4.3 % 4.3 % 3.7 % 4.0 % 5.1 % 2.6 %

058 86.5 % 84.2 % 86.9 % 72.7 % 88.5 % 87.8 % 88.3 %

194 81.6 % 78.5 % 87.7 % 77.9 % 83.9 % 78.1 % 81.3 %77.1 % 82.2 % 80.1 %

82.8 % 82.6 % 88.2 %

Training % Compliance Top 5 Training Stat./Mand. Types 85.0 % 81.0 % Apr-13 

5.0 % 4.7 % 4.4 %

Staffing
% Stability Index FTE > 1 Yr Service vs. FTE 12 

Months Prior
84.9 % Apr-13 

1.4 % 3.9 % 0.3 %

Sickness % Sickness Rolling 12 Months 3.8 % 4.1 % Mar-13 

2.0 % 0.0 %

Costs % Agency Cost of Total Workforce 2.7 % 3.2 % Mar-13 YTD

% Doctors' Appraisals YTD 100.0 % 3.2 % Apr-13 YTD

Apr-13 YTD 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Trend Directorate 

Breakdown 

(period shown 

below)

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

Appraisals

% Non Medical Staff Appraisal 90.0 % 0.2 %

Big5 Sub Domain Short Description Target Performance 

YTD

Performance 

in Period

North Bristol NHS Trust Atlas
FAIL INFO.PASS

Directorate Trend View Board KPI Analysis
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  8.1.1 

Date of Meeting: 30th May 2013 

 

Report Title: Activity and Performance Report 

Status: For information discussion assurance Approval 
    

Prepared by: Alison Moroz  

Board Sponsor: Sasha Karakusevic 

Appendices: Atlas KPI Sparkline 
 

 

Executive Summary:  
 
RTT performance – all targets achieved at a Trust level in April  
 
Cancer – April performance not yet completely validated.  Problems persist with the 62 day 
target. 
 
Cancelled operations – high level of cancellations in April, primarily due to patient flow 
problems 
 
4 Hour waits – 85.2% achieved for Trust attendances in April 2013 against 95% target and 
79.5% for the Frenchay department. 
 
Action Required:  

Trust Board is requested to:  
 
Note the report and ensure that actions, particularly regarding incomplete pathways, are 
undertaken by directorates. 
Key Risks: Failure to hit key targets will jeopardise the FT 

application process.   
 

Impact on Patients: The standards are designed to identify and support the 
delivery of high quality care for patients.  The core 
standards are a right defined in the NHS Constitution.  
Therefore, non-delivery represents a failure to provide 
the required standard of care. 

Impact on Staff Ongoing processes need to be improved to ensure that 
pressure is not put on staff to validate high numbers of 
records. 

Link to Trust Objectives:  1 and 2 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

Performance indicators  

NHS Constitution: Access to services. 

Financial Issues: Risk on income received. 

Legal/regulatory Issues: Yes 

Equality Issues considered N/A 
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Performance Report 
 
1. RTT  
 

a. Admitted performance 
 The Trust achieved the 90% target in April. All specialties, with the exception of 

orthopaedics and neurosurgery, achieved the target. There has been an agreement 
with commissioners that orthopaedics will achieve the target on a monthly basis from 
the start of Quarter 2 onwards. Neurosurgery is currently identifying additional capacity 
to ensure the target is met in future months.  

 
b. Non-admitted performance 

 The Trust achieved the 95% target in April 
 

c. Incomplete pathways 
 The Trust has achieved 93.1% of the number of open pathways being under 18 weeks 

against a national target of 92%. Plans are being developed to further reduce the 
backlog during 2013/14 by the end of the month. Part of the planning process will seek 
to eliminate all patients waiting for longer than 35 weeks for treatment. 

 
2. Cancer performance 
 

Urology continues to be the specialty with the highest number of cancer breaches, 
associated both with the 62 day targets and 31 day targets. The position for April has 
not yet been fully validated and performance is expected to improve when this 
process is finalised. This is a high priority for resolution and the Interim General 
Manager is undergoing detailed work with the specialty to identify solutions to both 
the process and capacity issues. In addition, activity is being looked at prospectively 
to ensure processes and capacity are in place to treat patients within the target time 
periods  
 

3. Same day cancelled operations 
 

Performance is at 1.4% against a national target of 0.8%. Of these cancellations, 14 
have not been re-booked within 28 days. 
 
The high number of cancellations largely relate to the 4-hour and patient flow 
problems experienced in April. A more robust process of escalation of these 
cancellations has been put in place and the effectiveness of this is now being closely 
monitored.  
 

4. 4 hour waits 
 

Attendances in April were high and performance poor. 75% of patients were seen in 
4 hours at Frenchay (5961 attendances) and the combined performance was 85% 
(8666 attendances). The Trust used the internal critical incident process on April 15th 
to manage extreme pressures on beds. 
 
A number of issues contributed to this performance including: 
 

 Introduction of 111 service 

 Changes in out of hours arrangements 

 Staffing difficulties 

 High occupancy levels 
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The recovery plan has been agreed as part of the 2013/14 contract and 
implementation continues. 
 

 The complex assessment and liaison services have started in pilot form. To date 
385 patients have been seen. Initial results demonstrate a reduction in 
readmissions and length of stay. The pilot is also identifying opportunities to 
improve the assessment process. 

 Plans for extending 7 day coverage of acute medicine are progressing. A revised 
business case will be produced during June. 

 Trauma has reviewed a number of pathways to balance all of Frenchay and 
Southmead beds which is improving flow. 

 Bed management hours have been extended and escalation training continues. 

 Implementation of a combined assessment unit will start in June. This is being 
combined with the deep clean programme and launch of the discharge bundle.  
The resulting ward layout will mimic the layout of the new hospital and allow 
further testing and development of the new model of care. 

 Work to improve partnerships continues. A new urgent care board is being 
established and this brings together the South Gloucestershire CCG, Local 
Authority and Acute and Community Services. The initial focus of work is 
redesign of the assessment process. 

 
Providing progress continues as expected. We are on track to consistently deliver the 
4 hour standard from the end of Quarter 1. The major risks to this are: 
 

 Variation in demand 

 Levels of bed availability. The number of escalation beds will be reviewed during 
June. 

 Progress of the BNSSG Urgent Care Programme 
 
Since April, performance has improved. The first 2 weeks in May have seen the best 
performance since August 2011. Patient volume remained high throughout the period 
but occupied beds reduced to within the budgeted level for the first time since 
Christmas.   
 
Unfortunately performance in week 3 dipped below standard. The main changes 
appear to be the loss of about 15 beds on 2 wards due to infection/staffing issues. 

This demonstrates how finely balanced the system is.  

Work continues to implement the recovery plan. A review session is planned for the 
29th May. 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  8.1.2 

Date of Meeting: 30th May 2013 

 

Report Title: Update to Revenue Budgets for 2013/14 including outcome of 
contract negotiations.  

 

Status: For information discussion assurance approval 

   X 

Prepared by: Nigel Baker, Deputy Director of Finance 

Board Sponsor: Bill Boa, Interim Director of Finance 

Appendices: Update 

 

Executive Summary:  

 

The Revenue budget for 2013/14 has been updated in light of actual outturn for 2012/13 
and completion of contract negotiations with commissioners. Overall the recurrent outturn 
brought forward and the planned surplus for the year remain unchanged from the March 
budget paper. However there have been some changes in the sources and application of 
funds and these are set out in this paper and appendix. 

 

Action Required:  

 

The Trust Board is asked to approve the changes to the revenue budget for 2013/14. 

 

Key Risks: Achievement of savings target; 

Commissioner activity reduction plans requiring reduction 
in capacity; 

Cost pressures in excess of the sum set aside eg for 
consequences arising from meeting recommendations of 
the Francis report. 

Impact on Patients: Delivery of year one of the medium term financial plan 
secures the patient benefits identified in the Integrated 
Business Plan of the Trust.  

Trust Objectives:  To be a strong financially healthy organisation. 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

None 

NHS Constitution: This budget supports compliance with the NHS 
Constitution.  

Financial Issues: Yes 

Equality Issues: No 

Other Legal/regulatory Issues: Yes 

 

 



NORTH BRISTOL NHS TRUST 
 

REPORT TO TRUST BOARD 30th MAY 2013 
 

UPDATE ON REVENUE BUDGET FOR 2013/14 
 
 
1. Introduction 

  
We have updated the budget paper presented to the March Trust Board meeting for the 
actual 2012/13 outturn and following negotiations of activity contracts with 
Commissioners. 
 
The changes are set out below, with a revised Source and Application of Funds attached 
as Appendix 1. 

  
2. 2012/13 outturn  
 
        The recurrent outturn remains at £2.9m 
 
3.     Contract with commissioners 
 

Whilst the full contract has not yet been presented to the Trust for signature, the Heads of 
Terms have been agreed and signed. Key elements are: 

 
3.1   Activity levels 
The SLAs have been set at recurrent forecast outturn for all commissioners with the 
following exceptions: 

 Some service specific growth has been included in the Specialist Commissioning 

plan for Renal £0.6m, Neurosurgery £0.6m, HIV £0.4m, Beta Interferon £0.2m; 

 BNSSG commissioners have insisted that they have QIPP plans that will offset any 

demographic growth, so no growth has been included; 

 Elective activity to reduce the waiting list backlog of £1.6m; 

 Further QIPP over and above that to offset growth of £2.0m for South 

Gloucestershire CCG and £0.5m for Specialist Commissioning; 

 Reduction of £0.5m in South Gloucestershire CCG for activity that will be carried 

out at the Emersons Green ISTC; 

 Growth in NICE drugs expenditure of £1.5m; 

 Transfers of Breast and Urology services to NBT from UHBristol FT and of Head & 

Neck services from NBT to UHBristol FT, a net reduction of £5.5m; 

 An investment in Health Visitors of £0.6m. 

Overall the intent of BNSSG commissioners was to set the plan at levels which they 
deemed affordable to them. We have accepted this on the basis that it is a variable 
contract and any over performance is at their risk. 
 
3.2   CQUINs 
Detailed CQUINs schemes are being set up by CCGs and Specialist Commissioners and 
the SLA assumes 100% achievement. (NHS England and the Trust Development Authority 
require commissioners and providers to agree SLAs at that level). 
 
3.3   Penalties 
The most significant penalties in the national contract would be levied on the level of  



c difficile infections and ambulance handover delays if similar performance to 2012/13 
was achieved. 
 
We have therefore included the following two paragraphs in the Heads of Terms in 
respect of penalties to provide a level of financial protection to the Trust: 
 

 The nationally mandated penalties and sanctions set out in the 2013/14 NHS 

standard contract will apply. Financial penalties and fines in the contract will be 

used as the last resort after having followed all contractual processes to resolve 

underlying performance issues in partnership with the provider. It will be the 

intention of all commissioners to reinvest financial penalties in the provider health 

system services to restore performance in order that further financial adjustment is 

avoided wherever possible 

 

 To ensure the penalty payable for Ambulance Handover times is proportionate 

there will be an agreed limit to the amount payable to SWASFT under the finally 

agreed contract terms. 

3.4   Tariff changes 
The new tariffs have been modelled against 2012/13 activity and indicate that the Trust 
income will reduce by £1.8m. This is some £2.5m better than the guidance suggested 
overall. 
 
The most radical change in the tariff for 2013/14 is the introduction of ‘pathway’ payments 
for maternity services. In future a single payment is made for antenatal care and another 
for postnatal care in respect of each mother. There are 3 levels based on assessed likely 
complexity. Overall we have assessed this to be neutral although this is based on pilot 
data only. 
 
A second key change is the ‘unbundling’ of radiology diagnostics from the outpatient tariff, 
so that we will be paid on actual tests done rather than based on national averages. 
 
3.5   Review of 2012/13 
The commissioners will review again during quarter 1 aspects of our charging in 2012/13 
as they believe that there have been some issues with our billing that they may wish to 
challenge with regard to 2013/14. This relates to both activity levels and prices. 

 
4. Activity and Income 
 

Directorates have reviewed their activity assumptions based on the commissioner 
negotiations. Some differences have been included which overall means that the Trust 
income plans will be set £6.5m higher than the SLAs. The main differences are as follows: 
 

 We have not reduced activity for the additional QIPP in South Gloucestershire of 
£2.0m as we do not have sufficient evidence to warrant a reduction in capacity. We 
have raised this issue with the NHS England Area Team and would seek support 
from the ‘headroom’ fund if activity actually did reduce by this level and we could 
not release costs fast enough; 

 The full estimate of the waiting list backlog is £1.5m higher than that included in the 
SLA. Commissioners would not accept this in the SLA but we have to plan to carry 
out this activity to meet the NHS constitution; 



 We have included £0.9m of market share changes in respect of major trauma and 
Cossham birth centre. This will be cost neutral to commissioners as work will 
transfer from other providers; 

 A small number of specific areas of growth have been included by directorates (e.g 
direct access diagnostics) totaling £1.0m. 

 
         These differences represent some risk but we believe the rationale for each is valid. 
 

The income and costs relating to activity changes have therefore been updated in the 
source and applications but are not significantly different from the original budget.  
 
The tariff impact has been updated and replaces the adjustment for readmissions which 
was actually achieved in 2012/13. 
 
Further ‘Other Income’ losses have been confirmed in Education and Training levies and 
Research income of £1.1m. We are continuing to seek transitional support for the 
Education change as this is partly non-recurrent in 2013/14 and will increase by £0.5m in 
2014/15.       

 
5.     Additional local cost pressures 
 

Further cost pressures have been identified by Directorates and we have increased the 
sum set aside for these by £0.9m to £2.1m. These will be thoroughly cross examined 
before approval and allocation of funds. 
 

6.    Other items 
 

In the March budget paper the reduction in PDC dividend that arises due to the impairment 
of the new hospital was shown below the line as an IFRIC 12 item. The Trust Development 
Authority guidance has amended this treatment and this benefit is now shown in the Source 
& Applications. This has enabled us to fund the increased cost pressures in 5, absorb the 
additional ‘other’ income loss in 4 and increase the contingency by £1.6m whilst still 
achieving the planned level of surplus set out in March. 

 
7.    Resultant requirement for efficiency savings in 2013/14 
 

The savings requirement remains at £24.3m. Directorates have identified £22.3m of 
savings but this reduces to £17.5m when risk adjusted. There is clearly some way to go for 
the Trust to have to robust and adequate savings plan for the year. Review meetings are 
being held with Directorates and cross cutting theme leads to improve this position. 
 

8.    Non recurrent items 
 

Since March additional transitional funding of £4.5m has been confirmed by NHS England, 
increasing the total available in 2013/14 to £17m. This will be used to cover the non-
recurrent costs relating to the new hospital in 2013/14 including accelerated depreciation, 
new hospital project team, move costs and other related project costs. 

 
9.    Financial risks 
 
       The key risks inherent in the budget are:- 
 

 Failure to achieve the savings target  

 Failure to release cost to the required level where income falls 

 Failure to achieve CQUINs targets and loss of income 



 Penalties for performance failure 
 
10.    Summary and recommendation 
 

This report sets out a revised budget plan for 2013/14 that achieves the short term financial 
objectives of the Trust, and is consistent with the medium term strategy.  However this will 
be another challenging year due the £24.3m savings. There is a level of risk within this 
budget, however it remains within our reach, provided we do the following:- 

 

 Step up the rate of productivity improvement  

 Take opportunities for growth or transfer where they exist and are affordable to the 
relevant Commissioners 

 Control our costs 

 Meet CQUINs targets 

 Avoid performance penalties 
 
      It is recommended that the revised budget be approved. 



 

Appendix 1

Statement of Sources and Applications of Funds

Recurrent 

changes

Non-

recurrent 

changes Total

£m £m £m

2012/13 recurrent outturn (for NHS accountability) (2.9) (2.9)

Income changes

     Gross tariff uplift (13.8) (13.8)

     CQUINS (4.9) (4.9)

     Tariff reductions for efficiency savings  18.1 18.1

     Other tariff changes (2.5) (2.5)

     Activity and service changes

           Growth and market share (7.6) (7.6)

           Service transfers 5.5 5.5

           NICE (1.5) (1.5)

     Other income 2.5 2.5

     PFI support (17.0) (17.0)

Total income changes (4.3) (17.0) (21.3)

Expenditure changes 

    Generic cost pressures (inflation etc) 12.6 12.6

     CQUINS 2.1 2.1

    Other cost pressures 2.1 2.1

     Activity and service changes

           Growth and market share 5.8 5.8

           Service transfers (4.1) (4.1)

           NICE 1.5 1.5

    Costs associated with other income changes (0.1) (0.1)

    Contingency 3.6 3.6

    Non-recurrent project costs 2.7 2.7

    PFI costs 17.0 17.0

    Savings required 2013/14 (24.3) (24.3)

    Depreciation 2.9 2.9

    Interest receivable (0.0) (0.0)

    Interest payable 0.4 0.4

    Dividend (3.5) (3.5)

Total expenditure changes (1.1) 19.7 18.6

Projected 2013/14 I&E surplus for NHS accountability (8.3) 2.7 (5.6)

12/13 outturn to 13/14 plan (fav) / adverse

 



Measurement 
 
 

The major measurement models are now aligned with 
update processes to control. An overview of affordability 
was provided to the wider senior team to ensure a join base 
knowledge. 

Progress in implementation of PMO 
processes in NBT 

PMO Team 
 
 

The PMO associates undertook a stock 
check of delivery with executive check to 
ensure similar thinking. Development 
continues 

Integrated Project Support 
 
 

The IPS team (and wider trust 
project teams) are integrated in 
operational delivery as required 
to support through resourcing 
plans. GM feedback has been 
sought to reassure delivery. 

Scrutiny 
 
 

Scrutiny has developed to include critical path and risk 
review utilising new systems, and links to other governance 
meetings for cross checking. Business case support and 
review is offered and delivered by scrutiny team during case 
development.  

Matrix 
 
 

The themes are determining key 
interdependencies as a result of critical 
milestone planning to ensure that all 
key decision points are understood. 

Executive Review 
 

 
The Executive Reviews have continued to mature 
with a standard approach embedded. The timetable 
has been reviewed to ensure coverage of all areas in 
a timely fashion 

Good function 

Implementation progress bar 

Poor function 
May-13 Apr-13 
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Report to: Report to Trust Board – May 2013   Agenda item:  8.1.3 

Date of Meeting: 30th May 2013 

 

Report Title: Road to 2014 – Programme Management 
Office (PMO) Implementation Report 

Status: For 
information 

discussion assurance approval 

X    

Prepared by: Ian Triplow  

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Marie-Noelle Orzel 

Appendices (list if applicable): PMO Report 

Executive Summary:  

 
The Trust has implemented a Programme Management Office to provide a programme 
function to scrutinise and co-ordinate the programme for changing the operational models 
of delivery and productivity measures for the ‘Road to 2014’ transforming services 
programme. 
 
Key issues covered are; 

1. Resourcing (through the PMO) for theme delivery 
2. Executive Review Meeting processes (both scrutiny and delivery) to make 

decisions and unblock issues 
3. Co-ordination of cross cutting issues through themes and directorates, supported 

by Trust wide models. 
 

Action Required:  
The Trust Board is requested to NOTE the PMO Report. 

 

Key Risks: Failure to deliver the ‘Road to 2014 Transforming Services’  
Programme carries significant service delivery, financial,  
quality and workforce risks. 

Impact on Patients: All of the themes relate directly to patient care: e.g. new 
hospital and service transfers. 

Impact on Staff: All staff at NBT will be affected by the ‘Road to 2014  
Transforming Services’ Programme.  

Link to Trust Objectives:  All 

Care Quality Commission 
Outcomes: 

All 

NHS Constitution: Delivery of the programme will assist the Trust to meet its 
obligations under the NHS Constitution. 

Financial Issues: The ‘Road to 2014 Transforming Services’ Programme is the  
primary driver to meet the Trust’s savings programme and  
affordability for the new hospital. 

Legal/regulatory Issues: As relevant.  

Equality Issues considered: Equality Impact Assessments will be conducted for all  
significant themes affecting patients and staff. 

 



For each statement, the Board is asked to confirm the following:

For CLINICAL QUALITY, that: Response

1 Yes

2 Yes

3 Yes

For FINANCE, that: Response

4 Yes

For GOVERNANCE, that: Response

5 Yes

6 Yes

7 Yes

8 Yes

9 Yes

10 No

11 Yes

12 Yes

13 Yes

14 Yes

Board Statements North Bristol  NHS Trust
Apr-13

The Board is satisfied that, to the best of its knowledge and using its own processes and having had regard to the TDA’s 

oversight model (supported by Care Quality Commission information, its own information on serious incidents, patterns of 

complaints, and including any further metrics it chooses to adopt), the trust has, and will keep in place, effective 

arrangements for the purpose of monitoring and continually improving the quality of healthcare provided to its patients.

The board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure ongoing compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s 

registration requirements.

The board is satisfied that processes and procedures are in place to ensure all medical practitioners providing care on 

behalf of the trust have met the relevant registration and revalidation requirements.

The board is satisfied that the trust shall at all times remain a going concern, as defined by the most up to date 

accounting standards in force from time to time.

The board will ensure that the trust remains at all times compliant with the NTDA accountability framework and shows 

regard to the NHS Constitution at all times.

All current key risks to compliance with the NTDA's Accountability Framework have been identified (raised either 

internally or by external audit and assessment bodies) and addressed – or there are appropriate action plans in place to 

address the issues in a timely manner.

The board has considered all likely future risks to compliance with the NTDA Accountability Framework and has reviewed 

appropriate evidence regarding the level of severity, likelihood of a breach occurring and the plans for mitigation of these 

risks to ensure continued compliance.

The board is satisfied that all executive and non-executive directors have the appropriate qualifications, experience and 

skills to discharge their functions effectively, including setting strategy, monitoring and managing performance and risks, 

and ensuring management capacity and capability.

The board is satisfied that: the management team has the capacity, capability and experience necessary to deliver the 

annual operating plan; and the management structure in place is adequate to deliver the annual operating plan.

The necessary planning, performance management and corporate and clinical risk management processes and 

mitigation plans are in place to deliver the annual operating plan, including that all audit committee recommendations 

accepted by the board are implemented satisfactorily.

An Annual Governance Statement is in place, and the trust is compliant with the risk management and assurance 

framework requirements that support the Statement pursuant to the most up to date guidance from HM Treasury  

(www.hm-treasury.gov.uk).

The Board is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to ensure ongoing compliance with all existing targets as set out in 

the NTDA oversight model; and a commitment to comply with all known targets going forward.

The trust has achieved a minimum of Level 2 performance against the requirements of the Information Governance 

Toolkit.

The board will ensure that the trust will at all times operate effectively. This includes maintaining its register of interests, 

ensuring that there are no material conflicts of interest in the board of directors; and that all board positions are filled, or 

plans are in place to fill any vacancies.



Apr-13

For each statement, the Board is asked to confirm the following: Y/N Comments

G4
Fit and proper persons as Governors and Directors (also 

applicable to those performing equivalent or similar functions)
Yes

In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.

G5 Monitor guidance Yes

In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response. Unclear why we would inform 

Monitor of non compliance directly as inferred by the wording of this 

condition - as a non FT.

G7 Registration with the Care Quality Commission Yes Compliant.

G8 Patient eligibility and selection criteria Yes
In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.

P1 Recording of information Yes
In principle - presumably applies to information requested by NTDA 

rather than Monitor as a non FT?

P2 Provision of information Yes
In principle - presumably applies to information requested by NTDA 

rather than Monitor as a non FT?

P3 Assurance report on submissions to Monitor Yes
In principle - presumably applies to information requested by NTDA 

rather than Monitor as a non FT?

P4 Compliance with the National Tariff Yes
In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.

P5 Constructive engagement concerning local tariff modifications Yes
In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.

C1 The right of patients to make choices Yes
In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.

C2 Competition oversight Yes

In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.  Also as NTDA will be aware Monitor 

are conducting a Stage 11 review of the recent service transfers 

between NBT & UH Bristol FT for Urology, Breast care and Head & 

Neck - which we are fully co-operating with.

IC1 Provision of integrated care Yes
In principle - subject to time to conduct more detailed compliance 

review & seek Board approval which has not yet possible in 

timescales set for this response.

Further guidance can be found in Monitor's response to the statutory consultation on the new NHS provider licence:

The new NHS Provider Licence

North Bristol  NHS TrustBoard Statements 

(Monitor provider Licence)

http://www.monitor-nhsft.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/ToPublishLicenceDoc14February.pdf


Information to inform the discussion meeting

Unit May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 Board Action

1 SHMI - latest data Score 97.6* 97.6* 97.6* 96.7** 96.7** 97.7***

Figure is stated for a 'rolling year,' reported in arrears 

& refreshed quarterly;

*Rolling year (12 mths to March 2012) 

**Rolling year (12mths to Jun 2012)

***Rolling year (12mths to Sept 2012)

2 Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) Screening % 94.39 94 94 95 94 95 95 94 94 95 95 Reported one month in arrears

3a Elective MRSA Screening % 99 99.7 99.2 99.1 99.3 98.7 98.6 98.9 98.7 98.8 99.5 100

3b Non Elective MRSA Screening % 92.1 93 94.4 94.4 92.8 91.3 91.6 91.3 92.8 92.1 90 93

4 Single Sex Accommodation Breaches Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5
Open Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation 

(SIRI)
Number 5 2 4 5 3 3 9 8 4 7 10 9 Of these 9, only 1 is ‘overdue'

6 "Never Events" occurring in month Number 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 MSK - wrong size implant

7 CQC Conditions or Warning Notices Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 Open Central Alert System (CAS) Alerts Number 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

9 RED rated areas on your maternity dashboard? Number 5 2 4 5 8 6 7 4 1 1 1

10 Falls resulting in severe injury or death Number 4 1 0 5 2 1 5 2 3 0 1 1

11 Grade 3 or 4 pressure ulcers Number 1 0 4 2 0 2 3 3 2 1 4 3 Note: Figures are number of PU's not patients

12 100% compliance with WHO surgical checklist Y/N N N N N N N
N 

- 66.5%

N - 

89.4%*

N - 

88.2%

N-

89.4%

% Compliance with Sign In, Time Out & Sign Out.

*includes all theatres minus endoscopy, pain clinic, 

radiology and cath lab. Clinical validity of including 

those areas under review.

13 Formal complaints received Number 59 94 56 74 73 81 62 42 80 73 68 76

14 Agency as a % of Employee Benefit Expenditure % 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 2.9% 2.4% 2.7% 3.0% 2.9% 3.1% 2.9% 3.1% 3.0%

15 Sickness absence rate % 3.89% 3.81% 4.15% 4.13% 4.14% 4.41% 4.45% 4.17% 4.20% 3.9% 4.0% 3.6%

16
Consultants which, at their last appraisal, had fully 

completed their previous years PDP
% 23.50% 44.40% 54.00% 59.00% 61.20% 70.00% 73.10% 3.30%

Appraisal figure has fallen as the new appraisal year 

started in April.

QUALITY North Bristol NHS Trust

Insert Performance in Month

Criteria



See 'Notes' for further detail of each of the below indicators

Area Ref Indicator Sub Sections
Thresh-

old

Weight-

ing

Qtr to 

Sep-12

Qtr to 

Dec-12

Qtr to 

Mar-13
Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13

Qtr to 

June-13
Board Action

Referral to treatment information 50%

Referral information 50%

Treatment activity information 50%

Patient identifier information 50% Yes Yes Yes Yes

Patients dying at home / care home 50% YesReviews commissioned. Board Governance Memorandum reviewed and approved at February Board.YesReviews commissioned. Board Governance Memorandum reviewed and approved at February Board.Yes Yes

1c Data completeness: identifiers MHMDS 97% 0.5 N/a N/a N/a N/a

1c
Data completeness: outcomes for patients 

on CPA
50% 0.5 N/a N/a N/a N/a

2a
From point of referral to treatment in 

aggregate (RTT) – admitted
Maximum time of 18 weeks 90% 1.0 Yes Yes Yes Yes

2b
From point of referral to treatment in 

aggregate (RTT) – non-admitted
Maximum time of 18 weeks 95% 1.0 Yes Yes Yes Yes

2c

From point of referral to treatment in 

aggregate (RTT) – patients on an 

incomplete pathway

Maximum time of 18 weeks 92% 1.0 No No No Yes

2d

Certification against compliance with 

requirements regarding access to 

healthcare for people with a learning 

disability

N/A 0.5 Yes Yes Yes Yes

Surgery 94%

Anti cancer drug treatments 98%

Radiotherapy 94%

From urgent GP referral for 

suspected cancer
85%

From NHS Cancer Screening Service 

referral
90%

3c
All Cancers: 31-day wait from diagnosis to 

first treatment
96% 0.5 No No Yes No

all urgent referrals 93%

for symptomatic breast patients 

(cancer not initially suspected)
93%

3e
A&E: From arrival to 

admission/transfer/discharge
Maximum waiting time of four hours 95% 1.0 Yes No No No

A revised action plan has been submitted to 

commissioners and is being implemented.  It 

predicts compliance from the end of Q1.

Receiving follow-up contact within 7 

days of discharge
95% N/a N/a N/a N/a

Having formal review 

within 12 months
95% N/a N/a N/a

3g
Minimising mental health delayed transfers 

of care
≤7.5% 1.0 N/a N/a N/a N/a

3h

Admissions to inpatients services had 

access to Crisis Resolution/Home 

Treatment teams

95% 1.0 N/a N/a N/a N/a

3i

Meeting commitment to serve new 

psychosis cases by early intervention 

teams

95% 0.5 N/a N/a N/a N/a

Red 1 80% 0.5 N/a N/a N/a N/a

Red 2 75% 0.5 N/a N/a N/a N/a

3k
Category A call – ambulance vehicle 

arrives within 19 minutes
95% 1.0 N/a N/a N/a N/a

Is the Trust below the de minimus 12 No No No No

Is the Trust below the YTD ceiling
Contractual 

trajectory - 61
No No No No

Is the Trust below the de minimus 6 Yes Yes Yes Yes

Is the Trust below the YTD ceiling
Contractual 

trajectory - 6
Yes Yes Yes Yes

CQC Registration

A

Non-Compliance with CQC Essential 

Standards resulting in a Major Impact on 

Patients

0 2.0 No No No No

B
Non-Compliance with CQC Essential 

Standards resulting in Enforcement Action
0 4.0 No No No No

C

NHS Litigation Authority – Failure to 

maintain, or certify a minimum published 

CNST level of 1.0 or have in place 

appropriate alternative arrangements

0 2.0 No No No No

TOTAL 5.5 4.5 4.0 4.5
RAG RATING : R R R R

GOVERNANCE RISK RATINGS North Bristol NHS Trust

Insert YES, NO or N/A (as appropriate)

Historic Data Current Data

E
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s

1a
Data completeness: Community services 

comprising:
1.0 No

1b
Data completeness, community services: 

(may be introduced later) 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

Q
u

a
lit

y

3a
All cancers: 31-day wait for second or 

subsequent treatment, comprising:
1.0

Yes Yes Yes

No

No

Yes

3b All cancers: 62-day wait for first treatment: 1.0 No No

Yes Yes No

3d
Cancer: 2 week wait from referral to date 

first seen, comprising:
0.5 Yes

No

Yes Yes

3f
Care Programme Approach (CPA) 

patients, comprising:
1.0

3j
Category A call –emergency response 

within 8 minutes

S
a

fe
ty

4a Clostridium Difficile 1.0

4b MRSA 1.0

GREEN                   = Score less than 1

AMBER/GREEN    = Score greater than or equal to 1, but less than 2

AMBER / RED        = Score greater than or equal to 2, but less than 4

RED                         = Score greater than or equal to 4



N

o

Qtr to 

Sept-12

Qtr to 

Dec-13

Qtr to 

Mar-13
Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13

Qtr to 

June-13
Board Action

1 Are the prior year contracts* closed? Yes Yes Yes Yes

2
Are all current year contracts* agreed 

and signed?
Yes Yes Yes No

Heads of Terms agreed, now awaiting 

final contracts from CCGs to sign. Aiming 

to finalise by end of May.

3

Has the Trust received income 

support outside of the NHS standard 

contract e.g. transformational 

support?

Yes Yes Yes

Qn. introduced from Nov 12.

4
Are both the NHS Trust and 

commissioner fulfilling the terms of the 

contract?

Yes Yes Yes Yes

5
Are there any disputes over the terms 

of the contract?
No No No No

6
Might the dispute require third party 

intervention or arbitration?
N/a No No No

7 Are the parties already in arbitration? N/a No No No

8
Have any performance notices been 

issued?
Yes No No No

Perf Notice in Q2. Escalated to Exception 

Notice in Q3. ED performance 

improvement trajectory agreed as Board 

is aware.

9 Have any penalties been applied? No No No No

*All contracts which represent more than 25% of the Trust's operating revenue.

Criteria

CONTRACTUAL DATA North Bristol NHS Trust

Information to inform the discussion meeting
Insert "Yes" / "No" Assessment for the Month

Historic Data Current Data
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Report to: Trust Board Agenda item:  8.1.4 

Date of Meeting: 30 May 2013 

 

Report Title: Single Operating Model / NTDA Accountability 
Framework Returns – April 2013 

Status: For information discussion assurance approval 

  x x 

Prepared by: Paul Cresswell, Trust Secretary 

Executive Sponsor (presenting): Marie-Noelle Orzel, Chief Executive 

Appendices (list if applicable):  ‘SOM’ /NTDA Accountability Framework Board 
Statements & appendices 

Executive Summary:  

 
1. NTDA Oversight Regime 
 

The Single Operating Model (SOM) has been replaced by an oversight regime introduced 
by the NHS Trust Development Authority (NTDA) within their Accountability Framework. 
An electronic link to this document is here for reference. 
 
The monthly submission data differs quite significantly to the SOM. It partly mirrors 
Monitor’s requirements, which themselves are changing, but also adds additional 
indicators and responses relating to FT application timelines.  
 
The details are set out within the Accountability Framework as follows; 

 Appendix 1 – Routine Quality and Governance indicators (34 in total, of which 10 are 

additional to Monitor requirements) 

 Appendix 2 – Other Quality and Governance indicators (10 in total) 

 Appendix 3 – Financial indicators (19, of which 10 are  non–Monitor) 

 Appendix 4 - Monthly self-certification requirements 
o Timeline toward achievement of FT status 
o Compliance with Monitor licence requirements for NHS Trusts (same as Monitor) 
o Board statements (same as Monitor) 

 
 
2. NTDA Data Collection process 
 

Whilst the regime was published in April 2013, the mechanism for collecting and reviewing 
the components outlined above is still evolving. The SOM collection mechanism has 
ceased but as yet only 2 of the Appendix 4 requirements (Monitor Provider License & 
Board statements) have been requested – and this was required for submission as a first 
response by Friday 17th May. 
 
Therefore the responses as set out within the Appendix to this paper were submitted. The 
board statements were submitted in line with those approved at April Trust Board. The 
Monitor Provider License responses reflect the best response possible within the very 
limited timescale afforded (one week). A more detailed review will be undertaken internally 
to inform the statement for June. 
 
We have been told that data collection forms are being designed to cover all the quality 
and financial indicators and will be in place within the next month. 
 
 
 

http://www.ntda.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2012/04/framework_050413_web.pdf
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3. Continuity of reporting 
 

In order to maintain continuity for this month, we have continued using the SOM 
mechanism to record; 

 Quality measures 

 Governance Risk Rating 

 Contract position 

 Board statements 

 Monitor Provider Licence responses (new) 
 
On that basis, comments on the key changes are referenced below as in prior months. 
 
 
4. Key Changes in SOM since April Trust Board review 
 
Quality Indicators; 

 3a&3b – elective/non elective MRSA screening – at highest levels of compliance 
since August 2012. 

 16 – Consultant Appraisals – the compliance % has been re-set as the appraisal 
year runs in line with the financial year and therefore appears low. 

 
 
5. Risk Rating Summary 
 
No Financial Risk rating has been calculated as figures are not available for Month 1 of 
2013/14. 
 
Governance Risk Rating (GRR):Overall Rating 4.5 – RED 

 March 13 – 4.0 (Red) 

 April 13 – 4.5 (Red) 

 2C – (RTT – patients on an incomplete pathway) – this is green for the first time 
since the implementation of Cerner. 

 3B (All cancers: 62-day wait for first treatment) has remained red. 

 3A & 3C (All cancers) 31-day wait for second or subsequent treatment and from 
diagnosis to first treatment respectively have both missed target for April and 
reverted to ‘red.’ 

 3E (A&E 4 hr waits) - after a ‘green’ rating in November 12 this reverted to ‘red’ 
in December 12 and has remained so since. The Board Performance report 
explains the position. 

 4A (Clostridium Difficile) exceeds the 2013/14 in year trajectory and thus 
remains rated red. The trajectory has reduced to 42 (split 12,10,10,10 by 
quarter) for 2013/14. The Control of Infection report explains the position and 
planned actions. 

 
6. SOM Oversight Meetings with the  NTDA 
 
For the 2013/14 financial year the review mechanism between the Trust & NTDA has now 
been clarified, consisting of; 

 monthly Oversight meetings (on a Tuesday at NBT headquarters) or  

 quarterly meetings in July, October and January when Dr Stephen Dunn, Delivery 
and Development Director, will attend - in Taunton.  

 
In future months the key outputs and actions arising from the Oversight meetings will be 
reviewed via the FT project Board and assurance provided to Trust Board on their effective 
progression and completion. 
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7. Board Statements  - Particular Considerations 
 

 Statement 11 - Based upon the adverse risk rating scores it is recommended that 
a response of ‘no’ remains in place. 

 

 
 

Action Required:  
 

The Trust Board is requested to:  
 

 Note the new NTDA Accountability Framework and that a new form of reporting will 
replace the SOM in future months.  

 Discuss and approve responses to the 14 board statements, with particular 
attention to statement 11, as outlined in the Executive Summary. 

 Review the SOM data and key changes as highlighted in the Executive Summary. 

 

Key Risks: Persistently adverse performance against key metrics 
relating to clinical quality or financial performance will 
undermine the Trust’s Foundation Trust application and/or 
potential merger. 
Specific risks are reflected in the SOM data items and 
narrative above. 

Impact on Patients: None directly – this is a corporate return to facilitate 
scrutiny of the Trust by the NTDA. 

Impact on Staff As above 

Link to Trust Objectives:  All Trust Big 5 objectives are relevant. 

Care Quality Commission 
outcomes: 

Overall CQC compliance reflected in Governance Risk 
Rating ‘Quality’ section.  

NHS Constitution: Reflected where relevant within SOM data 

Financial Issues: Reflected within SOM data 

Legal/regulatory Issues: SOM is required for all non-Foundation Trusts as part of 
NTDA pipeline. 

Equality Issues considered: N/A 

 



 
 

 
 

Report to Trust Board  – 25th April 2013 Agenda Item 10.1  

Report Title Use of Trust Seal 19/6/12 to 26/3/13 

Status For Information Discussion Assurance  Approval 

   

Prepared by Sue Lewis – PA to Chairman & Chief Executive 

Board Sponsor Marie-Noelle Orzel, Chief Executive 

Appendix Trust Seal Usage 
 

 

For Information 

Executive Summary:  

 Standing Orders require that the Trust Board will receive a report on the use of the Trust Seal. The 
Trust Seal has been used on the following occasions: 

Register Ref. No.       Date         Description of document sealed 

 
395 19.6.13 Refurbishment of Ward 104 Burns Outpatients 
  
396 19.6.12 Ward 106 new single bedrooms at Frenchay 
 
397 21.9.12 Correction of Land Registry entry for Pill Clinic 
 
398 25.9.12 Purchase of South Lodge from CLIC Sargent 
 
399 5.12.12 Early surrender of lease for Corum Park 
 
400 5.12.12 Acquisition of South Bristol Renal Dialysis Unit 
 
401 27.12.12 Lease of land to Bristol Area Stroke Foundation 
 
402 27.12.12 Treatment Room Plastic Surgery Outpatients, Frenchay x 2 

contracts 
 
403 8.2.13 Decommissioning Phase 3 PFI Project Stage 1 at Southmead 

Hospital x 2 contracts 
 
404 26.3.13 Supply of theatre monitoring arms in PFI hospital x 2 contracts 
 
405 26.3.13 Additional works to Maternity Department at Southmead x 2 

contracts 
 
406 26.3.13 Riverside Unit at Blackberry Hill x 2 contracts 

 

Action Required 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report 

 Key Risks: The report provides a formal record of all land and building transactions undertaken by the 
Trust under its seal requiring signatures by the Chairman and Chief Executive.  

Impact on Patients: Provides assurance that the patient environment is maintained to a high quality 

 



 
 

Trust Objectives Leading edge services in high 
quality environments 

CQC Outcomes O10 – safety and suitability of 
premises 

NHS Constitution Pledge on clean and safe 
environment that is fit for purpose 

Equality Issues: Considered in individual 
contracts 

Financial Issues: Considered throughout. Other Legal/ 
regulatory Issues 

Considered throughout. 
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